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Major Events in 2022
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Shengsi 5#6# Offshore Wind Power project
in Zhejiang Province was awarded as a
“Pioneer among Zhejiang Workers”

Zhejiang Federation of Trade Union
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Taipingshan Wind Power project in

Shandong Province was awarded a total of:

four second-class prizes in the “Achievements of

Quality Management Team of Power Construction of 2021”

by China Electric Power Construction Association;

one second-class prize in the“Fifth National Equipment Management
and Technological Innovation Achievements”

by China Equipment Management Association;

four third-class prizes in the “Achievements of Exchange Activities of
Quality Management Team of 2022” by China Association for

Water and Electricity Quality Management
WEAAFLRBEEHE :
REENEREEGE 2021 FEENELZESE IR/ NEFEEM R
POIE — &5
FEXEEEREFAELEREETEERMAIMMRI— B %5
¢@7k§§b§§%ﬁﬁ%@onzzﬁiﬂ%ﬁé‘ﬁdxﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%éﬂﬁiij
HE=



SR ARE A5

MAY 55

Convened the 2022
Annual General Meeting

BR2022FEREFHEERE

Major Events in 2022
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MAY 55

Dangtu Fishing-Photovoltaic Power Complementary project,
Dongzhi Zhaotan Wind Power project and Dingyuan Phase |
Fishing-Photovoltaic Power Complementary Project in Anhui
mudvany Province won the first-class prize, the third-class prize and
the third-class prize of “Achievements of Quality Control of
Electric Power Industry in Anhui Province of 2022” awarded
by the Anhui Electric Power Association, respectively
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Each of Mingin Wind Power project and Hongshagang
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Wind Power project in Gansu Province was awarded:

vea the second-class prize in the “Fifth National Equipment
= 3 Management and Technological Innovation Achievements”
by China Equipment Management Association
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Notice issued by China Electric Power Equipment

Management Association:

Won the Innovation Achievement Awards
in the category of material management

in the national electric power industry
for the first time
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Major Events in 2022
2022F K550
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Obtained the first batch of AAA-level Integration of Informationization
and Industrialization Management System Certificate issued by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
SHERTEMEECHEZNEH

AAATR IR S BIRRR AT ER S

-lrl-n.:l..unuu lucun-uu“. ¥, . Mingin Wind Power project, Hongshagang
::::‘ mpayiciesie s o R 34 RARRA . AP 1 - Wind Power project, Guazhou Tianrun Wind Power
el

project and Jinta Solar project in Gansu Province
were awarded, respectively: a third-class prize,
two third-class prizes, one third-class prize and
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i one third-class prize in the “Gansu Province Quality
uum'ﬁf"mﬁ srmumratnce Management Team Activities of 2022” by Gansu Quality Association
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China Electricity Council announced the results:

Qingyun Shangtang Wind Farm in Shandong Province,

Leling Zhuji Wind Farm in Shandong Province, Lianshui Tangji Wind Farm in
Jiangsu Province and Longnan Yangcun Wind Farm in Jiangxi Province

PR T T ey PP T SR RMRERAR B i d GAERA won the honorary title of “AAAA-level Unit
- | e R e — in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for
™ 7 National Wind Farms in China”, respectively;
AAAAS AAAA%R Xitieshan Photovoltaic Power Station in Qinghai Province won the
L EFEY T (T EFTE T honorary title of “AAAA-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production
ke QT T e and Operation Statistical Indicators for National Solar Photovoltaic Power
o s " Stations in China”
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4 Major Events in 2022
2022F KZE&C

Participated in the “28th State-Owned Enterprises
Think Tank Salon and the 3rd Liupukang Energy Forum”
228 AR5 ~/"%EE%
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IR Awards 2 90074 45 A

Won six awards at the 8th Investor Relations Awards of the HKIRA:
“Best IR Company”; “Best ESG (E)”;

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu, the Chairman, President and

Executive Director of the Company, won the “Best IR by Chairman/CEQ”;
Mr. Liu Chao, the Chief Accountant of the Company,

won the “Best IR by CFO”; Mr. Lee Kin, the Assistant President and
Company Secretary of the Company, won the “Best IRO”;

the Investor Relations team of the Company won the “Best IR Team”
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TREREBREFRAS; TREESG (BIR) J;

REFEF RBBRITESRSHAERE

TREREERG (EE/ATBER) I

REBEHMBBLERE REREEMAR MMBERR)
REIBEEERADNETRAELEEE REREEREESR];
NEIREEMAERREREREERFEERK]

NOV 115

Participated in the “Press Conference on
the Cost of Power Projects Put into
Operation during the 13th Five-Year Plan”
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Chairman’s Statement

I & B

ontinuing our adherence to the basic principles

f “Safety First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing

Excellence”,
style of
Pragmatism”

development

B TAE(ER

SEEREN [R2F—. EE’”’—
BkeEis ] EARRA, BT [RIEEE]

the Company implements the work
“Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
to continuously maintain high-quality

..\chﬁ'%%‘iﬁél?&

/hang Zhiwu
O i 2

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,

Chairman, President and Executive Director

Dear Honourable Shareholders,

General Secretary Xi Jinping pointed out in the Report of the 20th National
Congress that, it was necessary to “actively and steadily promote carbon
peak and carbon neutrality, thoroughly push forward energy reform and
accelerate the planning and construction of new energy system”. The new
energy industry ushered in the peak of development and entered a new
development stage, which led to new changes in both opportunities and
challenges. The Company always maintained our strategic focus, recognized
the trends and patterns, made greater efforts in innovation and practicality, so
as to promote the establishment of a top new energy enterprise and maintain
our leading position in the industry. 2022 was an important transitional year of
implementing the “14th Five-Year Plan” and was also a critical year that was
extremely challenging for the Company to achieve high-quality and sustainable
development. The Company was strongly confident and keen to make
progress, so as to sharpen fresh edges, nourish new drivers and create new
momentum.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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In 2022, the Company worked towards the operational goals and vigorously
promoted the deployment of major works, such as development scale,
resource acquisition as well as production and operation. Firstly, the
Company focused on the high quality management of and guidance from
the Communist Party of China (“CPC”), so as to boost the strength of high-
quality development of the Company. Secondly, the Company focused on the
deepening of reforms and technology innovation, so as to continue to empower
the high-quality development of the Company. Thirdly, the Company adhered
to the joint promotion of traditional and extended businesses, so as to focus
on winning the battle of market development. Fourthly, the Company focused
on winning the battle of putting projects into operation. Fifthly, the Company
adhered to place equal emphasis on development and efficiency, so as to
focus on winning the battle of lean management. Sixthly, the Company focused
on building bottom-line thinking, so as to protect the sustainable and healthy
development of the Company.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATING
RESULTS

In 2022, despite the challenge from the pandemic as well as the complex and
severe external environment, under the concerted efforts of all employees,
the project development, project construction, production, operation and
maintenance and other works of the Company have been steadily advancing.

In 2022, the profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted to US$195.1
million, representing a decrease of 20.1% compared with last year; basic
earnings per share of the Company was US$4.55 cents (equivalent to
HK$35.47 cents per share). As of 31 December 2022, the attributable
installed capacity of the Company’s power plants reached 8,986.5 MW,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.9%. During the year, the new
attributable installed capacity reached 619.7 MW. The Company strengthened
the quality control of equipment and captured every single watts of
electricity. In 2022, the Company’s power generation reached 19,189.7
GWh, representing an increase of 5.7% compared with 18,162.0 GWh of last
year. The condition of production safety was stable, and our production and
operation maintained a good momentum.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company will continue to practise the work style focusing on “Stringency,
Prudence, Meticulosity and Pragmatism”, strive for excellence, secure our
scientific planning and implement vigorously, so as to ensure the safe and
efficient operation of equipment, enable high-quality development of the
Company and contribute to achieving the national “dual carbon” goal.

Zhang Zhiwu
Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman, President and Executive Director

21 March 2023

Chairman’s Statement

F & B

20225 NEIEEREBR KNEEEERE -BR
ERAEKSEERTFETHE — 2R HEEE
EREN HELAIREELEREREBENE ZE2RENF
EHEMBFERF AR EELEREBFERE;, =2
REHEAMEREBRBEE RN RMISHERER
3'!)? ; @%zri(ﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁilﬂﬂﬁﬁ s ARBREERY

BN RERBEREY  AERNEFRR
1\_,\n& Efy@jﬁ BRREBREEM-

EGURMIEERE

20224 HIEY G IEE B MEM R BIRIE  E20E
SETHFEZSNT REAEEME TRER EEEE
ET T HE

2022F R BEMLGEF AB1951BEEBETT BRLEFE
Eim1201%; AEIERERBH A4.55% W HERE
B235.4781l) - & FE20225F 128310 1L AR EEmHN
G EK A BE28,986.55kK > AL M6.9% » £ R
¥ﬁt“¢&*“*%%§;%6197;5E“&7%§¢t SHEHEEA
B EBNF 2022 ARIEESE19,189.75 LK
;thﬂ*ﬁﬁw 162.05 RLFFIEMN5.7% 2 EEF IS
FERERFTREFES -

RERKEK

AEREERT TRIEME N ITIEER B RiE &
SERE E*H%Té% ERREZE2SVET /HRAS
HEZRAERN ABTEAREHR BERAEMNE-

Eﬁﬁ
E"é ‘
ERY: z’éé;%fﬂﬁg%%

2023FE3H21H

2022 FEWE | PEEEMERERERARE

11



12

Distribution of
I8 H 9 fh
T mw )

Henan, China

PEAIR
s

Gansu, China

hEHE
-

Qinghai, China
PEE S
/

’_&

Sichuan, China
FhEE )|
4

—_
==

Hunan, China
rhE A
/

‘_u\_

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd

Projects
Gas-fired Cogen Coal-fired =& Oijl-fired
e 4’;\5 BEHE g s

Total Installed Capacity
RS

663.6 MwikE

5.7 MwikE

Total Installed Capacity
HERAS

1,043 mwikr

101 MwkE

Total Installed Capacity
RS

200 mwikE

160 mwikr

Total Installed Capacity
HRmAS

51 MwkE

Total Installed Capacity
HRAS

245.2 MwikR

18.3 MwkE

_ Annual Report 2022

Guizhou, China

FRESM

Guangxi, China

REIRE
B
¢

—a
==

Jiangxi, China
RETE
oS

Inner Mongolia, China

REIRRG
s

Shaanxi, China
FRERREE

Heilongjiang, China
FREREEL
/

‘ﬁ:

¢

Hydro C\ Biomass
Z== KB ©%; EYE

as

Total Installed Capacity
WERRE

170 mwskR

Total Installed Capacity
EEES 2

192.2 mwiE

18 Mwiks

Total Installed Capacity
BERAE

177.8 mwikE

Total Installed Capacity
WRaE

10 MwikE

193 Mwikr

Total Installed Capacity
mEtgRE

0.7 MwiR

Total Installed Capacity
EEES 2

100 MmwkE



13

Distribution of Projects
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Financial and Operating Highlights
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Increased by 23.6%
as compared with 2021
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SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
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REVENUE

A
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Increased by 36.9%
as compared with 2021
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US cents per share
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Decreased by 20.1%
as compared with 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

China’s power market:

According to the data published by the NEA, the installed capacity of
the PRC amounted to 2,564.1 GW in 2022, representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.8%, while electricity consumption amounted to 8,637.2
TWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.6%.

The accumulated grid-connected wind power capacity for 2022
reached 365.4 GW, with a year-on-year increase of 11.2%, while the
accumulated grid-connected solar power capacity recorded 392.6 GW,
with a year-on-year increase of 28.1%.

The 36th group study session of the 19th Political Bureau of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (the “CPC”) in
2022 pointed out that “for achieving dual carbon goal, we ourselves
must do it, instead of doing it as required by others”. To reach “Carbon
Peak, Carbon Neutrality” is the crying need to achieve national
sustainable development, economic transformation and upgrades and
promotion of the harmonious coexistence of humans and nature. Also,
green and low carbon development is the long term task to achieve
comprehensive developments of the economy and society, and the
prospects of the new energy development is wide, firm and long-term.

The report of the 20th National Congress of the CPC clearly stated
that “the primary task of building China into a modern socialist country
in all respects is to promote high-quality development”, which further
highlighted the overall and long-term implications of development
quality. The report of the 20th National Congress focused on green
development and proposed “actively and steadily promote carbon
peak and carbon neutrality”, “thoroughly pushing forward energy
reform” and “make faster progress in planning and developing new
energy system”. In order to achieve the “dual carbon” goal, a number
of green policies have been releasing bonus since 2022, such as
the “Raft of Measures and Policies to Firmly Stabilize the Economy”
(ERBEELEN—EFHEE)), the “Implementation Plan on
Promoting the High-Quality Development of New Energy in the New
Era” ((BEARREMNAMERSEELRENERSZE)) and the
“14th Five-Year Plan for Renewable Energy Development” ({T+PHH |
PIELAEREERE])), which marked that the intensification and
acceleration of new energy investment has become a new normal.
Under the “dual carbon” goal, the room for development of thermal
power is limited and various types of investment entities jostle to enter
the new energy industry, thus the industry development has entered a
period of rapid growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Large Scale and Intensified Development Trends:

With the exploration of the “dual carbon” goal, the new energy industry
is on track, wind power and photovoltaic power have advanced to an
era of grid parity which has presented more large-scale and intensive
development trends, and large-scale wind power and photovoltaic
power bases have become the highlight of the plans.

In February 2022, the NDRC and the NEA issued the notice on
“Issuing the Layout Plan of Large-scale Wind Power Photovoltaic
Bases Focusing on Deserts, Gobi and Barren Lands” ({LL03&E X
B RNEMEABEMNARRBENNREMBEHRFESZE)). The Plan
proposed to plan and develop large-scale wind power and photovoltaic
bases focusing on four deserts, namely Kubugi, Ulan Buh, Tengger
and Badanjilin, being supplemented by other deserts and Gobi area
and taking into account coal mining subsidence areas. The Plan
stated explicitly that, by 2030, the total installed capacity of wind and
photovoltaic power bases to be planned and constructed will be 455
GW, of which, the planned installed capacity of the bases located at
Kubugi, Ulan Buh, Tengger and Badanjilin deserts will be 284 GW,
the planned installed capacity of coal mining subsidence areas will
be 37 GW and the planned installed capacity of other deserts and
Gobi area will be 134 GW. The total installed capacity of wind and
photovoltaic power bases to be planned and constructed during the
period of “14th Five-Year Plan” will be approximately 200 GW, while
the total installed capacity of wind and photovoltaic power bases to be
planned and constructed during the “15th Five-Year Plan” period will
be approximately 255 GW.

In March 2022, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Plan for Modern
Energy System during the 14th Five-Year Plan” ((T+IOH IRAEETR
BE %38 2))). The Plan proposed the target on installed capacity, from
2022 to 2025, the new installed capacity of hydropower will increase
by approximately 25 GW and the new installed capacity of nuclear
power will increase by approximately 17 GW. The scale of flexibility
transformation of coal power generating units will exceed 200 GW
cumulatively, the installed capacity of pumped storage will reach over
62 GW and the installed capacity currently under construction will
reach approximately 60 GW. A new power system will be constructed
in order to establish a modern energy market. The Plan highlighted the
planning and construction of a new energy supply and consumption
system based on large-scale wind and photovoltaic power bases,
supported by coal power and carried by ultra-high voltage transmission
and distribution circuits.
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In March 2022, the NEA issued the “Guiding Opinion on Energy Work
in 2022” ((2022F AR TYEIEE R R )). The Opinion proposed to
actively promote the construction of complementary hydropower, wind
and photovoltaic power bases; deploy grid side energy storage at key
nodes to encourage the construction of smart micro-grid focusing on
new energy consumption; optimize the offshore wind power layout and
set up a demonstration on the construction of wind power in deep
seas; and continue with the development and construction of roof
distributed photovoltaic power within a county.

In June 2022, nine governmental authorities including the NDRC,
the NEA and the Ministry of Finance issued the “14th Five-Year Plan
for Renewable Energy Development” ((I+MUf ) SIBEERERE
3R8)). The Plan stated explicitly that, by 2025, the total energy
consumption of renewable energy will reach approximately 1 billion
tons of standard coal, representing approximately 18% of primary
energy consumption; the annual power generation of renewable
energy will reach around 3,300 TWh, and wind power generation and
solar power generation will be doubled. The Plan stated that base-
driven and large-scale development will be optimized and promoted
in the “three northern” regions, integrated development of hydro
power, wind power and photovoltaic power will be coordinated and
advanced in the southwestern region, local development in the vicinity
will be promoted in the central and southeastern region, and the
development of offshore wind power clusters will be actively promoted
in the eastern coastal region. The development will be supported by
key bases and explicitly focused on deserts, Gobi and barren lands.
Also, the construction of seven onshore new energy bases located
at the upstream of the Yellow River, Hexi Corridor, Jiziwan JLF
%) of the Yellow River, northern Hebei, Songliao, Xinjiang and the
downstream of the Yellow River, two complementary hydropower, wind
and photovoltaic power bases located at Southeast Tibet and Sichuan-
Yunnan-Guizhou-Guangxi as well as five offshore wind power base
clusters will be accelerated.
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High-Quality Development of the New Energy:

In order to complete the “dual carbon” goal in a better way, China has
released a series of policies to guide new energy towards high-quality
development in 2022.

In January 2022, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Implementation
Plan for the Development of New Energy Storage during the 14th Five-
Year Plan” ((T+EAIFELHAEZRENR S ZX)). The Plan required
that, by 2025, the new energy storage should enter into the large-scale
development stage from the initial period of commercialization with
conditions for large-scale commercialized application. Of which, the
technical performance of the electrochemical energy storage will be
further enhanced, and the system cost will be reduced by over 30%.
By 20830, the new energy storage will achieve comprehensive market-
driven development. The Plan stated explicitly that increased efforts
shall be made to develop new types of energy storage technologies
on the power generation side and focus on the layout of system-
friendly new energy power stations equipped with reasonable new
energy storage in Inner Mongolia, Xinjiang, Gansu, Qinghai and other
regions with high penetration rate of new energy. Leveraging on
existing assets and the newly-added inter-provincial and inter-regional
electricity transmission channels during the “14th Five-Year Plan”,
large-scale inter-provincial delivery and consumption of new energy
can be promoted through the multi-energy complementary model of
“integration of wind, solar, water and coal storage”. Coupled with the
development of large-scale wind power and photovoltaic power bases
in deserts, Gobi and barren lands and the exploration of hydrogen
production by renewable energy, large-scale delivery of new energy
will be supported. Combining with large-scale development of offshore
wind power bases in areas like Guangdong, Fujian, Jiangsu, Zhejiang
and Shandong, the study of offshore wind power equipped with new
energy storage will be carried out. The construction of new energy
storage or wind and solar power storage facilities using the existing
factory address of retired thermal power units and power transmission
and transformation facilities will be explored. The Plan also suggested
to explore the promotion of shared energy storage model. New energy
power stations are encouraged to allocate energy storage by way of
self-construction, leasing or purchase, so as to give full play to the
function of sharing of energy storage in terms of “multi-purpose in
one station”. Various types of entities will be supported actively to
commence the application demonstration of innovative commercial
models like shared energy storage or cloud energy storage and the
construction of a pilot shared energy storage transaction platform and
operation monitoring system.
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In May 2022, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Implementation
Plan on Promoting the High-Quality Development of New Energy in
the New Era” ((BARBENFARMERSEELERNERSE)).
The Plan stated explicitly that the total installed capacity of wind
power and solar power will reach more than 1,200 GW by 2030 and
the construction of a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient energy
system will be accelerated. The Plan proposed to innovate the mode
of new energy development and utilization, accelerate the building of
new type of power systems to accommodate the gradual increase in
the proportion of new energy and deepen the reform of “delegating,
regulating and serving” in the new energy sector, so as to guarantee
reasonable room for development of new energy and give full play to
the benefits of new energy in terms of ecological and environmental
protection. At the same time, the Plan stated the direction of new
energy development to comprehensively improve the regulation
capacity and flexibility of the power system, focus on improving the
ability of power distribution networks to accept distributed new energy,
improve the system of weighting responsibility for the consumption of
electricity generated from renewable energy and improve the land use
regulations of new energy projects.

In May 2022, the Ministry of Water Resources issued the “Guiding
Opinion of the Ministry of Water Resources on Strengthening the
Management and Control of Shoreline Space of Rivers and Lakes” ({7k
FEBRER MSREMAIR R R EEEENIEEER)). The Guiding
Opinion required managing and controlling various types of usage of
shorelines of waters strictly. Projects like photovoltaic power stations
and wind power plants cannot be constructed in rivers, lakes and
reservoirs. The construction of photovoltaic and wind power projects
adjacent to lakes and on the branch of reservoirs are subject to
scientific researches and strict management and control. The Guiding
Opinion stated explicitly that each province (autonomous region and
municipality) may impose specific requirement on various types of
usage of shorelines of waters according to laws and regulations in
light of its actual situation. Further requirements will be imposed on
the lands for the new energy projects and those projects which cannot
meet the requirements may be terminated.

In December 2022, the Central Committee of the CPC and the State
Council issued the “Summary of the Strategic Plan for Expanding
Domestic Demand (2022-2035)” ({(#EAAFEEEHREME (2022-
2035%))), and then the NDRC issued the “Implementation Plan
of Expanding Domestic Demand Strategies in the 14th Five-Year
Plan” ((T+NAJEAANEHESHESZE)). The Implementation
Plan clearly stated: strengthening the construction of the energy
infrastructure. Improving the layout and structure of the main
grid; actively promoting the actions of power distribution network
reconstruction and the consolidation and improvement works for
rural grid; promoting the construction of a series of coal sites for
green transformation and high-quality development; promoting the
construction of multiple-energy complement clean-energy site; and
promoting the construction of the innovation power system.
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Achieve Price Parity of Offshore Wind Power:

During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, China no longer provided
subsidies for offshore wind power and entered the era of grid parity.
It was forecasted that full price parity could be achieved by the end
of the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. Before that, local supportive
policies shall be introduced in various areas as appropriate. In 2022,
the newly-approved offshore wind power projects were still price parity
projects with no subsidies. At the same time, China encouraged all
regions to implement targeted supportive policies to support high-
quality development of the wind power and photovoltaic power
industry.

During the first half of 2022, Shandong Province implemented
provincial subsidy policy targeting at offshore wind power. On 1
April 2022, during the press conference of Shandong Provincial
Government Information Office, the deputy director of the Shandong
Provincial Energy Administration responded to press reporters, that the
development and construction of offshore wind power projects shall be
vigorously supported. In respect of those offshore wind power projects
during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period which were completed and
connected to the grid during 2022 to 2024, the provincial Ministry of
Finance shall provide subsidies at the standard of RMB800, RMB500
and RMB300 per kW and the scale of subsidies shall not exceed 2
GW, 3.4 GW and 1.6 GW respectively. In respect of those offshore
wind power projects which will be completed and connected to the
grid by the end of 2023, those projects will be exempted from building
or leasing energy storage facilities. Power generation enterprises
are allowed to invest in and construct ancillary projects and power
grid enterprises can buyback such projects in accordance with laws
and regulations, so as to promote the early completion and early
production of projects.

In November 2022, Shanghai Development and Reform Commission
issued a notice in relation to the “Measures for Special Funds for
Development of Renewable Energy and New Energy in Shanghai” (@=
BHABERERNMEREREBEEESHKIFEIIE)). The incentive
standard of offshore wind power projects in deep sea and offshore
wind power projects with offshore distance greater than or equal to 50
kilometres was RMB500 per kW. The annual incentive amounts of a
project shall not exceed RMB50 million.

Improve a Power Market System Coordinated Various Types of
Transactions:

During 2022, China successively introduced policies in relation to
the establishment of a power market system which improved the
coordination of various types of transactions.

In January 2022, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Guiding Opinion
on Accelerating the Construction of a National Unified Electricity
Market System” (BARMMREREZEF—ENHBEANIEER
8)), which once again recogmzed the role of the market in the
optimal allocation of power resources, focused on problems existing
in the construction of an electricity market, proposed the overall
objectives and requirements for the construction of the national unified
power market and raised structural opinions on the construction of the
power market.
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In February 2022, the General Office of the NDRC and the
Comprehensive Department of the NEA jointly issued the “Notice
on Further Promoting the Construction of the Electricity Spot Market”
(RARMIREEE HIREMIHZEEZ TIERNBEA D), which required
the first batch of pilot regions to commence long-cycle continuous
trial operation of the spot market in 2022 in principle and the second
batch of pilot regions to commence trial operation of the spot
market by the end of June 2022 in principle, so as to accelerate the
promotion of thorough involvement of the customer end in the spot
market. It explicitly stated the overall requirements of accelerating
the construction of the electricity spot market, indicating that the
construction of the electricity spot market is being widely carried out.
With the gradual construction of a more comprehensive power market
system, a marketized pricing mechanism is further rationalized.

In July 2022, the pilot operation of the Southern Regional Power
Market was launched, marking the first implementation of a
national unified electricity market system in the southern region. In
September 2022, the “Implementation Opinion of Liaoning Province
on Accelerating the Construction of a National Unified Electricity
Market System” ((BEEHZBNRERZ2EHR—FBHTHEEBRN
FEER)) was issued and implemented, marking that Liaoning
became the first province in the country for the implementation of the
national decision and plan to accelerate the construction of a national
unified electricity market system. It also means that the construction
of a national unified electricity market system has been initially
implemented at different levels at the regional and provincial levels and
has been continuously and steadily advanced.

In November 2022, the NEA issued a notice on the public consultation
on the “Basic Rules for the Electricity Spot Market (Draft for
Comments)” (BAHIREDFZELRKL BHRKEER))), which is the
first time that a regulatory document of the electricity spot market
rules is published at the national level. The Basic Rules clarified
the objectives, paths, tasks and operational requirements for the
construction of the electricity spot market, and also made detailed
requirements for the participants in the market, market connection,
credit management, etc., which is conducive to standardizing the
operation and management of the electricity spot market, promoting
the construction of a unified, open, competitive and orderly electricity
market system, and will further promote the electricity spot market
from pilot to nationwide promotion. The Basic Rules also mentioned
that taking into account the development of the electricity market
and the actual needs, China shall explore the establishment of a
market-oriented capacity compensation mechanism to stimulate the
investment and construction of various types of power sources, and
ensure the adequacy of the system’s power generation capacity,
flexibility and operation safety.

Korean power market:

As the Korean power market is undergoing a transformation of energy
structure, it is expected that there would be an increase in the use of
renewable energy and more natural gas power plants in the future. As
the operation of new power plants would intensify the competition in
the power market, the profitability of Korean gas-fired power generation
companies was hindered.
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s portfolio of assets comprises wind, solar, gas-fired, coal-
fired, oil-fired, hydro, cogen, fuel cell and biomass projects, which
are in operation in the PRC and Korea power markets. The Group’s
business in the PRC covers 19 provinces, two autonomous regions
and a municipality with a wide geographical coverage and diversified
business scope. As of 31 December 2022, the operations in the
PRC and Korea accounted for approximately 75.9% and 24.1% of the
Group’s attributable installed capacity of 8,986.5 MW, respectively.
Clean and renewable energy projects (namely, wind, solar, gas-
fired, hydro, fuel cell and biomass projects) accounted for 82.6% of
the Group’s attributable installed capacity; and conventional energy
projects (namely, coal-fired, oil-fired and cogen projects) accounted for
17.4% of the Group’s attributable installed capacity.

The following table sets out items selected by us from the results of
the Group (by fuel type):

PRC
Coal-fired,
Cogen and
Korea Gas-fired
Projects Projects
R EIRYE -
HEMER
US$ million BEET BEEE MRER
For the year ended HF2022F12831H
31 December 2022 LEE
Revenue WA 1,377.4 151.1
Operating expenses RERY (1,261.6) (143.4)
Operating profit/(loss) &&i&F,/ (§518) 115.8 7.7
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiEF,/ (£518) 62.7 (43.2)
Profit/(loss) attributable AT ERKRE
to equity shareholders  FE{5EF]/ (§518)
of the Company 62.7 (49.9)
For the year ended #ZE2021%F12831H
31 December 2021 LEFE (BE5)
(Restated)
Revenue WA 849.3 141.7
Operating expenses RS (795.9) (137.3)
Operating profit/(loss) weEhEm/ (518) 53.4 4.4
Profit/(loss) for the year — EREF],/ (§518) 25.0 (16.7)
Profit/(loss) attributable to AT KR E
equity shareholders PR/ (B518)
of the Company 25.0 (22.0)
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PRC
Hydro
Projects

HEKE
IEH

18.8
(10.9)

8.0

7.3

31.2

(18.6)

12.6
14.8

14.0

e ACE

AEENEEAGEEUNTEEERE NS
BHRE KB RRRIE A KE B
BHME -MEEOIREYMELZEEE  ~5&F
EHENEESMOBEEN MEBEAEKR—
BEED MESHEZ £BHEEZST-HE
2022 12831H FEIKRBREAD NG EAER
R AR E8,986.5JK FLM75.9% /% 24.1% &
BRAIBEEREBERS BPRE - XBE-RE
KE-MNEMNREYEIER) hAEEERLE
A EMNG2.6%; BAETRIBE BMRIE  WH K
HEHEBEE) GRMABEDERBTSM17.4%°

TREIARMELEENEETRENERE
(iRt D 48)

PRC PRC

Wind Solar
Projects Projects  Corporate Total

FERE HEKGE
| EH ¥ Bt
692.8 1371 52.9 2,430.1
(297.9) (67.1) (59.5) (1,840.4)
394.9 70.0 (6.6) 589.7
241.2 45.7 (100.0) 214.4
230.9 441 (100.0) 195.1
569.2 141.9 42.0 1,775.3
(217.0) (70.4) (56.5) (1,295.7)
352.2 71.5 (14.5) 479.6
273.0 41.9 (76.9) 261.1
2675 36.7 (76.9) 244.3
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Korea Projects

The increase in profit for the year from US$25.0 million to US$62.7
million was mainly attributable to the increase in fuel margin and
the contribution from the 109.5 MW Daesan biomass project which
commenced commercial operation in April 2021, which was partially
offset by the post-tax impact of impairment losses recognized in
respect of property, plant and equipment of US$16.8 million.

PRC Coal-fired, Cogen and Gas-fired
Projects

The increase in loss for the year from US$16.7 million to US$43.2
million was mainly attributable to the increase in market coal price that
led to the increase in loss of the associates.

PRC Wind Projects

In 2022, the Group’s newly commissioned attributable installed
capacity of wind projects amounted to 569.7 MW. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in power generation
from wind projects. Overall, the operating profit increased by US$42.7
million to US$394.9 million. Mainly affected by the post-tax impact
of the impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and
equipment of US$45.0 million, the profit of wind projects decreased to
US$241.2 compared with last year.

PRC Solar Projects

In 2022, the Group’s newly commissioned attributable installed
capacity of solar projects amounted to 50.0 MW. With the progressive
increase in power generation from solar projects, the profit slightly
increased by US$3.8 million to US$45.7 million.
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. o B3
Installed Capacity HS=
The attributable installed capacity of the Group’s power assets as of AEBFRBEEEENR2022F K20215F128
31 December 2022 and 2021 by fuel type are set out as follows: STHMEREKASERMEBRHEIHIW
T
As at 31 December
#12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
(Mw) (MW)
(KE) CkR)
Clean and renewable energy portfolio AERUBERERES
Wind iy 4,419.1 3,849.4
Solar PN 1,186.8 1,136.8
Gas-fired %= 1,655.0 1,655.0
Hydro KE 56.3 94 .1
Biomass EYE 109.5 109.5
Subtotal /B 7,426.7 6,844.8
Conventional energy portfolio BGRERES
Coal-fired IR IR 989.8 989.8
Oil-fired Japi:: 507.0 507.0
Cogen B E 63.0 63.0
Subtotal NS 1,559.8 1,559.8
Total attributable installed capacity BMREDEKAE 8,986.5 8,404.6
4,419.1 % 3,849.4 -—1
(49.2%) (45.8%)
109.5
109.5 : (1.3%)
(1.2%) 4
1,186.8 k 1,136.8
(13.2%) 2022 (13.5%) j 202] o 63.0
T, 630 ! (0.8%)
' (0.7%) - 507.0
i 0
1,655.0 «——— T A 2077;;) 1655.0 « (6.0%)
(18.4%) ? o (19.7%) e
A 089.8 N\ . oses
8 . 11.8%)
56.3 | (11.0%) 94.1 | (
(0.6%) N (1.1%) N
Total 4251 : 8,986.5 wix Total 425t : 8,404.6 wus
Clean and renewable energy portfolio Conventional energy portfolio
BREKRFIBEMRES BiRaERES
{\ Wind Solar Coal-fired Oil-fired ==
Tr mm e o .

7,426.7 MWEER (82.6%) 2022  1,559.8 MWJER (17.4%)

W Gas-fired &  Hydro 6,844.8 MWIKEL (81.4%) 2021 1,559.8 MWJKE, (18.6%) Cogen m
= R == XkE nEmE )
(@.. Biomass

=
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As at 31 December 2022, the attributable installed capacity of the
Group reached 8,986.5 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of
6.9%, in particular, the newly added attributable installed capacity
of wind power and solar power amounted to 619.7 MW in total. The
attributable installed capacity of wind power amounted to 4,419.1
MW, representing a year-on-year increase of 569.7 MW or 14.8%;
whereas the attributable installed capacity of solar power amounted
to 1,186.8 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of 50.0 MW or
4.4%. The wind power and solar power accounted for 62.4% of the
Group’s attributable installed capacity. As at 31 December 2022, the
consolidated installed capacity of the power plants reached 8,234.5
MW.

In 2022, the Group steadily promoted the development of its wind
power business. The newly added attributable installed capacity
was mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 153.2 MW in Gansu
Province, (2) 130.0 MW in Shandong Province, (3) 81.9 MW in
Qinghai Province, (4) 76.5 MW in Jiangsu Province, (5) 56.3 MW in
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, (6) 35.2 MW in Hunan Province
(7) 26.6 MW in Henan Province and (8) 10.0 MW in Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region.

In 2022, the Group further strengthened the development of its solar
business, and the newly added attributable installed capacity was
mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 50.0 MW in Anhui Province.

In the second half of 2022, the attributable installed capacity of the
hydro projects of the Group decreased by 37.8 MW, as the cooperation
of Group’s Fushi | hydro project in the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region with a local partner ended and the hydro power station
was officially handed over to the local partner for operation and
management.

The Company has been adhering to the principle of high-quality
development and expedited project construction. It is expected that the
growth of new operating capacity in 2023 will remain steady.

Safety Management

During the development process, the Company has always insisted
on taking General Secretary Xi Jinping’s important statement on
safety production and the thought of ecological civilization as
the fundamental guidelines, and insisted on the people-centred
development ideology, the mission of guarding employees’ lives and
safety, the people first and life first, the basic principles of “Safety
First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, and insisted on the
goal of “zero fatalities, zero serious injuries and zero large equipment
damage liability accidents”. In 2022, we focused on the theme of
safety and rule of law, continued to enhance the two key capabilities
of autonomous management and standardized construction,
implemented the responsibility of safety management in all aspects of
production and operation, and embodied the connotation of “everyone
is responsible for safe production” and “everyone is a protection
wall” corporate safety culture. On the basis of legal compliance,
we continued to improve our safety, quality and environmental
management capabilities and performance, and achieved a highly
stable safety situation by keeping the overall production safety situation
under control.
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The Company established and improved the safety production
responsibility system for all staff, established a list of safety,
quality and environmental responsibilities with clear boundaries of
responsibility, matching responsibility and rights, horizontal to vertical,
and all levels and positions, grasped one level and implemented it
at all levels, ensured that the main responsibility for safety, quality
and environment was performed in place, and carried out inspection
of the performance of all staff, continuously strengthened the main
responsibility for safety, quality and environment at all levels, focused
on the main responsible unit or individual, strengthened technical and
management means, improved long-term mechanisms, ensured that
measures were implemented, and ensured that the responsibility for
safety production for all staff was implemented.

The Company attached great importance to the construction of
safety, quality and environmental standardization, implemented a
special supervision mechanism for standardization, optimised the
construction, evaluation and incentive mechanism for safety, quality
and environmental standardization, promoted the deep integration of
safety, quality and environmental standardization with daily work, and
designated a special staff to supervise and help the key upgrading
field stations of the Company. Taking international benchmarking as a
grip, the Company continued to build up the core capacity of offshore
wind power projects and established a management system for
offshore wind power projects to help the high-quality development of
the business of the offshore wind power business.

The Company continued to promote the construction of a dual-
prevention mechanism, improved the risk identification process in
conventional areas, carried out whole life cycle risk identification
and evaluation for new business areas, and formulated management
and control measures in accordance with the requirements of one
policy per case, introduced targeted safety, quality and environmental
management and control programmes, and effectively improved
the level of safety management. The Company carried out safety
inspections and hidden danger investigations in a hierarchical and
graded manner, and set up special incentives to improve the quality
of hidden danger investigations. The Company organised special
inspections such as safety production inspection, “four-no and two-
direct” (no issuance of notice, no prior notice, no report listening,
no reception or escort; direct rush to grassroots, direct rush to job
site), inspections and quality supervision to dig deeper into on-site
problems and hidden dangers and help improve on-site safety level.
We carried out on-site stationing for the 20th National Congress of the
CPC, to keep an eye on the key risks at the site to ensure a stable
safety production situation during the conference and create a good
atmosphere for the 20th National Congress.

The Company set up the goal of eliminating potential accidents
from the root, and completed the three-year action plan for special
rectification of production safety with high quality through regular
summary assessment, on-site inspection and verification, and leading
management implementation. We improved the list of responsibilities of
all positions, clarified the relationship between all parties, established
a working mechanism for all staff to perform their duties as inspectors,
completed the rectification of the issues with high quality, and
improved the management system and operating procedures of the
Company.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company always kept in mind its role as a central enterprise and
its highest political standing, continued to summarise its experience
and good practices in dealing with the pandemic, actively optimised
its prevention and control measures to cope with the new situation
of the pandemic, and in the meantime, organised the procurement of
sufficient quantities of pandemic prevention materials to ensure normal
use by employees, reduced staff infection and avoided the occurrence
of aggregated pandemic, so as to solidify the epidemic prevention line
and promote the high-quality development of the Company’s business.

Project Construction

In 2022, in the face of multiple challenges such as short construction
period, multi-point spread of the pandemic and tight supply of main
equipment such as components, the Company has always been
vigorous and diligent, constantly improving its ability to refine process
management and control and planning ahead to ensure steady and
effective progress of construction. First, the Company enhanced its
ability to identify and prevent risks, and made good plans for the
opening phase of the project construction. Second, the Company
strengthened the on-site management and control and the division’s
functional supervision responsibilities for contracting EPC projects.
Third, the Company focused on improving on-site construction
organization and construction efficiency. Fourth, the Company
paid close attention to the acceptance work of the project before
electrification and strengthened the level of production preparation.

Development of Preliminary Projects

In 2022, the Company resolutely implemented the principle of “grow
bigger, stronger and better”. Being market-oriented, the Company
was committed to focusing and targeting on the high-end market
and adhered to pioneering and innovating, which resulted in a stable
increase in the capacity of resource reserves and achieved remarkable
results in existing asset conversion.

In 20283, facing the competitive market conditions in respect of
new energy and based on the development requirements of high
quality and high objectives, the development efforts of the Company
will regard the market as the orientation and value creation as the
objective, so as to bring the role of markets in resource allocation
into full play and promote the optimization and adjustment of the
development layouts of the new energy market actively. The Company
will persist to focus on the development of main responsibilities and
main businesses (wind power and photovoltaic power), strive to be
the pilot of innovation and endeavor to construct adjustable capacity
building, so as to make greater contributions for “Carbon Peak, Carbon
Neutrality”.
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Power Generation

The power generation (GWh) of the projects of the Group are set out
as follows:

PRC Wind Projects hEEEER

PRC Solar Projects FEXHGEEE
PRC Cogen and Gas-Fired Projects B PE M E KRR T
PRC Hydro Projects FEKEIEE
Korea Projects EEHIEE

Total st

In 2022, the Company’s production, operation and maintenance
line overcame the adverse factors such as the decline in climatic
resources, the frequent occurrence of extreme weather and the
pandemic, always adhered to the main line of reliable power supply,
focused on safeguarding production safety, strengthened safety
production management and ensured power safety in all aspects;
strengthened equipment quality improvement and safeguarded reliable
power supply; firmly built a network information security prevention
system and comprehensively protected information security, laying
a solid foundation for the completion of the Company’s annual
power generation target and providing strong protection for stable
power supply. As of 31 December 2022, the electricity generated
by the Group’s consolidated power generation projects amounted to
19,189.7 GWh, representing an increase of 5.7% from 18,162.0 GWh
as compared with that of last year. The increase in power generation
was mainly due to the contribution from newly commissioned wind
and solar projects and from the increase in power generation of the
existing wind and solar projects. The electricity generated by PRC wind
projects and PRC solar projects reached 9,370.8 GWh and 1,692.4
GWh respectively, representing growth rates of 22.9% and 6.4%,
respectively.

The electricity generated by PRC cogen and gas-fired projects
amounted to 362.8 GWh, representing a year-on-year decrease of
13.2%. It was mainly due to the power generation of a cogen project
in Jiangsu Province decreased as a result of the decrease of the local
demands.

The power generation from PRC hydro projects reached 488.4 GWh,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 35.7%, mainly due to the
end of the cooperation between the Group’s Zuojiang and Fushi |
hydro projects in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and the local
partner. Such hydro power stations were officially handed over to
the local partner for operation and management in October 2021
and September 2022, respectively, resulting in a decrease in power
generation from PRC hydro projects in 2022.
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BhEE

TR AEEBENEEE (FRF) !

For the year ended 31 December

HE128318LLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
9,370.8 7,624.3
1,692.4 1,590.1
362.8 418.2
488.4 759.5
7,275.3 7,769.9
19,189.7 18,162.0
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The power generation from Korea projects reached 7,275.3 GWh,
mainly from gas-fired and biomass projects, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 6.4%, mainly due to the gas-fired projects
experienced a decrease in the load of power grid dispatch in 2022,
resulting in a decrease of power generation of the Korea projects in
2022.

The total steam sold by the Group amounted to 3,087,000 tonnes,
representing a decrease of 6.4% as compared with 2021.

The following table sets out the average utilization hour applicable to
our projects for the Group:

Average utilization hour by fuel type!”

PRC Wind Projects® FEREEE®
PRC Solar Projects® FEAGEEB®
PRC Coal-fired Projects® FRERIEEE®
PRC Cogen Projects® FEAEHEEB®
PRC Hydro Projects® FEIKEEB®
Korea Gas-fired Projects™” BEMRIERD
Notes:

1) Average utilization hour is the gross electricity generated in a specified period

divided by the average installed capacity in the same period.

(2) Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2022 for the PRC
wind projects in major regions such as Gansu Province, Henan Province
and Shandong Province were 1,800 hours, 2,569 hours and 2,190 hours,
respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC wind projects slightly
decreased mainly because of the relatively unstable wind resources in 2022.

(3) Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2022 for the PRC
solar projects in major regions such as Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
Anhui Province and Qinghai Province were 1,810 hours, 1,322 hours and
1,612 hours, respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC solar projects
remained stable compared to last year.

4) Average utilization hour for the PRC coal-fired projects increased in 2022 due
to increase in power generation arising from the increase in local demand.

(5) Average utilization hour for the PRC cogen projects decreased in 2022 due
to decrease in local demand, which led to decrease in total volume of power
generation.

(6) Average utilization hour for the PRC hydro projects remained stable compared
to last year.

(7) Our Korea gas-fired power projects had lower average utilization hour in 2022

mainly due to the lower electricity generation of Yulchon | Power Project and
Yulchon Il Power Project as a result of a decrease in the load of power grid
dispatch in 2022.
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The table below sets out the weighted average tariffs (inclusive of
value-added tax (“VAT”)) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Weighted average tariff - Electricity (inclusive of VAT)"

Unit

B
PRC Wind Projects®® RMB per kWh
TEERSEE® STREFARE
PRC Solar Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIXPZREIER® BFTEBARE
PRC Coal-fired Projects RMB per kWh
R AR IE B BTREARK
PRC Cogen Projects® RMB per kWh
RSB EEEY BFTEBARE
PRC Hydro Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIKEBIEE® BFTEBARE
Korea Gas-fired Projects® KRW per kWh
BEMRIER® STRF#ET

Weighted average tariff - steam (inclusive of VAT)

INEEFIGENE — &S (FEER)

PRC Cogen Projects”
REREHEERED

Notes:

(1)

2

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

RMB per ton
FPARE

The weighted average tariffs are affected not only by the change in the tariff for
each project but also the change in net power generation for each project.

The weighted average tariff of our PRC wind projects increased in 2022
mainly due to the higher tariff of the offshore wind power projects gradually
commenced operations during 2021 and 2022.

The weighted average tariff of our PRC solar projects decreased in 2022
mainly due to lower tariff of newly commissioned solar projects.

The weighted average tariff for our PRC cogen projects excludes steam tariff.
The weighted average tariff of our PRC hydro projects remained stable in
2022.

The increase in weighted average tariff for our Korea gas-fired projects was in
line with the increase in gas price in Korea.

The increase in weighted average tariff of steam in 2022 was in line with the
increase in PRC coal price.

Annual Report 2022
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The following table sets out the weighted average standard coal and
gas prices (exclusive of VAT) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Unit
B
PRC weighted average RMB per ton
standard coal price"®
FRE N4 R 2E IR E g @ FPARE
Korea weighted average gas price"® KRW per Nm?®

FE N FIHRARBEEOD

Notes:

M

SRELTTIRET

The weighted average standard coal and the weighted average gas prices
are determined based on the consumption of gas or coal in each applicable
period.

The PRC weighted average standard coal price in 2022 increased compared
to 2021 due to an increase in market coal price.

Our Korea weighted average gas price in 2022 increased substantially
compared to 2021 due to the increase in the prices known as the Japanese
Crude Cocktail, which are calculated with reference to the average prices of
crude oil imported into Japan and are an important determinant of natural
gas prices in Korean markets. Yulchon | Power Project's power purchase
agreement allows us to pass on the fuel cost fluctuations of the tariff to our
customers in accordance with the laws.

Segment revenue and segment results

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

(1)

()

(3)

Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of electricity;

Power plants in Korea — Generation and supply of electricity;
and

Management companies — Provision of management services
to power plants operated by CGN and its subsidiaries.

TRBHETXRAABERN AEEETE
REENEENMETERERERRARER
FEHEER)

For the year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
1,436.5 1,226.9
1,228.6 566.1
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

7 BB A — 51 ER

Segment revenue - external

Segment results DEEER

ROBCH U A

Unallocated other income

Unallocated operating expenses RO ERE
Unallocated finance costs ROV BER
Share of results of associates BEBE AT XS
Profit before taxation R A A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Restated)

I EBURA — S ED

Segment revenue - external

7D EREEAR

Segment results

RO BECE AU A
ROEEER
ROEMBER
BEBEQTER

Unallocated other income
Unallocated operating expenses
Unallocated finance costs
Share of results of associates

BRFR Al e A

Profit before taxation

Segment revenue for power plants in the PRC increased by 16.0%,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in power generation and
the newly commissioned wind and solar projects.

Segment results for power plants in the PRC decreased by 11.7%,
which was mainly attributable to the segment revenue being partially
net off by post-tax impact of the impairment losses recognized in
respect of property, plant and equipment of US$45.0 million.

Both segment revenue and segment results for power plants in Korea
increased substantially by 62.2% and 168.6% respectively, which was
mainly due to an increase in fuel margin and the contribution from the
109.5 MW Daesan biomass project which commenced commercial
operation in April 2021.
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HE20225F12831HLEE
Power Power
plants in plants in Management
the PRC Korea companies Total
PENER BRENER EEAT #ast
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET
1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056
287,229 85,096 1,326 373,651
32
(5,796)
(31,641)
(63,252)
272,994
#Z2021F128318LEE EET)
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea  companies Total
RENER EBEER BIENE] st
Us$’000 Us$°000 us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET
883,572 849,322 42,411 1,775,305
325,237 31,682 2,020 358,939
48
(5656)
(25,700)
(37,551)
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

Segment assets DEEE
Power plants in the PRC FEHY E
Power plants in Korea B8 [ BV BB R
Management companies BIENT
Total segment assets NEHEERE
Interests in associates ﬁfﬂﬁiM/\jE/:M&m
Unallocated e AN
- Right-of-use assets —ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ:ﬁﬁ
- Others —Hfh
Consolidated assets REEE
Segment liabilities AEEE
Power plants in the PRC H B A9 R
Power plants in Korea 52 61 89 E R
Management companies BERE

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated
- Bank borrowings

- Loans from fellow subsidiaries

DEPERIBER
Kok
—iRITEE

—RBERRWBABNER

- Lease liabilities —MHAE&aE
- Others —HAth
Consolidated liabilities rEBE
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UTAEIERDBEPHNAEREERE
BT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E:7))
6,743,376 7,065,248
1,481,181 1,478,564
3,050 4,754
8,227,607 8,548,566
74,268 149,238
2,258 3,381
39,800 32,769
8,343,933 8,733,954
5,149,935 5,526,998
876,975 895,278
772 958
6,027,682 6,423,234
100,000 100,000
700,000 700,000
2,274 3,381
14,118 12,128
6,844,074 7,238,743

The decrease in both segment assets and liabilities for power plants
in the PRC in 2022 was mainly due to the exchange loss in translating
the operation in the PRC from RMB to presentation currency in US$.
Taking away the translation impact, both segment assets and liabilities
for power plants in the PRC increased due to heavy investment in
property, plant and equipment which was supported with increase in
borrowings.

Taking away the translation impact, both segment assets and liabilities
for power plants in Korea increased mainly due to increase in trade
receivables and trade payables.

Scientific and Technological Innovation

To contribute to the achievement of the “dual carbon” strategic goal,
the Company continued to maintain its scale development while
promoting technological innovation, ensuring high-end and stable
operation of equipment, achieving cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement, and perfecting and improving the efficiency of its
existing assets.

2022 EERE
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Leading project of digital operation and maintenance. In the context of
the low-carbon market in the energy industry, the Company focused on
technologies related to grid-friendly new power systems, with the aim
of improving the operational efficiency and the level of safe operation
of the Company’s power generation assets and achieving the goal of
digital transformation of new energy projects through the integrated
application of digital and intelligent technologies such as the internet,
big data, cloud computing and artificial intelligence. The Company has
been focusing on promoting demonstration projects such as onshore
wind farms, digital twins for offshore wind turbine equipment and
unattended photovoltaic power stations.

Integration project of advanced technology of offshore wind power.
With the aim of enhancing, optimizing and expanding the offshore wind
power work, the Company focused on the innovation goal of domestic
first-class integration capability of advanced technology of offshore
wind power, aiming at the development trend of key technologies of
offshore wind power projects, accelerating the transformation and
integrated application of innovation results, and grasping the market
initiative of offshore wind power innovation and development. The
Company focused on research on key technologies such as offshore
price parity offshore wind power and deep-sea floating wind power.

In 2022, the Company was awarded the first batch of AAA-level
Integration of Informatization and Industrialization Management
System Certificate issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, and the building of digital operation and control
capacity of the Company successfully passed the Requirements for
Informatization and Industrialization Integration Management System
(EEMEMIEtMEEEBREK)) GB/T 23001-2017 and
the Requirements for New Type of Capabilities Classification of
Informatization and Industrialization Integration Management System
(EREMIXtRmEETEBAMAUETIIRERY) (T/ANTRE
10003-2021) system certification. Informatization and industrialization
integration management system is a set of digital transformation
method system that enterprises can refer to and implement, a system
framework that ensures the overall planning and advancement
of corporate strategy, business, technology, management, etc.,
and the first management system in China that covers the overall
situation, all elements and the whole process of informatization
and industrialization. In particular, AAA level (domain level) is the
highest certification level that can be applied for informatization and
industrialization integration management system, which marks the
authoritative recognition of the Company’s in-depth integration of
informatization with industrialization and digitalization, laying a solid
foundation for the digital development of the Company.

Scientific and technological innovation is the key engine to achieve the
“dual carbon” goal. By strengthening forward thinking and planning,
the Company intensified scientific and technological innovation, took
the “needs of new energy owners” as the guide, gathered quality
resources in the industry, and insisted on being technology-driven and
innovation-driven to improve and upgrade products and services, and
achieved low-carbon, green, sustainable and high-quality development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Social Responsibility

2022 is a key year to consolidate and expand the results of poverty
alleviation and deeply implement all-around rural revitalization
work. The Company actively implemented the decision of the
Central Committee of the CPC and the State Council on all round
rural revitalization and rural construction strategy, advanced the
established assistance project steadily with high standard, undertook
new assistance task with high profile, and improved the quality of
the assistance through multiple initiatives. Meanwhile, the Company
practiced its corporate mission of “Developing Clean Energy and
Building a Beautiful China”, conducting prevention and control of
the epidemics, environmental protection, soil and water conservation
and biodiversity protection actively while developing its main
responsibilities and main businesses, and made contributions to save
energy and reduce emissions as well as to construct a “Beautiful
China”.

In March 2022, the Company made a donation to Shengsi Charity
Federation to purchase pandemic prevention materials, so as to help
the prevention and control of the epidemics in Shengsi county. In
November 2022, the Company made a donation to Huaniao town in
Shengsi county through the government authority of county level, Eco-
environmental Protection Bureau in Shengsi county, to help the rural
revitalization and low carbon and energy saving reform in the island.

In May 2022, the Company launched the first marine organisms
propagation and release activity in Liupu Wharf, Rudong county
in Jiangsu Province. This activity facilitated a faster renovation of
portunus trituberculatus resources in the sea areas around the wind
farm, protected the ecological balance, and generated significant
ecological benefits, social benefits and economic benefits.

In December 2022, the Cenxi Dalong Wind Farm (Z2 K& E 8B 15) of
the Company in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region won the prize of
“2022 Environment-friendly Practical Technologies and Demonstration
Projects” issued by the China Association of Environmental
Protection Industry, as the wind farm has been implementing the
“Three Simultaneous” for environmental protection, soil and water
conservation strictly in compliance with environment-protection
requirements since its early construction by conducting vegetation
restoration on upper and lower slope timely, preventing and governing
the surface soil, and reusing the muck.

Exchange of Ideas with Industrial Peers

In September 2022, Central Enterprise Think Tank Alliance (HRSR 1>
HEER ) organized the 28th Think Tank Salon of State-owned
Enterprises (R{%5E 7V BE) and the 3rd “Liupukang Energy Forum”
(FN#mIBEJR/IE) in Beijing, the PRC, and the theme of which was
“speeding up the construction of new power system and striving to
push the dual carbon goal”. The Company was invited to attend such
forum and participated in the discussion during the dialogue sessions
with enterprises. The conference closely surrounded the essential roles
of major energy enterprises in achieving the ambitious goal of “Carbon
Peak, Carbon Neutrality” and contributing towards the establishment of
new power system and in-depth discussions were conducted on such
matter.
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In November 2022, as commissioned by the NEA Electric Power
Planning & Engineering Institute (887773 258 5t 4805%) and Renewable
Energy Engineering Institute (7K 87K F] %ﬁél sH48 %) organized
a press conference on the cost of electric power projects put into
operation during the “13th Five-Year Plan” period. The Company
was invited to participate in such conference and spoke as a
representative. During such conference, the costs of power engineering
projects (including thermal power, nuclear power, hydropower, wind
power, photovoltaic power and power transmission and transformation)
during the “13th Five-Year Plan” period were announced. Through
the trend analysis of costs and regional benchmark in the electric
power industry, it was beneficial to the scientific development of
power policies and cost control policies for the “14th Five-Year
Plan” and promoted power enterprises to further enhance their cost
management, which provided useful references and assistances for
power enterprises to implement cost constraints effectively. Such
measures helped to promote the construction of new power system
and contributed towards the achievement of “Carbon Peak, Carbon
Neutrality” goal ultimately.

Brand Promotion: Recognitions and Awards

Adhering to the work style of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
Pragmatism”, the Company strongly advocates the initiation of quality
management activity groups and enhances the quality management
level of the enterprise. The Company encourages employees to exert
the spirit of innovation and enhances their motivation to participate in
innovation practices, so as to inject technological vitality into the high-
quality development of the Company.

In April 2022, the “Achievements of Quality Management Team of
Power Construction of 2021” (2021 EEHEXREEEE /A
SEENRER ) organized by the China Electric Power Construction
Association (FEIE &K 21 F) published the results, where the
Taipingshan Wind Power project of the Company in Shandong Province
was awarded four second-class prizes in total.

In May 2022, the Dangtu Fishing-Photovoltaic Power Complementary
project, the Dongzhi Zhaotan Wind Power project and the Dingyuan
Phase | Fishing-Photovoltaic Power Complementary project of the
Company in Anhui Province won the first-class prize, the third-class
prize and the third-class prize of “Achievements of Quality Control
of Electric Power Industry in Anhui Province of 2022” (I2022% %
HWEBNITEEEEEMRE)) awarded by the Anhui Electric Power
Association (Z#IEBI1HE), respectively.

In June 2022, the “Fifth National Equipment Management and
Technological Innovation Achievements” ((FRHEE2ERESEEAR
MBI E A1) organized by China Equipment Management Association
(FEZHEEEWE)published the results, where each of the
Taipingshan Wind Power project in Shandong Province, the Mingin
Wind Power project in Gansu Province and Hongshagang Wind Power
project in Gansu Province of the Company was awarded one second-
class prize.
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In June and July 2022, the “Achievements of Exchange Activities of
Quality Management Team of 2022” (I 2022FE B & EB/NEA T
SEENAL 2 1) organized by China Association for Water and Electricity
Quality Management (FEIKFEBHEEEEHE) published the
results, where the Taipingshan Wind Power project of the Company in
Shandong Province was awarded four third-class prizes in total.

In July 2022, the Mingin Wind Power project, the Hongshagang Wind
Power project, the Guazhou Tianrun Wind Power project and the Jinta
Solar project in Gansu Province of the Company were awarded one
third-class prize, two third-class prizes, one third-class prize and one
third-class prize in the “Gansu Province Quality Management Team
Activities of 2022” (T2022F EHH A EEE R/ EEEN) by Gansu
Quality Association (HEE & E21%E), respectively.

The Company has maintained strict control over production and
operation indicators, keeps creating and seeks truth from facts in our
work, in order to improve the quality management level of enterprises;
encourages employees to be prudent and innovative in their work,
and constantly improves the motivation of employees to participate
in the work, striving for the realization of the goal of power stations.
In August 2022, the China Electricity Council announced the results:
the Qingyun Shangtang Wind Farm in Shandong Province, the Leling
Zhuji Wind Farm in Shandong Province, the Lianshui Tangji Wind
Farm in Jiangsu Province and the Longnan Yangcun Wind Farm in
Jiangxi Province of the Company won the honorary title of “AAAA-
level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical
Indicators for National Wind Farms in China”, respectively; the Anqiu
Huangminshan Wind Farm in Shandong Province and the Baoying
Xianfeng Wind Farm in Jiangsu Province of the Company won the
honorary title of “AAA-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production
and Operation Statistical Indicators for National Wind Farms in China”,
respectively; the Xitieshan Photovoltaic Power Station in Qinghai
Province of the Company won the honorary title of “AAAA-level Unit in
the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators
for National Solar Photovoltaic Power Stations in China”; the Wulan
Photovoltaic Power Station in Qinghai Province of the Company won
the honorary title of “AAA-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production
and Operation Statistical Indicators for National Solar Photovoltaic
Power Stations in China”.

The Company strictly implements the code of conduct of “integrity
and transparency, professionalism, efficient execution and teamwork”
and strives to create a working atmosphere in pursuit of excellence,
so as to enhance organizational vibrancy of the enterprise, actively
create learning-oriented teams and improve core capability building,
which contributes technical strength for the high-quality development
of the Company. In April 2022, the Shengsi 5#6# offshore wind
power project in Zhejiang Province of the Company was awarded as a
“Pioneer among Zhejiang Workers” (I#512 T A 4c$25% ) by Zhejiang
Federation of Trade Union G I &4 T ).
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The Company continues to implement General Secretary Xi Jinping’s
important statement on “technological innovation, management
innovation, organizational innovation, model innovation and brand
innovation” and constantly advances the innovation work on materials
management of the electric power industry in a down-to-earth and
effective manner. In June 2022, China Electric Power Equipment
Management Association (FEE R FE SR E) issued the “Notice
on Publishing the 2021 National Electric Power Industry Material
Management Innovation Achievement Project” (KRER3EMF2021E 2
HEBNITEMEERAIFMRIBEENEHN)). The project named
“three management methods empower the central procurement of
equipment, achieving lower cost and higher efficiency” ((=IBEIE
FRREINERFEPIRE > BIREARIERL)) reported by the Company
won the first-class prize (Management Field), while the project named
“focus on the dual carbon target to seek management innovation and
practices on the coordinated development of the industrial chain of
new energy” ((RELREE HEMERELBHREZENEIER
HEIERE)) won the second-class prize (Management Field), which
were the first time of the Company winning innovation achievement
awards on materials management of national electric power industry.
The Company will continue to adhere to take the innovation-driven
mode as a strong foothold, construct innovative platforms and promote
innovation achievements, so as to enable the Company to achieve
high-quality development.

The Company continues to focus on the field of investor relations, so
as to improve the transparency of the Company steadily. In September
2022, the Company won two awards at the 8th Investor Relations
Awards (the “IR Awards”) of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association (HKIRA), namely “Best IR Company” and “Best ESG (E)”".
In terms of individuals and teams, Mr. Zhang Zhiwu, the Chairman,
President and Executive Director of the Company, won the “Best IR
by Chairman/CEQ” award. Mr. Liu Chao, the Chief Accountant of the
Company, won the “Best IR by CFO” award. Mr. Lee Kin, the Assistant
President and Company Secretary of the Company, won the “Best IRO”
award. The investor relations team of the Company won the “Best IR
Team” award.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

As a result of retrospective restatements due to amendments to IAS
16, the profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
increased by US$59.4 million from the comparative figures previously
reported for the year ended 31 December 2021.

If one-off adjustments are taken out, which mainly include (1) 2021
profit impact of such retrospective restatements of US$59.4 million,
and (2) post-tax impairment losses recognized in respect of property,
plant and equipment of US$61.8 million in 2022, the profit and
earnings per share of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 would have increased by 34.0% and 35.9% respectively from
the comparative figures previously reported for the year ended 31
December 2021.

In 2022, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$2,430.1 million,
representing an increase of 36.9% compared with last year. In 2022,
the operating profit of the Group amounted to US$589.7 million,
representing an increase of 22.9% compared with last year.

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to US$195.1 million, representing a decrease of US$49.2
million or 20.1% compared with last year. In 2022, the profit of the
Group amounted to US$214.4 million, representing a decrease of
US$46.7 million or 17.9% compared with last year.

Revenue

In 2022, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$2,430.1 million,
representing an increase of 36.9% compared with US$1,775.3 million
of last year. The revenue derived from wind projects in the PRC
amounted to US$692.8 million, representing an increase of 21.7%
compared with US$569.2 million of last year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in power generation and the newly
commissioned installed capacity from the wind projects.

The revenue derived from Korea amounted to US$1,377.4 million,
representing an increase of 62.2% compared with US$849.3 million
of last year. Such increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the
substantial increase in electricity tariff and the contribution from the
109.5 MW Daesan biomass project which commenced commercial
operation in April 2021.

Operating Expenses

In 2022, the operating expenses of the Group amounted to
US$1,840.4 million, representing an increase of 42.0% compared with
US$1,295.7 million of last year. The increase in operating expenses
was mainly due to substantial increase in gas costs of Yulchon | & Il
Power Projects. In addition, the commencement of operation of the
new wind projects has resulted in the increase of depreciation and
staff costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The breakdown of operating expenses is analyzed as below: KEFZBRMAUWT -
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
€<= 7))
Operating expenses: KSR
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet JER B KRR ARE
SR 1,247,302 778,486
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)¥ R KB EITE 335,969 266,346
Repair and maintenance HEERFRE 29,971 37,684
Staff costs BIMAE 109,395 102,854
Recognition of loss allowance of trade and other FEERHL B 5 K E MthE W AIE K
receivables and contract assets EREEHEER 2,791 20,292
Other operating expenses (note) HEM&=Emmx (a2) 114,976 90,047
Total operating expenses SRS 48 %A 1,840,404 1,295,709
Note: Mzt :
2022 2021
20225 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Operation support expenses KETIRAY 30,168 14,712
Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water RN B2 E Rk E 11,656 12,350
Other maintenance cost Hith# g A 16,863 10,512
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 5,008 7,161
Transportation and entertainment expenses B EMER 8,006 7,107
Outsourcing expenses INEE A 4,286 6,992
Tools and consumables TERHER 3,552 5,303
Consultancy fees BER 3,954 5,142
Insurance expenses 1RI8E B 6,718 4,480
Other taxes, surcharges and duties HhiRIE & R iR & 6,795 3,678
Miscellaneous operating expenses HIBEERY 13,216 8,652
Expense relating to short-term leases BISHRTAE BRI 2,085 2,216
Office expenses AT 2,669 1,742
114,976 90,047
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating Profit

In 2022, the operating profit, which is equal to revenue minus
operating expenses, of the Group amounted to US$589.7 million,
representing an increase of US$110.1 million or 22.9% compared with
US$479.6 million of last year. The increase in operating profit was
mainly caused by the increase in power generation from wind projects
and the increase in fuel margin of Korea projects.

Other Income

Other income mainly represented income on sales of generating rights
and capacity, interest income and government grants. In 2022, other
income of the Group amounted to US$42.7 million, representing an
increase of US$1.4 million or 3.4% compared with US$41.3 million of
last year.

Other gains and losses

In 2022, the other losses amounted to US$69.0 million. The other
losses mainly represented impairment losses of US$45.0 million
and US$21.8 million recognized in respect of property, plant and
equipment for the PRC wind projects and Korea projects respectively.

Finance Costs

In 2022, the finance costs of the Group amounted to US$227.1 million,
representing an increase of US$38.9 million or 20.7% compared with
US$188.2 million of last year. The increase in finance costs was mainly
attributable to the increase in interest expenses when more wind
projects gradually commenced operations during 2021 and 2022 and
increase in interest rates.

Share of Results of Associates

In 2022, the share of losses of associates amounted to US$63.3
million, representing an increase of US$25.7 million compared with
US$37.6 million of last year. The increase in losses of the associates
was mainly affected by the increase in market coal price during the
year.

Loss on Disposal of a Subsidiary

In 2022, the Group entered into an equity transfer agreement to
dispose of the entire equity interest in CGN (Hubei) Integrated Energy
Services Company Limited (“CGN Hubei”) to CGN Wind Energy at a
consideration of RMB200.5 million (equivalent to US$29.9 million). The
disposal was completed in June 2022, when the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in CGN Hubei and recognized a loss on disposal
of US$67,000 under other gains and losses.
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Income Tax

In 2022, the income tax of the Group amounted to US$58.6 million,
representing an increase of US$24.5 million or 71.9% compared with
US$34.1 million of last year, which was mainly due to the expiration of
the preferential tax rate period of certain subsidiaries in the PRC.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased from US$375.0
million as at 31 December 2021 to US$440.6 million as at 31
December 2022, which was mainly due to the increase in net cash
generated from operating activities.

Net Debt/Equity Ratio

The Group’s net debt/equity ratio decreased from 3.94 as at 31
December 2021 to 3.64 as at 31 December 2022, which was mainly
due to the decrease in loans from fellow subsidiaries.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 21 March 2023, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 of 0.91 US cents per Share (equivalent to 7.09 HK
cents per Share), totalling approximately US$39.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$304.4 million), which is calculated based on
4,290,824,000 Shares in issue on 21 March 2023. The payout ratio of
the proposed dividend is 20%.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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Earnings per Share sRER

Year ended 31 December

HE128318LLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
US cents US cents
Al ES]
(Restated)
(&)

Earnings per share, basic and diluted — sREMN
calculated based on the number of EARREE - UFERET

ordinary shares outstanding at year end AN ERNEETE 4.55 5.69

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HLLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
USs$’000 UsS$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
<=2 7))
Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic ~ FERsESREA KIS
and diluted earnings per share (profit for the BANEN EATEER
year attributable to ordinary equity f% B8 FE 1 - R im A1)
shareholders of the Company) 195,143 244,274
’000 ‘000
TR FR
Number of ordinary shares outstanding FREBTENEBERNEE
at year end 4,290,824 4,290,824
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables — contracts with customers B EBRDR—FEE &R
Less: allowance for credit losses B EERBEE

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
91 - 180 days 91FE180H
Over 180 days 180 A E

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$317.8 million
(2021: US$209.3 million) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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As at 31 December
#®12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
751,352 760,992
(12,038) (16,521)
739,314 744,471

NTF#HINREBRZEZDN (R AESR
HEEE) 2N EZERBERRRESEEHE
BHEBIRE DA

As at 31 December

®12831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
340,956 221,325
16,301 30,168
47,574 88,368
334,483 404,610
739,314 744,471

R2022F 128318 AEBMNE 5 EUWER A
HEEREHEB NI RAMBRENEREMES
317.8EE £ 7T (20214 1 209.3FE E7t) HIFE
WERF FEF B AR ZHARH30890XRA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$421.5 million
(2021: US$535.2 million) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on the
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff of Renewable
Energy ((AIB4&REREEMMMEEESEERINE)). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix based on the historical settlement records, latest
aging profile of those receivables and forward looking information that
is available without undue cost and effort. As a result, during the year
ended 31 December 2022, expected credit losses of US$3.2 million
in respect of trade receivables were reversed (2021: recognition of
expected credit losses of US$15.7 million) and expected credit losses
of US$6.0 million in respect of contract assets were recognized (2021:
US$4.7 million).

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

Contract Assets

Tariff income from sales of renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses

W EEREEA

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff
Subsidy List (the “List”) by the relevant government authorities. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the relevant
right becomes unconditional, upon the registration of the Group’s
respective operating power plants in the List.
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2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
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Trade Payables

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H Mk

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 27 days (2021:
22 days) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are
settled within the credit period.

Financial Position

Non-current assets decreased from US$7,074.5 million as at 31
December 2021 to US$6,451.0 million as at 31 December 2022,
which was mainly due to the decrease in property, plant and
equipment during the year.

Current assets increased from US$1,659.4 million as at 31 December
2021 to US$1,892.9 million as at 31 December 2022, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in contract assets.

Current liabilities decreased from US$2,805.1 million as at 31
December 2021 to US$2,467.5 million as at 31 December 2022,
which was mainly due to the decrease in loans from fellow subsidiaries
due within one year and other payables and accruals, which was
partially offset by the increase in short-term bank borrowings.

Non-current liabilities decreased from US$4,433.6 million as at 31
December 2021 to US$4,376.6 million as at 31 December 2022,
which was mainly due to the decrease in long-term bank borrowings.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEE R i

Goodwill GEES
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
COST |57
At 1 January B»1BE1H 182,908 178,744
Exchange differences E R Z=2E (15,395) 4,164
At 31 December R12831H 167,513 182,908
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES  E it EEE
At 1 January B1A1H (14,110) (9,5083)
Impairment losses recognized in R ANERNREEE
profit or loss - (4,335)
Exchange differences BE 7 = 2R 1,193 (272)
(12,917) (14,110)
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December ®12831H 154,596 168,798
Impairment tests for cash-generating units OEHENREELEMNMZR
containing goodwill B
Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”) BENREUTREESASBEU (FREEXE
or group of cash-generating units as follows: fii) FIREEEEAAR -
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FE7T
Wind Energy Subsidiaries REHEAE
(as defined below) (note) (BERT) (Wa2) 112,560 122,956
Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIGEEM B AR
(as defined below) (note) (&R T (Hz) 40,600 44,351
Multiple units without significant goodwill TEREAEENLEEN 1,436 1,491
154,596 168,798
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Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved
by management which cover operation periods ranging from 7 to 23 years (2021: 8
to 24 years). The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rates ranged
from 10.18% to 11.89% (2021: 10.00% to 11.52%). Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which
is determined based on the installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy
Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries and management’s expectations for the
market development. The estimated annual average growth rates in electricity generation
volume range from 0% to 9.4% (2021: -9.6% to 7.4%).

At 31 December 2022, since the recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries
and Solar Energy Subsidiaries are higher than their respective carrying amounts,
no impairment loss was recognized during the year (2021: impairment losses of
US$819,000 and US$3,516,000 were recognized in certain CGUs of the Group’s Wind
Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively).

An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in impairment losses of US$526,000
and nil to the CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy
Subsidiaries respectively. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume will not cause the carrying
amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries to exceed their
recoverable amounts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank Borrowings

The Group’s total bank borrowings increased from US$4,245.9 million
as at 31 December 2021 to US$4,364.5 million as at 31 December
2022. Details of bank borrowings are as follows:

Secured BiLH
Unsecured Eg il

The maturity profile of bank borrowings

is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —E P L BRBEME
After 2 years but within 5 years MEMU EBARBBREE
Over 5 years EEMUE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had committed unutilized banking
facilities of US$2,022.5 million (2021: US$2,445.9 million).

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities
that include RMB, US$ and KRW. The bank borrowings of the Group
carry interest rates which range from 2.50% to 7.04% (31 December
2021: 1.41% to 4.66%) per annum during the year ended 31
December 2022. The analysis of bank borrowings with fixed interest
rate and variable interest rate is analyzed below:

Fixed rate B & HZE
Variable rate FEH=E

IRITIEENEIEERAT

EIRJE 5T b 0T

IRITEE
AEBNRBITEEH2021F12831HH
4,245 OE B ETIBME2022F12831HK
4,364 5EBET - RITBEEMNFEBAT :

As at 31 December

®12831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
2,864,220 3,188,682
1,500,260 1,057,209
4,364,480 4,245,891
957,392 763,503
397,449 399,027
1,369,181 1,191,136
1,640,458 1,892,225
3,407,088 3,482,388
4,364,480 4,245,891

R2022F12A31H  AEBARFERAMIETE
AEEEBEESA2,0225 58 E7T (20214F ¢
2,445.98H B %E7T) °

RBREHANAARITEEUSEEERENY
REEEEHE BIEARE - ExkBE A&
RITEEREE2022E12831HILEENEFR)
KN F250%F7.04% (2021128318 : 1.41%
Z4.66%) o MiEEF X FENAEF BMIRTT
BESRINT

As at 31 December

®12H831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°'000
FET FET
1,169,986 820,021
3,194,494 3,425,870
4,364,480 4,245,891
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Loans from Fellow Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amounts represent:

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

RERRBABER

- due within 1 year: —FP1FEREE
CGN Finance Co., Ltd. (“CGN Finance’) FEZHBEERSE AT
(T EZEA75)
CGN Wind Power Company, Limited FEZREEGRAT
(“CGN Wind Energy”) (ThEZRAE))

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

RERBRBABER

- due after 1 year: —FERTER

CGN Finance FEZ TS

CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited FEZERKLERRAE
(“CGNPC Huasheng”) (TR ERER))

China Clean Energy Development Limited R[5 2 55 R R &

(“China Clean Energy”)

Notes:

(i)(a)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

BRRF
(TR BB REETRD)

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB706.1 million (equivalent to US$101.4
million) (31 December 2021: RMB1,111.5 million (equivalent to US$174.3
million)) are unsecured, interest bearing ranged from 3.45% to 4.21% (31
December 2021: 3.45% to 4.21%) per annum and repayable within one year;
and

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB34.4 million (equivalent to US$4.9 million) (31
December 2021: Nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate
announced by the PRC National Interbank Funding Center (‘RMB Loan Prime
Rate”) minus 0.60% to 1% per annum and repayable within one year.

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB61.7 million (equivalent to US$8.9 million)
(31 December 2021: RMB50.1 million (equivalent to US$7.9 million)) are
unsecured, interest bearing ranged from 3.60% to 4.21% (31 December 2021:
4.21%) per annum and repayable in 2030 to 2035 (31 December 2021:
2035); and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,168.2 million (equivalent to US$167.7
million) (31 December 2021: RMB949.8 million (equivalent to US$149.0
million)) are unsecured, interest bearing at the RMB Loan Prime Rate minus
0.6% to 1.35% (31 December 2021: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0.39% to
0.66%) per annum and repayable in 2031 to 2040 (31 December 2021: 2037
to 2040).
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As at 31 December

##12831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
106,335 174,340
545,617 988,127
651,952 1,162,467
176,591 156,821
250,000 250,000
450,000 450,000
876,591 856,821
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(ii) Loans from CGN Wind Energy of RMB1,000.0 million (equivalent to US$156.8
million), RMB1,100.0 million (equivalent to US$172.5 million) and RMB4,200.0
million (equivalent to US$658.8 million) as at 31 December 2021 were repaid
during the year.

Loan from CGN Wind Energy of RMB3,800.0 million (equivalent to US$545.6
million) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3.50% per annum and repayable in
2023.

(iii) Loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250.0 million (31 December 2021:
US$250.0 million) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months London Interbank
Offered Rate plus 1.30% (31 December 2021: 3 months London Interbank
Offered Rate plus 1.30%) per annum and repayable in 2024.

(iv) Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450.0 million (31 December 2021:
US$450.0 million) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% (31 December
2021: 4.50%) per annum and repayable in 2025.

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditure decreased by US$897.0 million to
US$362.8 million in 2022 from US$1,259.8 million in 2021.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Pledged Assets

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment, trade
receivables, contract assets and bank deposits for credit facilities
granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the total book
value of the pledged assets amounted to US$1,785.0 million (2021:
US$2,202.6 million).

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2022.
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EIRE 5T B AT

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had about 1,936 full-time
employees, with the majority based in China. The Group provides its
employees with salaries and bonuses, as well as employee benefits,
including retirement schemes, medical and life insurance schemes.

Employees located in China are covered by the mandatory social
security schemes required by local practice and regulations of the
PRC, which are essentially defined contribution schemes. The Group
is required by the PRC law to contribute a certain percentage of the
average salaries of the employees to various schemes in accordance
with the respective regulatory requirements of each city. The PRC
government is directly responsible for the payment of the benefits to
these employees.

In Korea, the Group is required by law to contribute 4.5% of the
employees’ monthly average salaries for the national pension, 3.545%
for national health insurance (12.81% of the national health insurance
contribution for long term care insurance), 1.15% for unemployment
insurance, 1.06%(Seoul Office)/0.804% (Yulchon)/0.804%(Daesan) for
the industrial accident compensation insurance and 0.06% for a wage
claim guarantee fund.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a mandatory provident fund
scheme established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485). Employees contribute 5.0% of their relevant
income to the mandatory provident fund scheme and the Group
contributes 10.0% of each employee’s monthly base salary.

The remuneration of senior management is determined by making
reference to the performance of individuals and the group and market
trends. The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)
for the year end 31 December 2022 were within the following bands:

B & R FrBMECR

R2022F 128318 AEENEZHEE AN
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ZERESEH
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BB FH4.5%M M 3.545%% B R & FEF
B (ERBEREHDN12.81%4 RPAEER
BE) ~1.15% A KER1.06% (BEBEPWER)
,0.804% (ZEAY) 0.804% (KLL) & T EEINE
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BEME AT BRPIR LA BF EAEE S
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EREEBNHMEN2EBARASERKRE
URHIGBABE & ZE2022F12831HIEE
E aREEE (FaEES) NHMEL TS
B

No. of senior

management
EREEEAY
Less than HK$500,001 /DiA500,0018 75 6
(Equivalent to US$64,001) (HBE764,001%7T)
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,0017 75 21,000,000 75 0
(Equivalent to US$64,001 to US$128,000) (1B E1164,001E 75 % 128,000 7T)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,00078 7T 0
(Equivalent to US$128,001 to US$192,000) (tHE72128,001£ 57t E 192,000 7T)
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 722,000,000 75 4
(Equivalent to US$192,001 to US$255,000) (1B E1192,001% 57T E 255,000 7T)
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 5% 2,500,000 70 1
(Equivalent to US$255,001 to US$319,000) (18 E 11 255,001E 7t E319,000%7T)
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 £3,000,00058 7T 1
(Equivalent to US$319,001 to US$383,000) (1B E1319,001% 7t £383,000% 1)
Total st 12
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Environmental Policies and Performance

PRC
Wind and Solar Projects

In order to protect and continuously improve the living environment
and ecological environment, the Company ensures good management
of wastewater, exhaust gas, solid wastes and hazardous wastes in
production and operation activities, so as to achieve environmental
protection to the greatest extent. In accordance with the requirements
of environment-related laws and regulations such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Water and
Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, and in line
with the instructions from General Secretary Xi Jinping on ecology,
the Company attached great importance to the prevention and control
of pollution of the ecological environment and conducts monthly
inspections on potential environmental hazards. The Company has
also had waste quota in place, controlled key pollutants and strictly
implemented environmental and water protection measures for wind
and solar projects, which are designed, constructed and put into use
at the same time as the main projects. Through analysis, identification
and screening on each level of important environmental elements
of wind and solar projects, power farms and power stations, the
Company has adopted protective measures for the possible adverse
environmental impacts. Effective environmental protection plans and
countermeasures are formulated for each of the Company’s regional
wind and solar projects according to their nature, scale and location to
ensure that all environmental protection work is carried out smoothly
and that the supply of green energy is in harmony with the natural
environment.
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Hydro Projects

The hydro projects of the Company strictly comply with the
environmental protection requirements of the local government.
Being a renewable and clean energy resource, hydro projects almost
discharge no pollutant. The requirements of the local government on
hydro projects concern waste disposal, noise control, flow control and
ecological protection.

Our requirements on waste disposal are implemented according to
GB8978-1996 standard, we have achieved grade one standard in
wastewater disposal with all indices up to standard. In respect of our
requirements on noise control, they are implemented according to
GBZ/T189.8-2007 “Work Place Physical Agents Measurement, Part
VIIl: Noise KTESGFIERZREESHWD - BEF))”, GBZ2.2-
2007 “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the
Workplace, Part Il:Physical Agents ( Z{EIZFAE ERZREHFZHER
H5E2%8 ) #FEAIZE)) J and Provision 20 of Order No.47 of State
Administration of Work Safety, as well as the relevant requirements
set out in the Laws on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases ({BZEFPHIA7%)), all monitoring results are of the required
standard, and there are no external complaints arising from noise
emission. In respect of the flow control requirements for environmental
protection, they are implemented according to the water resources
distribution plan “One Station One Strategy” of local water authority.
There were no accidents caused by power generation flow change
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Thermal Projects (coal-fired, oil-fired, gas-fired including cogen)

The environmental protection systems and facilities of the Company’s
coal-fired and gas-fired power projects complied with applicable
national and local environmental protection regulations. Environmental
management in all of the Company’s operating project companies
met the relevant international standards and have been accredited
with ISO14001 (environmental management system) certification.
In addition, the Company’s coal-fired and gas-fired power projects
have their own environmental protection office and staff responsible
for monitoring and operating its environmental protection equipment.
Other than the “Continuous Emission Monitoring system (CEMS)”,
another “Remote Emissions Monitoring Systems (REMS)” are also
equipped in all coal-fired and gas-fired projects to continuously
monitor power projects emissions at the relevant project companies.
The Company has continued to invest substantially in energy saving
and environmental upgrading facilities at the projects to comply with
the regulations and emissions reduction. By the end of 2015, all de-
sulfurization, de-nitration and particulate matter removal facilities have
been installed in coal-fired projects and put into service as planned.
By the end of 2017, the coal-fired power plants in operation (Nantong
in Jiangsu and Huangshi in Hubei) have all completed the “Ultra low
emission” technical improvement to further reduce the emission of
NOx, SO2 as well as dust, and have been receiving the environmental
tariff rebate from the Government. The Company is of the view that the
Company is not in material breach of any applicable environmental
laws or regulations as at 31 December 2022.
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Air emissions of all existing thermal power projects in the PRC have
met the more stringent latest national emissions regulation, which
became effective on 1 January 2012. According to the PRC Air
Pollution Prevention Law ({FZE AR MBI KRITEEEZED),
penalty of up to RMB1,000,000 is levied for non-compliance. The
environmental laws and regulations also impose fines on enterprises
which violate such laws, regulations or decrees and provide for other
sanctions including the possible closure of any power projects which
fail to rectify activities that cause environmental damage. As at 31
December 2022, the Company had not received any sanctions to
cease operation or rectification to environmental damages.

Korea

The Company is committed to the establishment of good standards
of environmental protection and management practices. The
environmental policies and facilities of the Company’s power projects
in Korea are in compliance with the applicable national and local
environmental protection regulations in Korea. The Company’s power
projects in Korea have their own environmental protection offices
and staffs responsible for monitoring and operating its environmental
protection equipment. Environmental monitoring system required by the
applicable national and local environmental protection regulations are
equipped in the Company’s power projects in Korea. Environmental
management in our operating project companies is meeting the
relevant international standards and have been accredited with
1ISO14001 (environmental management system) certification.

In addition, the Company’s power projects in Korea have passed the
relevant supervisory inspections on air emission levels and effluent
water quality by the local government. We are of the view that we are
not in material breach of applicable environmental laws or regulations
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Our primary customers are the electricity offtakers for our projects. Our
primary suppliers are the fuel providers for our projects. Our largest
customer is Korea Power Exchange (“KPX”) and our largest supplier is
Korea Gas Corporation (“KOGAS”).

KPX is a non-profit, neutral and independent organization in South
Korea’s power industry. KPX ensures the reliability of power supply
by coordinating the flow of electricity in all regions of South Korea.
To secure future power reliability, KPX runs a sophisticated national
planning process for generation and transmission expansion by active
cooperation and coordination with the Korea government. KPX has
become our largest customer since the combined cycle of Yulchon
Il Power Project commenced operations and we have maintained a
business relationship with KPX since 2009.

KOGAS is an independent third party supplier of gas for Yulchon
| Power Project, Yulchon | Fuel Cell Projects and Yulchon Il Power
Project in Korea. KOGAS is a publicly listed company on the Korean
Exchange that engages in the production and distribution of gas in
Korea. KOGAS was incorporated by the Korean government in 1983
and is the sole wholesale supplier of natural gas in Korea.
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Other Update on the Properties in the PRC
with Title Defects

The construction work for the main structure of the project relating to
machinery room and ancillary facilities of Mianyang Sanjiang Meiya
Hydropower Company Limited (435 = I =32 /KE B PRAE)) has been
completed in October 2021.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2022, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RISK FACTORS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risks Relating to the Industry

Our power projects are located in the PRC and Korea, both of which
have undergone, and may continue to undergo, regulatory changes.
Governmental regulations affect all aspects of our power project
operations, including the amount and timing of electricity generation,
the setting of tariffs, compliance with power grid controls, dispatch
directives and environmental protection. Regulatory changes in the
PRC and Korea can affect, among other things, dispatch policies,
clean and renewable energy and environmental compliance policies
and tariffs, and may result in a change of tariff setting procedures or
mandatory installation of costly equipment and technologies to reduce
environmental pollutants.

Further, the solar power projects are highly dependent on solar
illumination conditions, and the wind power projects are dependent
particularly on wind conditions. Extreme wind or weather conditions
could lead to downtime of the wind power projects. Solar illumination
conditions and wind conditions vary across seasons and locations,
and could be unpredictable and are out of our control.
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Risk Relating to Fuel Cost

The non-renewable energy power projects of the Group require
supplies of coal, oil and gas as fuel. Fuel costs represent a significant
portion of our operating expenses and the operating expenses of our
associates. The extent to which our profit is ultimately affected by the
cost of fuel depends on our ability to pass through fuel costs to our
customers as set out under the relevant regulatory guidelines and
the terms of our power purchase agreement for a particular project,
as we currently do not take any measures to hedge our exposure to
fuel price fluctuations. Our fuel costs are also affected by the volume
of electricity generated because the coal consumption rate of coal-
fired and cogen power projects decreases when we generate more
electricity as a result of economies of scale. In the PRC, government
tariff regulations limit our ability to pass through changes in fuel
costs. In Korea, while our Yulchon | Power Project is able to pass
through our exposure to fuel price fluctuations through fuel cost pass
through provisions in the tariff formula, our Yulchon Il Power Project
and Daesan | Power Project receive payments based on the system
marginal price, which is influenced by market demand and supply, and
may not fully reflect the power plants’ respective fuel price fluctuations.
Our diversified generation portfolio enables us to diversify the risks
that we would face to utilize a single resource for electricity generation.
In particular, our exposure to several fuel types mitigates risks such as
price increases in or the availability of any particular fuel source.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations
in interest rates on our debt with floating interest rates based on
market prevailing rates. We undertake debt obligations to support
asset acquisition and general corporate purposes including capital
expenditures and working capital needs. Certain amount of our
indebtedness is calculated in accordance with floating interest rate
or interest rate that are subject to adjustment by our lenders. We
periodically review the ratio of debt with floating interest rates to debt
with fixed rates, taking into account the potential impact on our profit,
interest coverage and cash flows.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The functional currency of the Company is US dollars, and our
reportable profit is affected by fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. We collect most of our revenue from our projects in
RMB and KRW, some of which are converted into foreign currencies
to (1) purchase foreign-made equipment and parts for repair and
maintenance; (2) make investments in certain joint ventures or
acquire interests from other companies; (3) pay out dividends to the
shareholders of our project companies; and (4) repay our outstanding
debt. During the reporting period, the Group used forward exchange
contracts to manage its exchange rate risk until the settlement date of
foreign currency receivables or payables. By managing and monitoring
the risks of foreign currency, we ensure that appropriate measures are
adopted effectively in a timely manner.
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PROSPECTS

2023 is the beginning year to implement the spirit of the 20th National
Congress of the CPC and a crucial year under the “14th Five-Year
Plan” to inherit the past and usher in the future, but the external
environment remains severe and complicated. The Company will
implement the work style of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
Pragmatism” thoroughly while insisting on integrity and innovation
in forging ahead with determination. Also, we will consolidate the
development foundation for traditional businesses intensively and
accelerate the establishment of a new development pattern, spare
all efforts in fostering new advantages in development and strive to
achieve various tasks and goals of production and operation as well
as reform and development, so as to facilitate the construction of first-
class renewable energy enterprise through high-quality development.

1. Focus on the development of traditional businesses and
determine to win three key battles, thereby pushing the
operating results of the Company to reach new heights:

The Company will make every effort to win the battle of high-
quality resources and spare all efforts for large bases and
large-scale projects. We will promote conventional parity and
distributed projects actively and expand and innovate the way
of resource acquisition vigorously. Moreover, the Company
will use every effort to win the battle of putting projects
into operation and accelerate the efficient conversion and
implementation of project resources, so as to improve the
conversion rate of new projects comprehensively. Also, the
Company will make every effort to win the initiative battle of
efficiency ramp-up, so as to improve the core capability of
production, operation and maintenance continuously.

2. Focus on the improvement of core capabilities and implement
five lean management projects thoroughly, so as to give an
impetus to strengthening the traditional advantages of the
Company:

Firstly, the Company will strengthen the lean management
project of project development. Secondly, the Company will
strengthen the lean management project of project design.
Thirdly, the Company will strengthen the lean management
project of procurements. Fourthly, the Company will strengthen
the lean management project of project costs. Fifthly, the
Company will strengthen the lean management project of
operating costs.
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Focus on fostering new advantages and strive to promote four
key actions, so as to accelerate the construction of a new
pattern of high-quality development of the Company:

We will adhere to diversified coordination to promote integrated
development of businesses. Besides, we will persist in
technology empowerment and continue to strengthen scientific
research investment. Additionally, we will adhere to the aid of
capital and strengthen the synergistic development of industry-
finance while focusing on promoting the advancement of
cooperation and development through capital, so as to bring
the bridging role of capital into full play. We will deepen the
strategic cooperation with local governments and relevant
enterprises and actively invest in extended businesses in
the upstream and downstream, so as to achieve industrial
expansion and technological edge as well as strengthening
and supplementing the chain. Moreover, we will insist on
deepening reforms, endeavor to provide a mechanism and
talent guarantee and continue to deepen the three systems
of governance, employment and incentives and the market-
oriented mechanism that allows the management to get
promotion or demotion; employees to be employed or
dismissed; and revenues to be increased or decreased.

Focus on intrinsic safety and make every effort to reinforce four
lines of defense, thereby promoting the development of the
Company to reach a new level:

We will build a strong line of defense for production safety
comprehensively and follow the mission of “implementing
production safety responsibility and protecting the safety of
employees”, so as to eliminate the occurrence of major hidden
hazards and serious accidents resolutely, and to achieve zero
accident for safety production. Also, we will build a strong
line of defense for major risks comprehensively and carry
out whole process management of various operational risks
properly. In addition, we will build a strong line of defense
for legal compliance comprehensively to strengthen overall
compliance management. We will promote legal compliance
and cleanliness of projects rigorously and conduct thorough
inspection for defects and fill in gaps, so as to further
improve the quality and efficiency of compliance management
operation. Furthermore, we will build a strong line of defense
against corruption comprehensively and deeply promote the
establishment of institutional mechanism under which no one
dares to or can be corrupted or thinks of committing corruption
while enhancing the pertinence and effectiveness of grassroots
discipline inspection works, so as to improve the overall quality
and efficiency of supervision of the Company and strengthen
the red line and defense line of business integrity effectively.
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5. Focus on fostering cooperative spirit through solid foundation
and strengthening Party discipline comprehensively, thereby
creating a new pattern where Party building leads the
development:

The Company will thoroughly study, publicize and implement
the spirit of the 20th National Congress of the CPC and
adhere to implement the “dual carbon” goal. Also, we will
implement General Secretary Xi Jinping’s thought on socialism
with Chinese characteristics for a new era comprehensively
and maintain a high degree of consistency with the Central
Committee of the CPC with General Secretary Xi Jinping as
the core in terms of thoughts, political ideology and actions
unwaveringly. We will continue to enhance the quality of Party
building works to lead and ensure the high-quality development
of the Company with high-quality Party building.

EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Meiya Electric Asia, Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, intends
to dispose of all the equity interests it holds in Nantong Meiya Co-generation
Co., Ltd. For further information, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 21 March 2023. Save as disclosed above, no important event or
transaction affecting the Group and which is required to be disclosed by the
Company to its Shareholders has taken place after 31 December 2022.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

5. FEBRRER 2EBCMELE H
BIERSIEMEE

RAANBBERERPELEEN -+
Rig REFEEZBEHRI BR 2
EERBOTRESHERTERE
HEEERR BEFABERRLEA
TS LERNERTFRELSHZON
TEAEETRZEERESE N
FREAZERTIFHEE USHEER
SIERERTSEBER -

HEHREM

KNB 2 EM B AT Meiya Electric Asia, LtdgREEH
REBEETAEERLATINEBRE - ELERFELH
AT HEA2023E3021 AR E B EXFIIRESE
Sho 202212831 BB B AEERARE A
BHEREREZEEEERRH



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SR NKESEHE

SECRETARY OF THE COMMUNIST PARTY COMMITTEE, CHAIRMAN,
PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(1)

R EEBERATESR

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
RERTE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3REE), aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 January 2020,
and was further appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President, and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 8 April 2022. Currently, he
is the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and the chairman and general manager of CGN
Wind Power Company, Limited (FEiZEZERE/AT) (“CGN Wind Energy”). Mr. Zhang joined the
Company as a senior vice president in December 2019. Prior to joining the Company, he worked in
the Salary and Welfare Department of the Ministry of Personnel from June 1995 to October 1998.
He has successively served as a cadre member of the General Office and the deputy principal staff
member of the Allowance Office. He took a temporary position and received training in the Economic
and Trade Commission of Daxing County, Beijing QbR M AEBZLE L) from May 1997 to May
1998; Mr. Zhang served as the deputy principal staff member of the General Welfare Office of the

Salary, Welfare and Retirement Department of the Ministry of Personnel (A2 T &EF] H B R (AT
4R E1@FER) from October 1998 to November 1999, and served as the principal staff member of the fourth division of enterprise
department of the Enterprise Leaders Administrative Bureau (Department of Personnel) of the Ministry of Personnel (A 2538 {2
BEANEEERE (ANEE) BFEIUE) from November 1999 to December 1999. He served as a section-level cadre member of the
fourth division, the institution human resource division, and the third division of the State-owned Enterprises Working Committee
Organization Department (FA 52 {2 T H4HAEE) from December 1999 to June 2003. From June 2003 to November 2010, Mr.
Zhang worked in the second bureau of the Enterprise Leaders Administrative Bureau of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council (E#HHEEELESEBEZE T XEEAEEIE _F), and successively
served as the principal staff member of the sixth division, and positions such as assistant investigator, associate investigator,
and investigator of the sixth division. He took a temporary position and received training in FAW Group Corporation (F7 B 5 —
JREEEE /AT from October 2005 to October 2006. From November 2010 to January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy
general manager of the human resources department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (FElE&RI%E
£ EBPRAT]) (former name of China General Nuclear Power Corporation (PEIEZERERAT) (“CGN”)), and was in
charge of the overall work. From January 2012 to December 2019, Mr. Zhang served as the director of the department of party
affairs (renamed as the party team working division from January 2017 to June 2018) of CGN. From March 2012 to December
2019, he served as the direct deputy secretary of the Party Committee of CGN. Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor Degree
in industrial engineering management from the University of Science and Technology Beijing (b R B AZ) in June 1992, a
Master Degree in labor economics from the Beijing University of Economics (AL RASEE2 ) in June 1995, and a Doctorate
Degree in national economics from the Guanghua School of Management, Peking University Qb R KEZNEESIEERT) in July
2000.

RS 535 2020 1 B2 A ESEANITEE  WN2022F 488 ST AEES I E AR EARTRELEES (R4
% @) EFE-HREFBTECESZELRTEZRABERAD (FEZEAE)) 2 EERERAKIE o RAEEN2019F 128 MA LT AT
EISHEIEE - MAKAT ZH I 1995F6 B £1998F 108 I EASH TEGMN MR QAR ETHRSERD MUKEMK
EBaEl|FERE > K1997F58 E1998Fs A BT R m AEBR K ELZHHIRIR ; H1998F 108 £1999F 11 B AR sk EFER A
EBTERMNABERARAGESEHERETARE W 199941 1ﬁi1999¢12)% HEEASHEXEEAESEEER (NFR) X
MEFEAERE  E1999F 128 £2003F6 8 HAEFRLET HHAMINE HAASZTHEUKR=ZFEER K 512003FE68 £2010
FEAPE RELEEHAEREEEEREEEZ B XEEANBEE_BERH AR ETNEETERE - NEMNERHAE 8
IS UK AR B EBAL > 722005F108 £2006F 108 HIBEFEE —/SEEE RS HHBIR - E2010F11 A E2012F18 &
RERTEERZEEEERLAE (PEEZEBRARAR ((FEZ)) 2 r1RE) FANERIEIBLE (FFITE ~HR2012F818E
2019F12AFEFEZERH T(ESS (2017F18 E£2018F6 A M E A EMTIES) =4 > £2012F38 £2019F 128 A EF EZ
EBERFEEC RAEMNE A ES I AR AR TETREEES T M5 F6 A EBSIIREESBRSHCKERBEL
B WHR2000FE7E BRI R RSN ECTEERERCHESE L2
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EENEEREBRE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JE#

(2)

TESF

Mr. WANG Hongxin
EFRMEE

Mr. WANG Hongxin (EZ=H), aged 59, was appointed as a non-executive Director, the chairman of
the investment and risk management committee of the Company (the “IRM Committee”), a member
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 24 December 2021. Currently,
he is also the director of CGN Wind Energy. Mr. Wang was a non-executive director of the Company
from 16 August 2017 to 26 June 2018. Mr. Wang served as deputy director (presiding overall
operation) of the Supervisory Department in CGN Power Co., Ltd. (FEIEZEBEHRHERAT) (a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Stock Code:
1816) (“CGN Power”) since September 2015 and was re-designated as deputy general manager
(presiding overall operation) of the legal affairs department in CGN Power in June 2017. Mr. Wang
served as general manager of the legal affairs department in CGN Power between December 2018
and November 2021. He has been serving as an employee representative supervisor of CGN Power
since June 2015. Mr. Wang was a supervisor of CGN Wind Energy from March 2020 to April 2022.
Mr. Wang has more than 30 years of experience in the areas of energy, legal and audit supervision. He successively served in
different departments of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Group Co., Ltd. (TEERZEEBE EEAF)) (former name of CGN)
as deputy head of the rules and procedures management office of the audit department; deputy head and head of the discipline
monitoring branch of the Party team working division/supervision office; head of the Party development working branch; special
duty director of the legal affairs department; assistant to general manager of the legal affairs department in CGN; and deputy
general manager of the legal affairs department and deputy director (presiding overall operation) of the Supervisory Department
of CGN Power. Mr. Wang holds PRC Legal Professional Qualification, Corporate Legal Counsel Practice Qualification Certificate
and Corporate Lawyer Practice Qualification Certificate. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in nuclear reactor
engineering from the Department of Engineering of Tsinghua University GEZE A ) in July 1986 and Postgraduate Degree in
Engineering Thermophysics from Tianjin University (K32 A2)in 1989.

FRMTE 5958 2021 F 12824 RZERFATESZT A2 RELEABEEELZE T (REG)) TF FREEKEEE
(TBREEG)) AEAEARAHMEES (FMNEET) HE -KREFTEETEZEBEZES - FHEEMN2017F8816HEF2018
FeH26HHBEEARANFFRITESZ - TREB015FOAREEFTEHERENRNDBIRRE MEBMARZMBERAR
(TEkaFR)) EZ A8 RO 1816) ((HEKEN)) NERIEEE (EFTE > W20 7F6BBERTREZBENIER
ERHHMBBEIE (EF LM c ERENR2018F 128 E2021F 1B EERERE NN EZREHEREIE K EH2015F6 A E—EEME
PEZENNH ITARES EREBNR2020F38 E2022F 48 i EETEZRBESTHE - TAENER EZREUKRBHER
FEBEAFERR RBLRETHEAERZEEERRAR (TEZZARE St REERERIER BETIFS SHRELCHE
EERAER ERAERIEER ZREBFHER PELZREBHQKENE URRERBIEREH MR ELIEN
HERHEEE (EFIF - EREBRFFEZEREER PR ZEENNEERBERA D EMAXERES - TRENR19865F
TARBERSBER BREHETIREE) 220 WIN1089FRRERBER (TEAYBHE) HRLERK-
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Mr. CHEN Xinguo
BRETE S

Mr. CHEN Xinguo (F¥fE), aged 59, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022.
Currently, he is also the director of CGN Wind Energy. Mr. Chen successively served as a staff
member, a deputy chief staff member and a chief staff member of the Education Division, a chief
staff member of the Finance Division and the deputy chief of the Finance Division (in charge of the
overall work) of the Xinjiang Autonomous Region Economic Commission (Hi8 B8R EKEZER)
from August 1985 to April 1998, and he took a temporary position as the deputy director in the
Economic Commission of Hami, Xinjiang (378804 2 #1 & £&£ %) from January 1994 to June 1995.
From April 1998 to January 2003, Mr. Chen successively served as the head of the Finance Division
and the head of the Foreign Economics Division of the Economic and Trade Commission of Xinjiang
Autonomous Region GTEE H/AEA&E Z) . He served as the deputy secretary of the Communist Party
Committee and director general of the Urumgi Trade Development Bureau (Grain Bureau) (& K
TESEER l8BF)), the deputy secretary and director of the Communist Party Committee of
the National Development and Reform Commission (B2 ZEH) and the secretary and deputy director of the Communist Party
Committee of the Supply and Marketing Cooperative Society (fft#8 & fE4L) from January 2003 to May 2012, and he concurrently
served as the deputy secretary and director of the Communist Party Committee of Wuchang Development and Reform
Commission (B &2 24 %) from December 2008 to August 2011. From May 2012 to February 2022, Mr. Chen successively
served as the deputy general manager (in charge of the overall work), deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
secretary of the Communist Party Committee and general manager of the Xinjiang Branch of CGN. He has served as a director
of China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (F/&1Z Ti2ER/A ) (“China Nuclear Power Engineering”), CGN Nuclear
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (FREZIZ i1 8 B IR 19 B R /A E)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 000881)) and CGN Environmental Protection Industry Co., Ltd. (P EZIRIRE ¥ B PR /A ) since February 2022. He has
over 30 years of experience in finance. Mr. Chen graduated from the School of Finance and Economics of Xinjiang University of
Finance and Economics (H7 52 B A8 K B2 B A8 B2 ) in August 1985, majoring in industrial economics.

BRATEL ST 5958 TR2022F 4 B8 HEEZE AN ITEZ FIRF T IEEHTEZREZEE ML LI 1985F88 £19984F4
BHEG AR EANBEE AR ELZESH AR E B FERE - TANE MEESRETANE MRESREAER (E
BT > Wit1994F1 B E1995F6 BB EMER T E LT TRIEF B o M EN1998F48 £2003F1BHIEE
B EANEE AR EEY B ERERERERIMEERER M 2003FE1 B E2012F5 B iR EEREAET B ER (I8
BRE) BEREL - BR -ENZEHIEL T UREEESEHEZELKEIEE 1/02008F 128 £2011F8 A xR
AREUNEEERECRET A ENR2012E58 F20225 2 A MG LB ETDEZHEN AT BELE (EHIME
BREEL ERETRBEE - Go022F 2B RETHEZTIRERAT ((FEZIRZ) DERXZEMEERNERAT
(KR FEYFEHRZXZFAETHAE) BRMHAEE 0 000881) MAEZIRREXERATDES KN MRS S ERBBI0OEL
B o PR E108Fs A R ENMBM R RBH KB T XK KEHE-
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(4)

Mr. BIAN Shuming
TEREE

Mr. BIAN Shuming ((R&Z8H), aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 29 September
2022. Currently, he is also the director of CGN Wind Energy, CGN Energy International Holdings Co.,
Limited (P EE%AEREPRIEREPR/AT)) (“CGN Energy International”’) and secretary general
of “Going Global” Industry Alliance (ITFEHZEIJEFEEE) for China Nuclear Power technological
equipments. From August 1987 to October 1990, Mr. Bian Shuming served successively as an
assistant engineer and engineer of Tangshan Design Institute of China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd. (PEIZEEFE _TEFEMRAE), the deputy manager and manager of
the BXSA (administration office building and canteen) project engineering department of Daya
Bay Nuclear Power Station, while he was also an engineer of the engineering department under
Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. (BEERZEEEHBMR/AT) from November 1990
to September 1995. From September 1995 to January 2003, Mr. Bian served successively as an
engineer of the engineering department, a manager of main civil construction contract under the
construction contract division, the deputy director of the construction contract division and the supply contract division of
Lingao Nuclear Power Company Ltd. (388 EHR/A ). From January 2003 to July 2003, he was the deputy director of the
construction and service contract division under the engineering department of CGN Lingdong Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (1&
%582 B RAT) (presiding over the work) and a manager assistant of project contract department under the preparatory
office of Yangjiang nuclear power (presiding over the work) from July 2003 to March 2004. From March 2004 to August 2009,
Mr. Bian served successively as the deputy manager of the project contract department, deputy manager of the contract and
procurement department (presiding over the work), manager of the contract and procurement department and general manager
of the Hongyuanhe project department of China Nuclear Power Engineering. From September 2009 to September 2013, he was
the deputy general manager of Xianning Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (REZEHER/AF)). From September 2013 to February 2019,
he was the deputy general manager of CGN Lufeng Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (I EZEEZEAFR/AE)). From February 2019 to
February 2022, Mr. Bian was the general manager of CGN Nuclearelectrica (FEZZE E R 2% E /A 5)) (to be established), while
he was concurrently the general manager of the Czech project department of CGN. Mr. Bian has been a director of China Nuclear
Power Engineering since February 2022, a director of Bradwell Power Holding Company Limited and Bradwell Power Generation
Company Limited since May 2022. Meanwhile, he served as the general manager of the Luban project department (temporary
project organization) in 2021. He has accumulated over 30 years of experience in engineering management. Mr. Bian graduated
from the profession of industrial and civil architecture engineering from Tongji University in June 1987 and obtained a Master
Degree in Industrial Engineering in Huazhong University of Science and Technology in December 2006.

TEBIE 5858 IR2022F 920 EZ XA ERTES - WIRF N ETTEZASATPEEZERERZERERAT (T
EZERER) 285 RTEZERMEE EHE EXHENER - TEBHLEN1987FE8AE1990F 108 HEE
BETHEREREE_I2RBRABEWRTABIETZMMN TR2M > UKk A EZEBIEBXSA (TEHAEMERE) BEE T
EHMRAISEMNLE WH1990F 11 B E1995F 9B B ETERZEAEBRAB TIESEE TIEM e FAENR1995F98E
2003 F 1 BRI EERIZBERATNSABEEIRBNIRM IR ETIRLIEARCE HISRERE RELMHE
BREERIER Mt 2003F 18 E2003F 7B A EETEZERZERRLAB IEMBH LTEARBSRERIER (FFIME
W 2003F78 E2004F 38 BB AER I ZEERMTE SRS IBELERIE (FFRF T o FAER2004FE38 E2009F88
EHPEZIESABRETFTICATRCE - aRARBHACE (ERFITHE  SREREDCE  AUA AR PRLIE
MR 2009F 98 E2013FIA N A BEIZBER AT EERBLKIE  E2013FIB E2019F 28 NP BEIZELZEEEAT
EARIMEIER2019F2 A E2022F 2 AR FAEEPEZESTEEZELNE (B) BTELE ARETTEZRERE
B Ef4B4CIE o R E H2022F 2B BN R EZ LIZIEEE S 122022453 tE# {EBradwell Power Holding Company Limited &
Bradwell Power Generation Company LimitedZE 2> [B]FFR2021 FIEI BB PALIE RRHERES) - R IEEELE
FERSOFELR e FEEM19087TF6 A EENABASTEXEREARRATIREE ) WN2006F 128 EBETREARBTETRE
BEEBTHAIRER -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BIUFATES

(5)

(6)

Mr. WANG Minhao
ERE

Mr. WANG Minhao (FER &), aged 64, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018. Mr. Wang also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee. He participated in the design of the Longyangxia and Daxia Hydropower
Stations and served as the vice president of Northwest Engineering Corporation (7815 838155 51 Fx)
in 1993. He was the deputy general manager of China Hydropower Engineering Consulting Group
Co. (FEI/KBEREE/AT), and the deputy general manager of China Water Conservancy &
Hydropower Consulting Co., Ltd. (FF Bk F)7K E T2 54584 BR/A B)) from March 2000 to September
2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an University of Technology (A% 32 T A £) (formerly known as
Shaanxi Institute of Mechanical Engineering (BX7a1%## 22 F5%)) of Hydraulic Engineering and obtained
a Master Degree in Engineering from Xi’an University of Technology (F8%2¥2 T K£28)in April 2003.
He was a registered structural engineer. Mr. Wang retired on 25 February 2019 and ceased to act
as deputy general manager and a member of Party Standing Committee of Power Construction
Corporation of China (FEE 1R EE (&19) BE/AF)in March 2019. Mr. Wang also ceased to
act as the chairman and the legal representative of the Powerchina Water Environment Governance Co., Ltd (8B KIRIE AR
FMiBRAR)on 16 May 2019.

RiEALE 6455 H2018F6H26 HRREIBIUFNTES TAENTEEIHNEE S ITERIELEETRE HESHEFHRE
RIEKEBIEAIER 5T > BEB 1993 FE & E R ILEN AR5 PR IR & o IR 2000FE38 E20 11598 » W B EHE /K EEMEE QT EIF4E
BB PEKFKETLRENERATETIRNBLE  TAERENTERET RS FIBRAKMERR) K ITHE  WHR20035F48
EAZET RS TEBLT2( - HATMEEM TAENR2019F2825HEBMKR R2019F38 ABEAFEABHERER RN B
RATBRECERELZEE TAENTNR2019E5816HABEITERKRBAEBRMABRATNEEEREAENREK.

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng
BRELE

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng (##%45), aged 70, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018. Mr. Yang also serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the IRM Committee. Mr. Yang is currently the president of Chinese
Wind Energy Equipment Association (TE 22 &M IpZEAEREDE) and an independent non-
executive director of Dongfang Electric Wind Power Co., Ltd. (R A EREERHBERAFT). Mr. Yang
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Titan Wind Energy (Suzhou) Co,. Ltd. (X & £
(B M) B EFR/AS) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange Stock Code: 002531),
Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co., Ltd. GfiE £ R RMH BEAF) (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2208) and Jinlei Technology Co., Ltd. (B FERIEEH AT
(formerly known as Shandong Laiwu Jinlei Wind Power Technology Co., Ltd. (LB K% & BB R
IR BR/AF)) )(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300443) in May
2019, June 2019 and August 2022 respectively. He has previously served as a deputy director of
the energy and electricity generation subdepartment of the Ministry of Energy (BEJR 28 & 5T EE
BEEER), a deputy general manager and chief engineer of China Fulin Windpower Development
Corp. (hEERAAR%25)and a chief engineer of Longyuan Power Group Limited (528 & 7 E A ) from May 1988 to
January 2007. From June 2007 to April 2012, he served several positions in China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited
(BERBHERRINBIRAE) including the chief engineer, manager of the development department, technical development
department and safety production department, a director of preparatory office of wind energy research centre, technical
information department, renewable energy research and development centre and Jiangsu Longyuan Offshore Wind Power Project.
He also served as a committee member of the Beijing Direct Committee of the Chinese Community Party Longyuan Power
Group Company (FEFERE TEE A F) from July 2006 to December 2010. Mr. Yang was the general manager of the Suzhou
Longyuan Bailu Wind Power Vocational Technology Training Center Co., Ltd. (Bx I Fe R B 8 B BB E AT IR O0ERA )
from July 2007 to April 2012. Mr. Yang graduated from Wuhan Polytechmo University (72 T 2P%) of Electronic Engineering
in January 1982 and obtained a Postgraduate Degree in Electricity from China Agricultural University Qb REZ 2 T2 K2)in
October 1986.

BRELE 705k B2018F6 526 HIEEBUFNITER - BAENLIEZZER HNSEG RLUZEGREZENE-
BRERATHEREMN G ERERE N B EERARAERAERNVERABAZBIFNITES - BEEEDIR2019F58 ~
2019468 K2022F8 HREKRIBERLE GIN) BMBERAR (RNENBEXBZM LT AT BMHAYE : 002531) “HESARKE

NE (PBMRFAEHZAT BRHAS  2208) REERERMAD FIBLERESTABRERDERA )(ﬁéi%ﬂlléﬁ%i%
Fr EZ AT BRIDATE : 300443) 2B IERITEERTE BN 1988FES 8 E2007E 1 BB D RE TR 2T M REBRE
BER TEHEREEREQATIRBKERBTREM UKEREHNEEATEITIZM E52007££6)§i2012¢4)§’)§5‘51§}#1£
BEERBNEBRMAMRATETIZM HER EMBEEN Z24ESCERRABHER L HMEEH IBELERMAEEREF
DU ESIEREERE FREEESEE T -HIrR2006F78 E£2010F 128 » RAEFHBERE ﬁ%l@ifaé%éa@éa&#
2007F 7R E2012F AR HAHMNEFRRERBRESMEIFLER A ML FLEENMII2F I HRENRETIZRET
RROWMN1986F10B B RRE TR ABENEEMRTESE e
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Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick
RFIELRE

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick CRF1E), aged 64, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 17 September 2014. Mr. Leung also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee and was
appointed as a member of the IRM Committee on 22 January 2020. Mr. Leung has over 30 years
of professional and industrial experience in management, corporate governance, corporate finance,
banking and accounting. Mr. Leung resigned as an independent non-executive director and a member
of the audit committee and nomination committee of China Logistics Property Holdings Co., Ltd. (a
company previously listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1589) on 1 March 2022. He was
previously an executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of Skyworth Digital
Holdings Limited (“Skyworth”) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 751). In his
almost nine years of services in Skyworth, he was mainly responsible for the company’s successful
resumption of trading of its shares and strengthening of its internal controls, accounting system,
corporate governance and investor relations management. In 2011 and 2013, Skyworth was awarded
by Asia Money as the Best Managed Medium Cap Company in China of 2011 and by Forbes as
Asia’s Fabulous 50 of 2013, respectively. Furthermore, Mr. Leung accumulated 14 years of working
experience in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He left Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in June 1999 as a principal of corporate finance. Mr.
Leung obtained a Bachelor Degree of Science in Business Administration (major in Accounting) from the University of The East in
the Philippines in November 1981. He became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in April 1997 and has been its fellow member since October 2013. Also, he has been a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 1996. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
since April 1999 and has been its fellow member since November 2015. In addition, he has been a founding member of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association since November 2015.

Mr. Leung was previously a non-executive director of Richly Field China Development Limited (“Richly Field”) (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 313), which was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability. He joined Richly Field as an independent non-executive director on 2 May 2003 and was appointed as an
executive director on 3 March 2004. He was re-designated as a non-executive director on 1 May 2005 and he resigned from the
directorship on 4 March 2006. Since his resignation as a non-executive director of Richly Field on 4 March 2006, Mr. Leung has
no involvement in any matters relating to Richly Field. During Mr. Leung’s tenure of directorship with Richly Field, Richly Field
and its then subsidiaries were engaged in the building construction and maintenance industry including building work, design
and construction and building maintenance in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the public announcements made by Richly Field, a
winding up petition was served on it on 30 June 2006 by a public accounting firm for an unpaid service fee of approximately
HK$593,000. On 18 December 2006, the winding up petition for Richly Field was heard in the High Court of Hong Kong and
winding up order was made against Richly Field. On 29 May 2007, the High Court of Hong Kong made an order to appoint
joint and several liquidators and the committee of inspection of Richly Field. The winding up order against Richly Field was
permanently stayed effective on 23 July 2008 and the joint and several liquidators were discharged with effect from 23 July
2008.

RFIEFRE 6458 B014F9F17HEBEEBIUFANTESR - RRENEAEEZEZEGTEIERN2020F1A22BEZEAKREZEMN
BoRMEBABBINFEERTENEE AFEA CERE RITAEHLR - RAEECH2022F381BHETRAYARE EE
BRERAT (BRBEX LT A BRIDMASE: 1589) ZBUERNTESURBELZEGRIEREZE TN E o G A# JIE IR
BIRAT (TAI#E)) PRBMXFFESZAR RONRE 751 EARTES EREVEERADNEZ -ERLEREMRBFLNE
N HEEEEZATRERINERE  NMABNE B 2A CXEA RESHGAEEFE AIEDBE011FETNEEA
FEERA 20 EHREREEEPHEARI RE013FERH M EAN 2013F T AMERE LHEET A58 &l:%’i«?ﬁ
EHEEY AERSGHMITER T 14EM TELE - ME1999F6 A HBEY BER A DHMTR BZTHNLERETE R
FHERI1BIFI1EREBERERSIAZRTIHEERNS ﬁﬁi(ﬂlﬁ‘@ﬁm)ﬁfﬁo%%i#wwi@ﬁiﬁ% BEHAABER T H
2013F10BEEMAEERGE M MN1996F 128 M AZEEH M AT T E - HE199F4BERATEESFAKLESEEE 1
B2015FE11BEAEEFRFTE - BI WINR2016FE 11 B AT BB IR TEEHTNATEE -

PREELAMATEEREARAD ((HESE) (WX LELHZAT RHNRSE: 313) (NHEFHEAMRITNEREEFEE
NERSERE) WIERNTES MR 2003F582HMARBTEABIUIFNITES > WHN2004F383HEZEAATESR FH
20055 B 1 HAEAFNITES KR 2006F3B4HBTEESRE - BR L EN2006F3A4HHEREHYPRAZIERTES R
BUEESHEEMBHPEHZERASE - RRACERTHETRESHE vHTPEREER WB AT EREREEREFRENT
O OEEARFIE R AEFRABFRE-REBEAEHPETIENASFIE  122006F6830H  —KEsTEN{TH B HEFE X
H#9593,0008 tiRBEQM AT REIEZESEEF - N2006F 128180 EESF AR RAHMEHTREZ R EH  wHBHAFEH
EL BB R2007F5829H  BEERE ZRESCHHETREZEERARENEBARBIEEZE G HHREHPHBH 2 EES
12008F7H23HKAHEME  HERERIEH A B > H2008F7H238EEK
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

(1)

(2)

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
REHLE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (BRER) is the secretary of the Communist Party Committee, the Chairman of the Board and President. See
“Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman, President and Executive Director” in this annual report for details of Mr.
Zhang’s biography.

RESRAEREEZEL EFIERBH -RAEZEEFBFF2RAERESEL TR BIARNTESFI —H-

Mr. LI Jing
FiFkLE

Mr. LI Jing (Z218), aged 57, is currently the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in January
2015. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li served in the design division of nitrogenous fertiliser factory of Nanning Chemical
Industry Co., Ltd. (E31EA B & BB from July 1987 to February 1992; manager office of the engineering department of Lingao
Nuclear Power Company Ltd. from February 1992 to June 1994; the production department of Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint
Venture Co., Ltd. from July 1994 to March 2003; and the maintenance department of Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations
and Management Co., Ltd from March 2003 to August 2004. From September 2004 to May 2010, he held several positions in
the commissioning department of China Nuclear Power Engineering, including the head of commissioning division for nuclear
islands, manager assistant and head of commissioning division for nuclear islands, manager assistant and director of the
commissioning manager office. From May 2010 to June 2011, he was the deputy general manager of safety and engineering
management department of CGN and from June 2011 to May 2014, he was the deputy general manager and general manager
of safety and information management department of CGN. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager of safety and quality
assurance department of CGN from January 2013 to January 2015, and concurrently as deputy general manager of safety
and quality assurance department of CGN Power since May 2014. From January 2015 to January 2016, Mr. Li served as chief
safety officer of CGN Meiya Power Holdings Co., Limited. From January 2016 to January 2018, he served as the chief safety
officer of the Company. Mr. Li served as the member of the party committee and Deputy General Manager of the Company from
January 2018, and served as the member of the Party Committee of CGN Wind Energy from November 2019. Mr. Li obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering majoring in chemical engineering from Nanjing College of Chemical Engineering (Fg =1t L2
%) in July 1987, and a Master Degree in Engineering majoring in industrial engineering from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (FEAFL % A B2)in February 2001. Mr. Li holds professional qualification as a senior engineer.

EIESE 575 IRIEEAR AT RBIARKE . A R20156F1BNMARRT c RIMARRB AT EAAER1987TETB E19924F
CEHAMERIE A B RIERR T R ; 1992 F 2B 199456 B E 2B X BEERA D TR LB E(TR ; I1994F7HE
20033 EERIZEEEERATEESER ; 12003 FE3F E2004F8 A M E AL EZEESSESEERAR AT
BT ; 1R2004F98 E2010Fs B HEFEZTREARBIE SAREIZERAREER CEMERZEAREER
KIEMEBERARCEIRAEZEEE; R2010F8E2011F6BEETEZZEHETREEENRILLIERR2011F6H £2014
FoAEATERZZ2AEEEENARCIERBRIERS - =HEN2013F1AE2015F 1 BEEFTERZ2E RN
KB E2014AFAREREIFTEZENZ2ERIEIRKIE ; FHEER2015F18E2016F1 BIEEFREEZETENIER
ERABLZ24E ; 2016 F 18 E2018F1 B IET A AR L2 EE - FTLEN2018F 1B ESET AR ELTLTE REIEK
Il E2019F 1B ES HATEZRAEELSEE T hEMSTETAESE Rt IR B I REENIEE L8010
o001 EF2 A EBEDIRBEASB T XTI RERENTIRELSM TEESR TRMMWEESE K-
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Mr. LIU Chao
2BERE

Mr. LIU Chao (I#8), aged 46, was appointed as the chief accountant of the Company in January 2018. He joined the Company
in August 2016 and served as the general manager of finance department. Mr. Liu is currently serving as the chief accountant
and employee director of CGN Wind Energy. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu was the cost accountant of finance department
of Xuzhou Wei Yang Food Co., Ltd. (k435 B f7A FR/AF) from July 1998 to August 2000. From May 2003 to August 2005,
Mr. Liu served as the project manager of the audit department of Shinewing Certified Public Accountants ({S 7k A1 & 51 EM SR
F5Ff) . From September 2005 to March 2010, Mr. Liu was the manager of the finance and audit department of China United
Tally Co., Ltd. (PEEIZEEARAT). From March 2010 to April 2012, he was the deputy general manager of the finance
department of China Wind Power Group Limited (FEEBEHEBEER/AE). Mr. Liu served as deputy manager and general
manager of the finance department of CGN Wind Energy from May 2012 to June 2015, and he has been the chief accountant
of CGN Wind Energy since June 2015. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor Degree in Economic majoring in Business Administration
from Anhui University of Science and Technology (ZZ#{¥2 T A22)in June 1998, and a Master Degree in Economic majoring in
Economics and Finance from Beijing Information Science and Technology University (1t ;15 8 & K22) in May 2003. Mr. Liu
holds professional qualifications as Certified Public Accountant in the PRC, and he is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA).

RIFBHE > 465% » R2018F 1 B EZEAR AT BT MN2016FE8BMAR AT EFSHARLIE B L ERBFADE
REBEETEBTIEE - RMAKRATR > BILEF1998FE7FE2000FE8 B HifE  HEBRMEBERER AT M FEIBE

B 5t o FH2003F58 22005988 > AL ERE KT NG I EHAAEEE T HIBEE K 2005598 £20105F38 Hf > 2
EERTHMEBEERAT Y EEAHEELE H2010F38 E2012F48  RBEEBER B RATEET SRR LI
oM 2012F5 A E2015%6 8 B AENRHEZRELBIEEMBFIEIKIE R ELKIERFE - B2015F6 A5G BATREZER
BB G TN - RIS ER1998FE6 HER %“dg&ﬁlk%%%ﬁﬂi%%ﬂ%%@ B+ KR 2003F5 A EBIEREER B ARG
B ERENC BT A AL AETHAME AN EEE R U ARFARE M ARACCABE -
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Mr. XU Shun
®RIEFE

Mr. XU Shun (4&Jlg), aged 51, joined the Company in December 2021 as secretary of the disciplinary committee. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Xu worked in the progress planning section of the engineering control division of the engineering department
of Lingao Nuclear Power Company Ltd. (3881 E A R/AS)) from August 1995 to March 2003; from then until March 2004,
Mr. Xu worked in the planning and investment control division of the engineering department of Lingdong Nuclear Power Co.,
Ltd. ((BERZBEAE/A ) (to be established). In March 2004, Mr. Xu joined China Nuclear Power Engineering, where he held
various positions. He served as the engineer in the planning division of the planning and contract department of China Nuclear
Power Engineering from March to November 2004, an engineer of the secretariat of the general management department from
November 2004 to June 2005, the secretary general of the secretariat of the general management department from June 2005
to April 2006, the deputy director of the general manager’s office of the general management department from April 2006 to
March 2008, and the director of the general manager’s office of the general management department from March to April 2008.
Mr. Xu served as the head of the secretariat of the general office of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (2
EHERZEERABRAT) (former name of CGN) from April 2008 to August 2011 and the assistant manager of the general
management department (presiding over the work) of Xianning Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (Bl ZZ B A PR/AE]) from August 2011
to May 2013. In May 2013, Mr. Xu returned to China Nuclear Power Engineering and held various positions until July 2018,
including working in the management department from May to August 2013, serving as the assistant manager of the project
management department from August to December 2013, serving as the deputy manager of the project management department
from December 2013 to May 2014, serving as the assistant to the general manager of the Romanian project from May to
September 2014, serving as the assistant director of the commissioning center from September 2014 to May 2016, and serving
as the director of the general manager’s office from May 2016 to August 2017. Thereafter, Mr. Xu served as the director of the
general manager’s office of GNI from August 2017 to September 2019 and the secretary of the disciplinary committee of CGN
Energy International from September 2019 to December 2021, respectively. Mr. Xu Shun obtained a bachelor's degree from
Sichuan Union University (P89)115 & AX2)in 1995 and a master’s degree in engineering from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (ZEFRLE K E) in December 2006

RIBAAE 5158 2021 F 128 MARABEEALEZELR MARATR FRITEF1995F88 E2003F3/ R BIZERR
NETIRLTREFEEEFER T, MEBE2004F3FBRELENBRZBERAE () TIEBTE REELEHIEITEo
BREER2004FE3/MATBEZ LR BIREEARE BN MR2004FE3B E B BETEZ TR SRR T2 R T2
2004 F 11 B E2005F6 A HE4r S BB MM EFR TI260 ; 2005F6 8 £2006F 4B HEGEEEXMEREMEEE ; 20064
4B E2008FE3AHELGEEEMBEERNERNETE; RR2008F38 F48E G A E B EEBNRAZTEF HEER
2008F 48 E2011F8ANRHTHERZBEERBRAR (FEZZ AR EENABMERRER ; R2011F8A £2013F581
BEZEAEATETEAEIEICERIE (THTIE) 2013Fs8 AL B RTERTR  BEFRIELAE2018F78 ; 6
ER2013F5 B ESANEEE T/E; 20138 E12B HEEE EIEHKIERIE ; 2013F 128 E2014F5 8 HEIEE EIES
B4R ; 201458 EOR AR ERE B R AKLIERIE ; 2014F98 £2016FE58 HAEFR PO T EMIE ; R2016F58E
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Mr. LI Guangming
FHERAKE

Mr. LI Guangming (Z=Y%BB), aged 46, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Li is a member of the Communist
Party of China and senior engineer. Mr. Li obtained the bachelor’'s degree from Sichuan University in 2000, majoring in power
system and automation. Mr. Li joined the Company in August 2016. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li was the project manager
of the substation branch (8% %3 /A &) of Jilin Power Transmission and Transformation Engineering Company (S M & X & E T
F2/A 7)) from July 2000 to January 2010. He served as the assistant to the general manager in general manager office of the
northeast branch of CGN Wind Power Generation Limited* (FEZEJEBER/AT) (“CGN Wind Power”) from January
2010 to May 2012. From May 2012 to February 2013, Mr. Li was an assistant to the general manager in general manager
office of the Jilin branch (F#%/A5)) of CGN Wind Energy, and acted as the deputy regional engineering director (Greater
Northern China Region) (L2 @ BI4885 (KZEJE&)) of engineering department of CGN Wind Energy from February 2013 to
January 2014. From January 2014 to February 2015, he was the regional engineering director (Northern China Region) (T2
E 1488 (Z=JL&)) of engineering department of CGN Wind Energy, the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of
the Northern China Branch of CGN Wind Power and the regional director for Northern China of the engineering department of
CGN Wind Energy from March 2015 to August 2016. He was the general manager of the Shanxi Branch (LI 7§43 /A &]) and Hebei
Branch (GAldE4%3 A1) of CGN New Energy from August 2016 to October 2016, the general manager of Shanxi Branch (LLI7E A
&]) and Hebei Branch GAI1643 /A &]) of CGN New Energy and its regional director for Northern China from October 2016 to June
2018. Mr. Li was the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of Engineering Department of the Company from June
2018 to May 2019. He was the Party Branch Secretary (23 ZfZ£52) and General Manager of the Engineering Department of the
Company from May 2019 to December 2020. He has been the deputy general manager of the Company since December 2020
(during the period from January 2022 to April 2022, he concurrently served as the general party branch secretary and general
manager of CGN New Energy South China Branch).

BRI E 465k METARBDREL B -FTHREATAHREZRES ) A SR TN - =LA 2000F B M) A2
ARBE TRBRENARAREBIEFEE - FTHENR2016FESHAMARRE » MAKXRAT A EHLEKR2000FE7E E2010F1H
EESMEREETRATEENARERKE - FN2010FE1BE2012F 8 EFTEZANEEERAE (hEZAAD
BE)) BN AT AEKIBEARLIERNIE ; R2012FE5 8 E2013F 2B AT EZRA B S MO A BKIB AR IEENIE ; 122013
FoRAE2014F1AATEZABIREFENTREEIEIEEE (KELE) ; R2014F1BE2015F 2B EATEZRAE LIRS
=W TREFHMLE (FEILE) ; P2015F38F2016F8AATEZRABEILDARABELE (FHFIHE RIBEXNEILR
HARES ; 7201688 E2016F 108 IEEHFEZMNER LTS AR AL D ABMRKIE ; F220165F108 E2018F6 B X FE
BFERLAD AT AL ATELIERFREEILEIMEE ; 112018FE6 8 E2019F5 8 BEARNT TR EXMEELIE (£
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Mr. Ql Fang
BEE

Mr. QI Fang (B55%), aged 39, joined the Company in August 2016 and is currently the Deputy General Manager of the
Company. From July 2008 to January 2010, Mr. Qi worked as a power dispatcher in the Three Gorges Cascade Dispatching
Communication Center (Z #8385 /() of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd. (FEERIEAIRMHAEREAT). From January
2010 to August 2010, he was the overseas project director of the international cooperation department of China Three Gorges
Corporation (FEEI=IKER /AT . In September 2010, Mr. Qi joined CGN Wind Power, where he held various positions. He
was the head and specialist of the power market and marketing division from September 2010 to December 2011, the deputy
director of the power marketing division from December 2011 to November 2013. He served as the assistant to the general
manager of the investment and development department of CGN Wind Energy from November 2013 to August 2015, the deputy
general manager of the investment development center (presiding over the work) from September 2015 to April 2016, and the
head of the Sichuan Branch of CGN Wind Energy from April 2016 to August 2016. Mr. Qi joined the Company in August 2016
as the deputy general manager of Sichuan Branch until April 2018. Thereafter, Mr. Qi has held important positions in different
departments of the Company. He served as the deputy general manager of the merger and acquisition department from April to
October 2018, the deputy general manager of the market development department (presiding over the work) from October 2018
to December 2019, the general manager of the power marketing department from December 2019 to January 2022, and the
deputy general manager of the Company from January 2022 to present. Mr. Qi Fang studied at Sichuan University (F9)1| &K £2) for
a bachelor degree in electrical engineering and automation from September 2001 to July 2005, and obtained a master degree
from North China Electric Power University (Z2153E 77 K22 in April 2008.

R ST A > 395% 0 2016 F 8B M AR B » IRIEE AR B BIARAZIE  f2008F78 E£2010F1 3 » E‘%%EAEPIE;IEWJM?}E
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Mr. DING Yeliang
TERKE

Mr. DING Yeliang (T 2 E), aged 47, joined the Company in January 2022 as the deputy general manager of the Company and
also serves as the Director of CGN New Energy Science and Technology Committee (FREIZFTAERRI B MZES). Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ding worked as an assistant engineer of dispatching center in Qinghai Electric Power Company from
July 1998 to September 2001. From September 2001 to July 2003, he was a staff member of the Power Division of the State
Economic and Trade Commission of Qinghai Province; from July 2003 to September 2003, he was a deputy chief staff member
of the Power Division of the State Economic and Trade Commission of Qinghai Province. Thereafter, Mr. Ding also held various
positions in the Qinghai Provincial Government from September 2003 to January 2014. He served as the deputy chief staff
member of the Industrial Circulation Division of the General Office from September 2003 to July 2006, the chief staff member of
the Industrial Circulation Division of the General Office from July 2006 to September 2009, the Deputy Director of the General
Office of the General Office from September 2009 to April 2010, the Deputy Director of the Fifth Division of the Secretariat of the
General Office from April 2010 to June 2013, and the Deputy Director of the Inspection Office from June 2013 to January 2014.
From January 2014 to January 2022, Mr. Ding held various positions in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (“SASAC of the State Council”’). He served as the director-level secretary of the General
Office of the SASAC of the State Council (Party Committee Office) from January 2014 to April 2017, the director-level secretary
of the General Office of the SASAC of the State Council (Party Committee General Office) from April 2017 to January 2019,
the director of the Safety and Environmental Protection Division of the General Bureau of the SASAC of the State Council from
January 2019 to August 2019, and the director of the Safety and Environmental Protection Division and a first-level investigator of
the Science and Technology Innovation and Social Responsibility Bureau of the SASAC of the State Council from August 2019 to
January 2022. From September 1994 to July 1998, Mr. Ding studied at Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering,
majoring in power system and automation; and from September 2004 to January 2007, he studied on-the-job at the Party School
of Qinghai Provincial Committee of the Communist Party of China, majoring in economic management. He also obtained a
master’s degree from China University of Geosciences in June 2018.
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Mr. LU Hao
ERE

Mr. LU Hao (E7%), aged 59, is the chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Lu joined the Company in September 2020. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Lu was an engineer of Inner Mongolia Electric Power Survey and Design Institute (R 5 &5 2 /7878
5% 5t B%) from July 1987 to November 1995, the deputy director and director of the engineering department of Inner Mongolia
Wind Power Generation Company (NZ & E /18 E A E)) from December 1995 to November 2000, the project manager of
Inner Mongolia Ultra High Voltage Power Supply Bureau (A5 &5 8= B B /&) from December 2000 to June 2001, the deputy
manager of the international branch (B[& %3 /A &]) of Beijing Guodian North China Power Engineering Co. Ltd. Jt REIEZFEILE
FITEBRAE)from July 2001 to September 2004, the general manager of Inner Mongolia Jingneng Wind Power Company
Limited (R H REEABEAEIRAT), a subsidiary of Beijing Energy Investment Limited (35 R AEJRIE B &£ B /A F]) from September
2004 to August 2006, the director of CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd. (REZAEJREIZE A E S E/AF)) from August 2006 to
April 2007, the assistant to the general manager in general manager office of CGN Wind Power from April 2007 to May 2013,
the assistant (rank 12th) to the general manager in general manager office of CGN Wind Power from May 2013 to June 2015,
the member of the party committee and secretary (rank 12th) of the disciplinary committee of the general manager office of CGN
Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. from June 2015 to December 2016, the provisional member of the party committee and
secretary of the disciplinary committee of the general manager office of CGN Nuclear Technology Application Co., Ltd (FEiZ 1%
T FER A E/A ) from December 2016 to February 2017, the member of the party committee and secretary of the disciplinary
committee of the general manager office of CGN Nuclear Technology Development Co., Ltd. (P EZZFEMERKRDERAT)
from February 2017 to September 2020. Mr. Lu obtained his bachelor’s degree from Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical
Engineering (EE/KFIE 77 AE) in 1987 and possesses the title of Professorate Senior Engineer.

BEIES A 595k IRIBEE R AT AL T2 o BB E N 2020F 98 MARLRE  RIMAKRAB R > BBILEN1987FE7H E£19955F
1MBARKEBENHAR R TE ; i1995F 128 E2000F 11 BIETASZHRAHEE LD TREBWEIIEFMZFE ; 2000
F1I2BE2001F6 B AN RS EMERERKE ; R2001FE78 E2004F9F T REEEILTHIRABRATEKE S
NEIRIRIE ; 1R2004F98 £2006F8 A AL RERKLEEBERBMBRAT O RERAEB R AR LKIE ; R20065F88 E2007
FABEETEZERBEERSERATIERE ; N2007F48E2013F58 AT EZE N B BLALIEIELIERNIE | 7220134F
5B E2015F6BEETEZRNEBELIBLET AT LLIPEIE (E1284) ; 20159568 E20165F 128 &R B A EE
HEARATEKIENREZEERLEER (F12B4R) ; 12016F 128 E2017F 28 AR BEZIZILMER B R A S BLIRER
BGRELSEZENICEERD, R2017FE2B8 E2020F 903 EEPERZEMERRNERADBKIENELZLERKLEEL &
FER1987TEMEBREKFIBAARBARNZ 20 R ESK TI2MERE-

Mr. CHEN Shengli
FR RS F) S

Mr. CHEN Shengli (FRE5#]), aged 50, is currently the assistant general manager, mainly in charge of the human resources
department of the Company. Mr. Chen ceased to act as the general manager of human resources department, and the secretary
of the party branch of the Company since March and April 2023 respectively. Mr. Chen joined the Company in September
2017. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chen worked in Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Lid. (BERZEBEEE
PR/AT]) from July 1992 to March 2004, and worked in Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd. (X
mEZEEEEERRAT) from March 2004 to November 2006. From November 2006 to December 2014, he served
serval positions in China Nuclear Power Engineering, including director and deputy director (in charge of overall operation)
of human resources department/policy and planning department, director of department of party affairs/organization division,
director of human resources and logistic support department/organisation and staff development, assistant manager of human
resources department and director of organization and staff development department, and deputy manager of human resources
department. Mr. Chen served as deputy general manager and deputy general engineer of CGN Huizhou Nuclear Power Co., Ltd
(PEZEMNZEBRASE) from December 2014 to November 2016, and served as general manager and director of CGN
Yangxi Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (P EIZEAIZEAEAS)from December 2016 to September 2017. Mr. Chen obtained a
Bachelor Degree of Administration from Sun Yat-Sen University in December 2003.

BRES A0 508% ) IMEE AR BRKENIE TENEERRBDANERI BRI EB2023F3A R4BEDBIAFABEEAS
ERIABCIEMELIERL A ENR2017EIBMARAE  RIMAKRAE R A ENR1992FE7H E2004FE3F HABEE
RZBEGEBRABMER ; IR2004FE38 E2006F11AT AR EZBEEEIERRABMEH ; 102006F11HE2014F 1285 1F
PEZTIREE QABRETANERIS BERERIBERMEER (EFIMHE BETEN MEAREEE - ANERA
BEREDS MAIBEETREREE  ANE RS L EHERABEETHEREERANERBELIE ; R2014F128E
2016 F 11 EEFTEZIEMNZEER AT GETAEKEREE TEMIEE ; 1R2016FE128 E2017F98 NHEXBAIZE
BEADGEIOLIERES ML N2003F 128 EERILABITHERSSE 8]
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Mr. LONG Yingbin
BEREIR e

Mr. LONG Yingbin (BEFEIRX), aged 52, is currently the assistant general manager of the Company. Mr. Long joined the Company
in November 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Long was a student and monitor of satellite communication major of
Communication Engineering Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (B2 B {5 & T2 K E) from September
1989 to July 1993. He was a post-graduate student and deputy monitor of master of military informatics major of Information
Science Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (B2 E 5 B L2 K22) from July 1993 to January 1996.
He served as assistant engineer of science and technology equipment department, staff officer of the headquarter training,
and engineer in Unit 61785 of the General Staff Department (#2261785%[X) from January 1996 to September 2003. From
September 2003 to December 2008, he served as deputy director of general office, principal staff member, member of party
branch organization committee and youth committee, secretary of league branch, and member of the first official league
committee in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council (EFEEA & EEE
BIEHZET), and from January 2009 to October 2016, he served as director of general office of Foreign Affairs Bureau and
member of party publicity branch in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
(FAHCREEELEBEIEEZEE). Mr. Long served as member of the party committee and deputy general manager of China
Eastern Airlines Beijing Branch (385 fii 2215514 A &) from November 2013 to May 2015, and was in charge of operating profits,
finance planning, result reviewing, strategy developing and management training and so on. From May 2014 to May 2016, he
was elected by Civil Aviation Administration of China to join the Aviation Management EMBA Case Study, which was co-organized
by Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management (B ZE4S & 2 P%), Ecole des Ponts ParisTech (X BB 1L B 15 A 22)
and Ecole Nationale de I’Aviation Civil CEBIE 1 E FBMZE A%2) . He was the director of general office and a member of party
branch organization committee of the international cooperation bureau in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (E#REBEEEEEEEZELZEE)from October 2016 to November 2018. Mr. Long obtained
a Master Degree of Military Informatics from Information Science Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (B#/%
BEEITRAZ)in July 1996, and an EMBA Degree from Business School of Ecole des Ponts ParisTech (GBI 17 BB A Z) in
May 2016.

BEFENR e o 5ok VB AR AT S IEBNIE o BER £ MR2018FE 11 BMAERRAT » RIMARAT A BEESREN1989F98 F
1993 F7AARMEEEIRARBEIEABEREEELERIIE ; M1993F78 21996 F1BAMNEFEIREAEE
BN AT EEREEEETHELEL2ERBINIE ; 199618 E2003F 98 fE428261785 3 X G IR R EEREE TR
B~ B2 1ED 258 R T2EM ; R2003FE9B8 E2008F 128 A AB A EEEREEEZEe Y IRAAEIER  TA4H
B EYH/ARTEREFLE BXNECKETE —EREABEEZEE ; 2000F1BE2016F 108 EAABEREEEEEE
EEZEGIIEREAEREE EXHSEEE HIMK) ; R2013E11 B E2015F5 A B IR AMTIERDATESEE 8
HEIRIR NERENE  TEM B EEEZ BERERMBIENETIE; 2014F58 22016 F5 B HEAREMBEIRSINE
ERESRAAEEIEBEAR AR IEBMERSH S EHIMEEIEEMBAIEE 28 020165108 £2018F 1151
AEERESEEE S E R B el FRGARER EXMARSERMB BRI EN106F7TRESHEREEE LR
AEBEEREBAEEBFRBBETAETLELRA RN2016FE5 8BS EHE I KRB AL BIREMBAZ ] o
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Mr. LEE Kin
FREE

Mr. LEE Kin (Z#), aged 50, joined the Company on 1 June 2007 as the controller. He has been the company secretary of the
Company since 26 January 2015. He has experience in public accounting and several industries including energy, media and
ports. He has over 25 years of experience in areas of accounting, internal control, financing, investor relations and corporate
strategy. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor Degree in Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994, Master of
Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in 2004 and Master of Corporate Governance (with
distinction) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2013. Mr. Lee holds PRC Legal Professional Qualification and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA), the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) and the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom, a member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) and a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) respectively. He is currently a Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee member, the Secretary
General for the Association of Hong Kong Accounting Advisors and a Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCC) members of Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region. He is the former chairman of the ACCA - Hong Kong branch (2015-16).

LA 508% 0 FR2007E6 B 1HMAR AT RERFHELE > H2015F 1826 HEEEERARATN AT WE - W Tt RZET
¥ (BEER EREED BEELR BTt A ES RE REEMEMPEREESS25FE WA - FHE11094
EEEBTIXASBWMEIREBLEM HER 0 MEEEREHASIEIREEB LR WHR2013EEETBEIAE
DEERERESADEABEIEM EAERETEAEREER ARAST BN A (HKICPA  BHF ARG HAAE
(ACCABABARNBABAE UAEEBHABAEAENEFEE TARBARHEESHIMA S (CIMAE B RIFFTFI
DIENCFA) R AT EBRITHEELLEELE BASHEAERXHENERAZEENEBAEHIBZE - BHEN
2015-16FIERF T AR AGACCATENEE R

Mr. XU Jiapeng
HFEMLE

Mr. XU Jiapeng (FF58), aged 48, is currently the general counsel of the Company. Mr. Xu joined the Company in January 2015.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu served as secretary/judge’s assistant of China Association of Judges in Supreme People’s
Court from July 1997 to June 2002, served as lawyer of Capital Markets Department of Jia Yuan Law Offices (3t R /5 5= R 12 M
EFEFR) from July 2002 to June 2003, and also served as lawyer of General Affairs Department of Beijing S&P Law Firm (A5
I A RENEFEFR) from July 2003 to September 2005. From September 2005 to January 2010, he worked as deputy general
manager of Legal Department in Hanergy Holding Group Limited CEREIZIREBEBRAF). From January 2010 to January
2014, he successively served as senior legal officer, legal management manager and director of legal affairs office in CGN
Wind Power, and later from January 2014 to January 2015, he served as deputy general manger of Legal Department. Mr. Xu
served as temporary person-in-charge of Legal (in charge of overall operation) Department of the Company from January 2015
to July 2017; he served as the general manager of Legal Department of the Company from July 2017 to October 2019; served
as the general counsel and the general manager of Legal Department of the Company from October 2019 to January 2021.
Mr. Xu currently is the general counsel of the Company from January 2021. Mr. Xu obtained a Bachelor Degree of International
Economic Law from China University of Political Science and Law (FREIEBIE A2Z) in 1997, and a Master Degree of Civil Law and
Commercial Law from Peking University (A5 K2 ) in 2004. Mr. Xu is a qualified lawyer.

HrEEi 48k  MEEA AT L EEM A ENR2016F1BMAXAET  RMARATR BFEER1997ETBE
2002 F6 B E RS AR ERIEATEEEHENMWE SEEMIE ; R2002F78 E2003F6 8 TR = REMEHETIEEE
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The directors (the “Directors”) of the CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the
generation and supply of electricity, construction and operation of power
stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and Korea.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report, which forms part of this
report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in this annual report.

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommends that
0.91 US cents (equivalent to 7.09 HK cents) per share of the Company be
distributed as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 23 May 2023 (the “2023 AGM”"),
is expected to be paid on Wednesday, 21 June 2023 to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 12 June 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend the 2023 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 18 May
2023 to Tuesday, 23 May 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for attending and
voting at the 2023 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration by not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 17 May 2023.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 8 June
2023 to Monday, 12 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at the above
address for registration by not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7 June
2023.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on pages 267 to 268. The summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) are subject to the rights, privileges
and restrictions set forth in the memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and are not subject to any pre-emptive or
similar rights under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda or pursuant to the
Bye-laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 35(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 138 to 139, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as of 31 December 2022 was approximately
US$96.5 million.

Report of the Directors

BEEEWS

MBERSE

FEEBTREMBEENEAMEE BEREBEN
E (R ECERERSMBERR) 80 F267E268H %
DBEL R ERCEZ M BREN -5

Y E RN i

ME - -BMERRENEHH NGRS BREME 140

(g

EATRAEREE2022F12831H IEEENEEHTIE
BN E M BRRMIEE350

BhiEERE

FRB R (TR D)) ZHE T AR B BB EZ A K AAE
(THRR)) S5 RA SRR RE > BEFET1981
FEREQARZATHREMUEBTEMNELEER
BLUER] -

,ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ‘tﬂ’ée A 1P /NI =S W ol o

AABRETAKBARNRE E2022F12831HIEFE
EMEEE  HERBEL AR AT EM EHES-

(3]

EABDRAEBRRE E2022FE12831HIEEENHE
BEFBEOREN GRS BRRMF35(a)RE138E
139ENGREEREEF RN

ARk

HE20225F12A31H AR D IR T AR BRI
EFERBENRBSBEEET-

2022 FEWE | PEEEMERERERARE

77



78

Report of the Directors
EEEBWS

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Below is a summary of the policy:

1. The profit distribution policy of the Company aims to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders as well as the sustainable development of the
Company, ensure the continuity and stability of profit distribution policy
in compliance with relevant requirements of laws, regulations and bye-
laws of the Company.

2. The payment and amount of dividends will depend on the specific
operation results of the Company, general financial position, cash flow
position, future operating and capital needs, amount of distributable
profit, restrictions under loan covenants, tax considerations, general
economic conditions, applicable laws and regulations as well as other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

3. The declaration of final dividend shall be recommended to
Shareholders by the Board based on the above situations, and will be
implemented after being voted and approved in general meeting of the
Company.

4. The declaration, payment and amount of interim dividend shall be
determined by the Board and implemented based on the above
situations from time to time.

LARGEST CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 71% of the Group’s total revenue and the Group’s
largest customer for the year accounted for approximately 39% of the Group’s
total revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
99% of the Group’s total purchases, while the largest supplier for the year
accounted for approximately 83% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange) or any of the Shareholders
who owns more than 5% of the Company’s number of issued Shares has any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors since 1 January 2022 and up to the date of this annual report
(being 21 March 2023) were:

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman, President and Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (appointed as Chairman of the Board and
President on 8 April 2022)

Executive Director:

Mr. Li Yilun (former President) (resigned as President and Director
on 8 April 2022)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Sui (former Chairman of the Board) (resigned and ceased to be
the Chairman of the Board and Director on 8 April 2022)

Mr. Wang Hongxin

Mr. Chen Xinguo (appointed on 8 April 2022)

Mr. Ren Liyong (appointed on 8 April 2022 and
resigned on 29 September 2022)

Mr. Bian Shuming (appointed on 29 September 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Under the Bye-laws, the existing Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company.

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Bian Shuming will retire
at the 2023 AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Minhao and Mr.
Leung Chi Ching Frederick will retire by rotation at the 2023 AGM and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

The retiring Directors, if re-elected, will hold office from the date of re-election
to the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held in
2026, subject to earlier determination in accordance with the Bye-laws and/or
any applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election or election at the 2023
AGM has or will have a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions”
in this section and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the continuing connected transactions as stated in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report of the Directors,
no contract of significance between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022.

TAXATION

Under present Bermuda law, there is no Bermuda income or profits tax,
withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital transfer tax, estate duty or
inheritance tax payable by the Company or its members, other than members
ordinarily resident in Bermuda. Further, no such tax is imposed by withholding
or otherwise on any payment to be made to or made by the Company.

STAMP DUTY

Under present Bermuda law, the Company is exempt from all stamp duties
in Bermuda except on transactions involving “Bermuda property”. This term
relates, essentially, to real and personal property physically situated in
Bermuda, including the shares of local companies (as opposed to exempted
companies). Transfers of shares and warrants in all exempted companies are
exempt from stamp duty in Bermuda.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

EFNRBER

EER2023FEREBFAGEEEXNEENES
ERAREEARDNAEEANBRARTLAERT
—FREFHEE CEERERIN SULKENRBES
EE

EENEARS - LHHASRRE

e

e

H

BRAEB B ARS ) —BREE M ERRMEIMIE
BEN NEE2022F12831H IEFEKRERINE
F2022F12A3 1 HIEFEEREMERE BIRAHAAKRQE]
RETAKRB AR IIEFEENEARZ ZHAE
A MEFRREETFHRENSENETERZAMEH
BEA#E-

ERRRNEAXSRNED

BRAEEGRS FEMERZ —HMBRNHERE
RS0 REE2022F 12831 HIEFELRGER TN E
F2022F12A3 1 HIEFEEREMER BIEAAAQE]
FEWBATHAABTNEMB AT NIERRIRET L
BEENEARER-.

HiiE

RERFNEREZR AATRENERE (BHA
RENMRERAARIN BAGMENEREMSRIA
BRI EARER EAERR  EERTMEK
R ot 5h - B R I8 I TR0 S AE M 75 T3 A 2 B A WY
FEHHNEANRBRZERE-

ENTERR

BRERENEBREZE BIKBREVEIZXS
Sh> RABER R B AR BREGMERENTER - ZH
TERTRAREREGFEZTHERBAME  HPE
FBEEMAD HHERRRATMS) ZRM - NEEFR
BERRARDZRORDREZHFANRBRESH
ENTERR -



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and/or chief executive of
the Company has any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which will be required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and chief executive were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO:

Capacity/Nature
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China General Nuclear Power Corporation Interests in controlled corporation 3,103,384,000 72.33%
(“CGN") M2xs) (long position)

REEZEEBRAR (THREZ) @ REEEEDR (FR)

CGNPC International Limited Interests in controlled corporation 3,101,800,000 72.29%
(“CGNPC International”) (725 (long position)

FREZERARAB (THEZBERE) 2 ZELEER FR)

CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited Beneficial owner 3,101,800,000 72.29%

(“CGN Energy International”) (/2
FElEZ A REI R ER B R A
(TR E % AR TR B PR ) (12

(long position)

BEmBEAA (FR)
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CGN indirectly holds 100% of the total issued share capital of CGN Energy International.
As informed by CGN, CGN was deemed to be interested in 3,103,384,000 Shares,
in which 3,101,800,000 Shares were held directly by CGN Energy International (a
controlled corporation of CGNPC International and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN),
and 1,584,000 Shares were held by other company that is controlled indirectly by CGN.
There could be a difference between the shareholding of CGN in the Company as at 31
December 2022 and the disclosure of interest information disclosed on the website of
the Stock Exchange, as the disclosure of interest information disclosed on the website of
the Stock Exchange represents information disclosed by CGN pursuant to its obligation
under Section 336 of the SFO only. For the avoidance of doubt and double counting, it
should be noted that the shareholdings stated against CGNPC International and CGN
Energy International represented the same block of Shares.

CGNPC International directly holds 87.28% of the total issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, which directly holds approximately 72.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and indirectly holds 12.72% of the issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Gold Sky Capital Limited.
Accordingly, CGNPC International is deemed to have an interest in all Shares held by
CGN Energy International.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, as of the date of this report, none of the Directors is
a director or employee of a company which had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 24 November 2015 for the purpose of enabling the Company to
(i) establish incentive and mechanism that is in line with market practice and
satisfies the Company’s development strategy needs so as to facilitate long-
term development of the Company and maximise Shareholders’ value, and
(ii) optimise the remuneration structure of core employees of the Company
such that the competitiveness of the Company’s remuneration system may be
enhanced, which will in turn attract and retain core management and technical
staff to serve the Company for a long period of time. All Options (as defined
below) ever granted under the Share Option Scheme have lapsed. No Options
were granted, exercised nor cancelled during the year ended 31 December

2022.

(1)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Eligible Participants to the Share Option
Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant options (the “Options”) to any eligible participants
(the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe at a price calculated in
accordance with paragraph (8) below for such number of Shares as
it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Participants to any Options
shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis of
his/her contribution to the development and growth of the Group in the
opinion of the Directors.
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(2)

(3)

Maximum Number of Shares Available for
Exercise

The total number of new Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other effective share option schemes (if any) of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
same class as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
which is 429,082,400 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The Company may at any time as the Board thinks fit seek approval
from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit save that
the total number of new Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the refreshment of
the Scheme Mandate Limit and the maximum number of new Shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report of the Directors, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was nil.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible
Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted and to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other effective
share option scheme(s) (if any) of the Company to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares of the same class.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons
Pursuant to Rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Any grant of Options to an Eligible Participant who is a
Director, chief executive of the Company or substantial
Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or their
respective associates (including a discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include a Director, chief executive or a
substantial Shareholder of a company beneficially owned by
any Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder) must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors.
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Where the Board proposes to grant any Option to an Eligible
Participant who is a substantial Shareholder or its associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include a substantial Shareholder or a company beneficially
owned by any substantial Shareholder) would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options
already granted and to be granted (including Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue; and

ii. having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, over
HK$5,000,000.00,

such proposed grant of Options must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case, the Company
shall send a circular to its Shareholders containing all those
terms as required under the Listing Rules. All connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting at such
general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the relevant resolution provided that his intention to
do so has been stated in this circular). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such Options must be taken
on a poll.

No Options were granted during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised at any time during a period of 3 years
from the date after the completion of the minimum period for which the
Option must be held as described in paragraph (5) below.
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(6)

(7)

Exercisable Period

Subject to the fulfilment of the exercise conditions as described in
paragraph (6) below, the Options are exercisable (subject as provided
below) during each Exercisable Period specified below for up to the

Report of the Directors

(5)

——

5]

EE

AT {T{EHAR

FEITXE(6)RFTMITREMEE > BRER
TXETRANEBATERABARR TR (EAR
TXFEAR) URERZEUTFIRMKE

85

number of Shares specified below:

Maximum number of Shares

R= kD #E

BB

Exercisable Period

5] 17 {5 23 R

approximately one-third of the Shares fall to be issued on
exercise of the Options*
BN EREETHERETEITORMN=22—

approximately an additional one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*
N B R EETHERR T ETHRM SIS

=pz—

approximately the remaining one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*

BN ERERTERE FTETHRANEGT

=Hz—
*Note:
Shares fall to be issued on exercise of the Options.

Exercise Conditions

The Board may at its absolute discretion determine the exact number of the

the first business day after 24 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 60th month after the offer date
ENHBREF4EABNE—EEXAEZENHER
Be0ERAMEE—EEER

the first business day after 36 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 72th month after the offer date

BEENHIEH6ESBENE—EAEXREENBERE
FEANERE—EEXAH

the first business day after 48 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 84th month after the offer date

BEENHIR48ERBENE—BAEXHEZNBERE
FAEANERE—EEXA

et BREUEERNBEERTEBREMR T
BONERRHEE -

(6) ITEMRMF

The Board or its delegate(s) may at their sole discretion specify, as
part of the terms and conditions of any Option, any performance
targets or conditions that must be satisfied before the Option can be
exercised as part of the terms and conditions of any Option.

Offer of Options

The Company and Eligible Participants shall enter into a share
option agreement upon the offer to set out the rights and obligations
of both parties. Share option agreement shall contain information
among others, names, number of identification card, address,
correspondence, and any other matters. Eligible Participants shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as the nominal consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.

(7)
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(8) Exercise Price for Shares

The exercise price for Shares issuable under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which
must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date.
(9) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted by the Shareholders, unless otherwise terminated under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Shareholders on 24 November 2015 and, as at the
date of this report, has a remaining life of approximately 2 years and 7
months.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
and no equity-linked agreement subsisted as at the end of the year ended 31
December 2022.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provide that each Director is entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report of the Directors, the Company has
arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into certain
transactions with connected persons. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are as follows:

(A) With CGN and its subsidiaries, excluding
the Group (the “CGN Group”)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements

1(a) Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited
(“CGNPC Huasheng”) and the Company entered into the
financial services (CGNPC Huasheng) framework agreement
(the “Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework
Agreement”) in relation to the deposit arrangement in Hong
Kong provided by CGNPC Huasheng to the Group, which was
effective from 12 September 2014 to 29 May 2015, being
the date of the first annual general meeting of the Company
after its listing. The first renewal of the Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the first
annual general meeting of the Company and the terms of the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement
became effective from 30 May 2015 and would continue up to
and including 31 December 2017. The second renewal of the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 18 December 2017 and the terms of the Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement became effective
from 1 January 2018 and would continue up to and including
31 December 2020.
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The third renewal of the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement, together with certain amendments,
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020 and the terms of the Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement became effective
from 1 January 2021 and shall continue up to and including
31 December 20283.

CGNPC Huasheng is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement and its renewals were disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 19 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”) and the circulars of the Company dated 20
April 2015, 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework
Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGN Finance Co., Ltd. (“CGN
Finance”) and the Company entered into the financial services
(CGN Finance) framework agreement (the “Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement’, together with the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement,
the “Financial Services Framework Agreements”’) in
relation to the deposit arrangement in the PRC provided
by CGN Finance to the Group, which was effective from 12
September 2014 to 29 May 2015, being the date of the
first annual general meeting of the Company after its listing.
The first renewal of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the first annual general
meeting of the Company and the term of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement became effective from
30 May 2015 and would continue up to and including 31
December 2017. The second renewal of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 December
2017 and the terms of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement became effective from 1 January 2018
and would continue up to and including 31 December 2020.
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The third renewal of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement, together with certain amendments,
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020 and the terms of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement became effective from
1 January 2021 and shall continue up to and including 31
December 2023.

CGN Finance is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement and its renewals were disclosed in the
Prospectus and the circulars of the Company dated 20 April
2015, 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided to the Group
under the Financial Services Framework Agreements are
similar, the estimated annual cap for the maximum outstanding
balance of deposits to be placed by the Group with CGNPC
Huasheng and CGN Finance under the Financial Services
Framework Agreements, together with the relevant interest
received, for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
aggregated and amounted to US$640.0 million. The actual
maximum outstanding balance of deposits placed by the
Group with CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance under the
Financial Services Framework Agreements, together with the
relevant interest received for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately US$525.8 million.
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2(a) Operation and Management Services (CGN

Energy) Framework Agreement

On 20 August 2014, CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“CGN Energy”) and the Company entered into the operation
and management services (CGN Energy) framework agreement
(the “Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement”’), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to provide, or procure a subsidiary of the Group
to provide operation and management services to power
projects (whether in operation or under construction) in which
CGN Energy had interest. The initial term of this agreement
was from 1 May 2014 to 31 December 2016. The Company
served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 where
the principal terms (other than renewal of the term) of the
renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement remained the same as the original
Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement’). The Company
further served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with
the terms of the 2016 Renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such
agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 where the principal terms (other than renewal
of the term) of the further renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

The Company further served a notice to CGN Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The principal
terms (other than renewal of the term and certain amendments)
of the further renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (CGN
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation of
the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.
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2(b)

CGN Energy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016 and 4 December 2019,
and the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement

On 15 September 2014, Huamei Holding Company Limited
(“Huamei Holding”) and the Company entered into the
operation and management services (Huamei Holding)
framework agreement (the “Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”,
together with the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement, the “Operation and
Management Services Framework Agreements”), pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide, or procure a
subsidiary of the Group to provide, operation and management
services to power projects (whether in operation or under
construction) in which a subsidiary of the group of companies
which were transferred to CGN Energy International as part of
the reorganization of the Group as described in the Prospectus
under which Huamei Holding had interest. The initial term of
this agreement was from 15 September 2014 to 31 December
2016. The Company served a notice to Huamei Holding in
accordance with the terms of the Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement to renew
such agreement for a term of three years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019 where the principal terms (other
than renewal of the term) of the renewed Operation and
Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement (including
the calculation of the management fees) (the “2016 Renewed
Operation and Management Services (Huamei Holding)
Framework Agreement”’). The Company further served a
notice to Huamei Holding in accordance with the terms of the
2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a
term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
where the principal terms (other than renewal of the term)
of the further renewed Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement”).
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The Company further served a notice to Huamei Holding in
accordance with the terms of the 2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 where
the principal terms (other than renewal of the term and
certain amendments) of the further renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement remained the same as the original Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees).
Such renewal of the Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 December 2020.

Huamei Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement and its renewals
were disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016 and 4 December 2019,
and the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Solar
Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (solar energy) framework
agreement (the “Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement’) with CGN Solar
Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“CGN Solar Energy”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide, or
procure a subsidiary of the Company to provide, operation
and management services to power projects (whether in
operation or under construction) in which CGN Solar Energy
had interest. The relevant subsidiaries of the Company would
provide comprehensive operation and management services
according to the requirements of the service recipient, and
may appoint personnel to be responsible for or to be involved
in the operations management, financial management, human
resources management, technical management, information
management, and/or safety management of the relevant
power project or company which held interest in the relevant
power project. The term of this agreement was from 17
June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The Company served a
notice to CGN Solar Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (Solar Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the principal
terms of the renewed Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Solar
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

Annual Report 2022

2(c)

AABRB2OIVFEREBENLERE
ERY EZER) EXRBENERE
REAEEZERBHBER EEERHE
=& [fH2021FE1B1HEEE20235F12
A3iHIE BREENKEREERE
EEER) ERBENETEGRR EHR
ETETRMN FRELSE R EER
B EZER) EXRGEER (BEEE
BENHELR)  KEREERE (FEE
RS ERBEN BB EE B 202045
12823HETHNARTARRFIAE
LEARABBILREHE o

EXERATEZNEZENE LR
IERE ERRA B A AT HBEEAL-

RERBEERY EXER) EXRDZR
NE—TSHEBENREREERAAT
HE A2016FE 125290 K2019&E 128
4B AEURARNE HE#A20205F 11
H25HME R P E o

RE R EIRIRTS (KFEAE) \EZE 17
#

R2015F6817H K AB A EZK
GREREAMRAR ((PEZKEREL)
SRS REERE (KGEE) ERD
# (IREREERYE (KB ERG
E) OB AATRRREMR HEE
ERNBH—RHBABIREELERE
EBERBFHIEZAGEEEREZNE
NIEE FHREEEPTRER) - ARE
HENBADBRERBEES ANE
REHE2ANCERETERE L%
KAEBERSHEBAENEERR
BN EEFERGN AN EE
EE -UHEEE -ANEREE JM
BE-FEEER AL 2EE KK
EFEHIR2015FE6817HE2017412
A31H ARBEREBELEREERE
(KFZEE) ERBZZERAFPEZK
GREZHBEN UWETzhE £HA
=% H2018F181HEE20205F12
B31B BR@E: Tz 2GRN BE
BHEE R EEIRT (KB AE) EZR &
HNEIERREARLCEREERY (K5
BE) BERGRER (BEEEENSES
) (M 2017 REBIKEREEIRT
(KERARE) B2 ©



The Company further served a notice to CGN Solar Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Save for the
renewal of the term of the agreement and certain amendments,
the principal terms of the renewed Operation and Management
Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.

CGN Solar Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2015, and the circulars of the Company dated 30 November
2017 and 25 November 2020.
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2(d) Operation and Management Services (Wind

Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (wind energy) framework agreement
(the “Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement’, together with the Operation and
Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement,
the “O&M Agreements”) with CGN Wind Power Company,
Limited (“CGN Wind Energy”’), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to provide, or procure a subsidiary of the
Company to provide operation and management services to
power projects (whether in operation or under construction) in
which CGN Wind Energy had interest. The relevant subsidiaries
of the Company would provide comprehensive operation and
management services according to the requirements of the
service recipient, and may appoint personnel to be responsible
for or to be involved in the operations management, financial
management, human resources management, technical
management, information management, and/or safety
management of the relevant power project or company which
held interest in the relevant power project. The term of this
agreement was from 17 June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The
Company served a notice to CGN Wind Energy in accordance
with the terms of the Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement
for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. Save for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the
principal terms of the renewed Operation and Management
Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

The Company further served a notice to CGN Wind Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement and certain
amendments, the principal terms of the renewed Operation and
Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and the
2017 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation of
the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.
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CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2015, and the circulars of the Company dated 30 November
2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided under the two
Operation and Management Services Framework Agreements
and the O&M Agreements are similar, the annual cap for
the management fees payable under the Operation and
Management Services Framework Agreements and the O&M
Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
determined on an aggregate basis and amounted to US$43.0
million. The actual management fees paid under the Operation
and Management Services Framework Agreements and the
O&M Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
approximately US$27.0 million.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting and announcement requirements

3.

Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreements

On 10 July 2020, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology Co.,
Limited (“CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology”) and
the Company entered into the maintenance services of wind
farms and photovoltaic power plants framework agreement
(the “2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to engage CGN
(Beijing) New Energy Technology to provide maintenance
services (which may include the provision of information
services, two measures services, overhaul services, repairs,
maintenance and upgrading of facilities and equipment, regular
inspection services, and pre-testing services, installation and
replacement of equipment and spare parts services) to certain
wind farms and photovoltaic power plants of the Group. The
term of this agreement shall be one year from 10 July 2020
to 9 July 2021, subject to renewal by way of written notice to
CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology upon its expiry.

On 29 April 2021, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology and
the Company further entered into the maintenance services
of wind farms and photovoltaic power plants framework
agreement (the “2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms
and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”)
to renew the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement for a term of
three years from 10 July 2021 to 9 July 2024.

CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGN Solar Energy, which is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Further details of the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement
and the 2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 10 July
2020 and 29 April 2021, respectively.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum service fee
payable from the Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy
Technology for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to RMB90.0 million. The actual service fee paid by the
Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology under the
2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants Framework Agreement for the same period was
approximately RMB24.0 million.

Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants (as
amended by the Supplemental Framework
Agreement for Equipment Inspection and
Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants)

On 16 December 2020, Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd.
(“Gansu CGN Wind Power”) and the Company entered
into the supplemental framework agreement for equipment
inspection and maintenance services of wind farms and
photovoltaic power plants (the “2020 Supplemental
Framework Agreement for Equipment Inspection and
Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants”) to revise the terms of the framework
agreement for equipment inspection and maintenance services
of wind farms and photovoltaic power plants (the “Framework
Agreement for Equipment Inspection and Maintenance
Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants”)
dated 10 June 2019 as entered into between Gansu CGN
Wind Power and the Company, pursuant to which Gansu CGN
Wind Power agreed to provide equipment inspection and
maintenance services (which may include the provision of
power transmission and transformation equipment maintenance
and pretest services, regular inspection and maintenance
of wind power towers services, photovoltaic power plants
components cleaning services and replacement of equipment
and spare parts services) to wind farms and photovoltaic
power plants of the Group. The term of the Framework
Agreement for Equipment Inspection and Maintenance Services
of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants (as amended
by the Supplemental Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants) shall be three years from 10 June
2019 to 9 June 2022, subject to renewal by way of written
notice to Gansu CGN Wind Power upon its expiry.

On 28 June 2022, Gansu CGN Wind Power and the Company
further entered into the second supplemental framework
agreement for equipment inspection and maintenance services
of wind farms and photovoltaic power plants (the “2022
Supplemental Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms
and Photovoltaic Power Plants”) to further renew the 2020
Supplemental Framework Agreement for Equipment Inspection
and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants for a term of three years from 10 June 2022 to 9
June 2025.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

20204 B & 15 K 't A B ik 32 4 AR TS AE
s 2021 FE A B H KA B ik E
HRBERGZNE—SHEBIHN
2&@35%%2020&75105&2021&
AF29BHI A ENIKEE

HE2022F12831HEEE ) AATE
BHREZ R HERRNEZTHNRS
RFEBGHAFELRAAREI.0EE
Joe AR RIE2021 FAEBIHRILRE
WIEMERFER HEPEIER P EZ
(b)) FHERNEZ AN ERREE
HWAEANREE240EE T

B BB RAARBILZEIRE R
MEEIRTSAEZS R (EELES K
TR BIEREIRE R ML AR TS
KEZR T I ERIEET)

R2020F 128160 HEFTEZR D
BERAE (HEPEZAE)) #F
REGIMEABHRARBERERE
K ERBIERERGRE ([2020F R
BERAREBUERERERBEERS
EBRERRE)  WETHREPEZR
BEAN 7145’35337%20195!56510
HHWRBSBEARELZERS
RS IEZR R (Uﬂ%%&y‘:ﬁ%:ﬁﬁ
EREREERBERRE) NER
B HEPEZRAE Hsl‘ﬁ&%lﬂ
BERAREHERESE RS RifE
R (AT A @%?ﬂ#ﬁfﬁ%a&%ﬁ%ﬁ
HARH RESZRAETEHARE R EER
- fszﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ,a,ﬂﬁ“& fﬁ&ﬁ
HERRE) -RAEHBRNABHERE
ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ&s%ﬂﬁkﬁ+n’%m(i«< BI5 K
KRB R ERE R AEERTERME
TEipEEs]) WEHA=F > 5201946
B10HEZE2022F6 8901 IR EE
mEUOHETEZEEELEEAE
MAREBE-

Ro022F6F28H HEFEZREH
KNBE—FTUE_RABB RN
KRB FHRE R ﬂfﬁ‘“ﬂi R
& ([ 2022F A BHRARBILRE
BEREERFERBRIGE LAL
—FEM2020F A EIH RN KREM
ERE R ERBESR ﬁﬁhﬂuﬂa’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
A =9 H2022F 68100 E2025%6
=] =Nl=gd



Gansu CGN Wind Power is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of CGN Wind Energy, which is a subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms
and Photovoltaic Power Plants (as amended by the 2020
Supplemental Framework Agreement for Equipment Inspection
and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants) were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2020.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum service fee
payable from the Company to Gansu CGN Wind Power for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB8.5 million.
The actual service fee paid by the Company to Gansu CGN
Wind Power under the Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants (as amended by the 2020 and 2022
Supplemental Framework Agreements for Equipment Inspection
and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants) for the same period was approximately RMB3.8
million.

Shared Services Agreement

On 30 July 2021, CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CGN Shenzhen”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy, and
CGN Energy entered into the shared services agreement
(the “Shared Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy and CGN Energy, and
their respective subsidiaries from time to time (collectively,
the “Service Providers”) agreed to provide various types
of shared services, including but not limited to (i) usage of
office and business premises; (ii) human resources support;
(iii) repair and maintenance services; (iv) office and meeting
administrative services; and (v) other operational resources
support, to CGN Shenzhen and its subsidiaries from time to
time (collectively, the “Service Recipients”). The term of the
Shared Services Agreement shall be from 30 July 2021 to 31
December 2023, subject to renewal by the parties thereto in
writing before the expiry of its term.

Each of CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy and CGN
Energy is a subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Shared Services Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 July
2021.

The estimated annual cap for the service fee payable by the
Service Recipients to the Service Providers for the year ended
31 December 2022 was RMB155.6 million. The actual service
fee paid by the Service Recipients to the Service Providers
under the Shared Services Agreement for the same period was
approximately RMB71.8 million.
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(B) General

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group as
mentioned above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 and have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better (as defined in the Listing
Rules); and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;

2. were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

3. were entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above, none of
these related party transactions constitute discloseable connected transactions
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In relation to those related
party transactions that also constitute connected transactions as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, they have complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-Competition
Deed”) with CGN on 15 September 2014 under which CGN agreed not to,
and agreed to procure its subsidiaries (other than the Group) not to, compete
with the Group in its non-nuclear power business (save for the retention of the
existing Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus) of the CGN Group
or any future business which the CGN Group has carried on pursuant to the
terms of the Non-Competition Deed) and granted the Company with a right to
acquire the Retained Business of the CGN Group and a right to acquire any
new business or equity investment opportunity directed to the Group according
to the terms of the Non-Competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from CGN confirming to the
Company on its compliance with the relevant non-competing procedures set
out in the Non-Competition Deed and having protected the right granted to the
Company under the Non-Competition Deed to invest in or acquire the relevant
projects during the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the independent non-executive
Directors (the “Disinterested Directors”), being the Directors other than
those who are also directors and senior management personnel of the CGN
Group, had reviewed several business or investment opportunities offered by
or referred to by the CGN Group pursuant to the Non-Competition Deed. The
Disinterested Directors considered the opportunities taking into account, inter
alia, the following:

(a) whether such business or investment opportunities would create or
would likely create competition with the principal business of the
Group;

(b) the business and financial performance and potential of the subject

business or investment opportunities;

(c) the feasibility and viability for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities (in terms of the
availability of management, financial and business resources and
expertise);

(d) the terms and conditions of the acquisition of or taking on the subject
business or investment opportunities;

(e) the financial budget and business plan of the Group for undertaking
the subject business or investment opportunities in the relevant year;

(f) result of a cost-benefit analysis for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities, and whether such
subject opportunities are consistent with the business development
strategy of the Group, and whether it is likely to create any strategic or
synergy value to the Group’s existing business;
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g

(9) the likely risks associated with the subject business or investment
opportunities should the Group acquire, take on, operate or participate
in such subject opportunities; and

(h) the equity internal rate of return and/or the expected internal rate of
return of the subject business or investment opportunities.

As a result, we had not exercised any right to acquire or invest in those
business or investment opportunities.

The Disinterested Directors have reviewed compliance by CGN and confirm
that based on the confirmations and information provided by CGN, CGN was
in compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the year ended 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of the date of this report, so far as the Directors were aware, none of the
Directors, and their respective close associates had interest in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

We determined the emoluments of our Directors and employees based on their
respective performance, working experience, roles and responsibilities as well
as market factors. We offer our executive Directors and senior management
members, who are also employees of our Company, various compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension scheme, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other benefits in kind. We provide our employees with
salaries and discretionary bonuses, as well as employee benefits, including
retirement schemes, medical and life insurance schemes, housing and other
benefits in kind. None of our Directors has waived or agreed to waive his
Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2022.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” SUMMARY

This section is a summary of the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”). It outlines the Company’s key
strategies and achievements in sustainable development in 2022. In 2022, the
Company actively fulfilled its social responsibility and closely cooperated with
stakeholders to achieve the mission of sustainable development.

During the first half of 2022, China continuously issued programmatic
documents for the “14th Five-Year Plan” period to provide guidance for
the development of the industry, the “14th Five-year Plan for Renewable
Energy Development” was officially issued, and policies in relation to the
establishment of a power market system which improved the coordination of
various types of transactions were introduced. The Company will continue to
cooperate with the development of national policies, focus on cooperative
development to reinforce three alliances of “Strategies, Industries and
Technologies”, focus on key development to fight the battle of “major projects”,
deploy resources in new business formats of new energy storage actively.
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GOVERNANCE

The Company monitors the corporate governance mechanism continuously
to maintain its efficiency, orderliness, transparency, and stability. During the
reporting period, the Company enhanced ESG governance by conducting
a comprehensive ESG risk assessment and analysis and reviewing the
Company’s environmental targets in order to proceed to the next step. The
Company gradually improved the monitoring of sustainable development and
achieved our business strategies and targets steadily.

ENVIRONMENT

The Company’s clean energy sources cover wind power, solar power,
hydropower, gas-fired and biomass, etc, and it sets up the total installed
capacity target annually to pursues breakthroughs continuously. The Company
actively responds to and focuses on the "Dual Carbon" targets by incorporating
technological innovation, precise management, and increased efforts to
improve operational efficiency. During the reporting period, the Company’s
safety, quality and environmental protection department continued to improve
and regularly review the environmental safety management work, organize
and implement the annual safety, quality and environmental performance
assessment and evaluation for each business department, department and
branch company. The Company strictly managed the emission standards
of air emissions, wastewater and waste for each project, to ensure that the
Company’s projects complied with the relevant national environmental safety
regulations and laws. The Company will promote high-quality development
and consolidate in the clean energy market for the purpose of providing safe,
environmentally friendly and economical clean energy to society. Clean energy
is the trend, the Company will continue to adhere to its mission to produce
high-quality clean energy for society, and fully commit to the national "Dual
Carbon" targets.

SOCIETY

The Company insists that “The People and Life be Paramount” and adheres
to the basic principles of “Safety First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing
Excellence”, practices the work style focusing on “Stringency, Prudence,
Meticulosity and Pragmatism” and fully implements the laws and regulations
in relation to safety production on the national level. The Company attaches
great importance to the safety and personal development of employees,
conducts safety monitoring regularly, distributes personal protective
equipment to employees and provides regular safety training. In terms
of employee development and training, the Company regularly provides
employees with diversified vocational skills training and establishes a clear
development path according to the skills needed for different project positions.
Therefore, employees not only create value for the Company, but also obtain
opportunities to improve their professional competitiveness. Meanwhile, the
Company has been facilitating the construction of “Beautiful China”, actively
holding public events and caring campaigns, fulfilling corporate social
responsibility.

For the full version of the ESG Report, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 2022”
to be published on HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.cgnne.com) by the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available information and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has sufficient public float
as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to approximately HK$3,176,000 (2021:
HK$4,174,000).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
KPMG as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Zhiwu
Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman, President and
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
considers effective corporate governance is a key component in the sustained
development of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and believes
that good corporate governance practices are increasingly important for
maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor confidence. The
Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own
code of corporate governance. The Board considers that the Company was
in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, except for code provision
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C.2.1 of the CG Code which states that the roles of chairman and chief FEHE—ARRRT-
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same

individual.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategies,
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring of the
performance of the senior management. The Directors make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises seven Directors, including one executive Director, three non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Members
of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to 21 March
2023, the date of this report, are as follows:

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman, President and Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (appointed as Chairman of the Board and
President on 8 April 2022)

Executive Director:

Mr. Li Yilun (former President)
(resigned as President and Director on 8 April 2022)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Sui (former Chairman of the Board) (resigned and ceased to be
the Chairman of the Board and Director on 8 April 2022)

Mr. Wang Hongxin

Mr. Chen Xinguo (appointed on 8 April 2022)

Mr. Ren Liyong (appointed on 8 April 2022 and
resigned on 29 September 2022)

Mr. Bian Shuming (appointed on 29 September 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Biographical details and relationships among members of the Board as at the
date of this report are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing day-
to-day operations, business strategies and management of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Director, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

During the year, the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) provided the Company with a diverse range of expertise
and a balance of skills, and brought independent judgments in issues pertinent
to strategic direction, development, performance and risk management through
their contribution at the Board meetings and committee meetings.
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Chairman and President

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu has been appointed as both the Chairman of the Board and
the President of the Company since 8 April 2022. Taking into account the
fact that Mr. Zhang has demonstrated suitable leadership and management
capabilities and developed a thorough understanding of the business and
strategy of the Group since his appointment as an executive Director in 2020,
the Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the President in
Mr. Zhang can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies and
enable more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code is not inappropriate in such circumstances. In addition, the Board
comprises, among others, three non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Therefore, the Board believes that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement is not impaired and this
structure enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider its options in
relation to the present arrangement at a time when it is appropriate by taking
into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Appointments, re-election and removal of
Directors

Each Director has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). In accordance with bye-
law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Bian Shuming will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer himself for
re-election. Mr. Wang Minhao and Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election, in accordance with bye-law 84
of the Bye-laws.

Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals
with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication.

Board meetings in each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of Directors.
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The calendar of regular Board meetings (the “Board Meetings”’), Board
committees meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 December
2022 is shown below:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May

BE2022F12A3ALFENEREERGR ((ES
BEE)) EEgZERBURRRERARGARRN
T

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

18 2H 38 48 58 68 78 8H 98 108 118 128

Board S 4 v v 4
Nomination Committee RHEER 4 4
Remuneration Committee  #MZEES 4 4 4
Audit Committee BREER v v v 4
Investment and Risk CEBREREE

Management Committee ~ ZE& v/ v/ v v/ v/
General Meeting REAE 4

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has held four Board
Meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has held an annual
general meeting (the “2022 AGM”).

The table below sets forth the number of meetings of the Board and Board
Committees (as defined below) and general meeting attended by each Director
who held office during the year ended 31 December 2022:

REE2022F 12831 HIEFE EEZGERTHERE
EEgEo

REE2022F12831HIEFE ARBEET XK
BEFEARE (T2022FERFBEFERE)) ©

TREVNEE2022F 12831 LFESETESH
FEERERNRETELEG (EEOT) SEUERR
BARGZRHK

Attendance/Number of meetings

BELER/NY
Investment
and Risk
Nomination Remuneration Audit  Management General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
REHAR

Name of Director EEST - RL%EEE FMEEE BREER EEZEE BRAE

Secretary of the Communist Party EREN IR VEER
Committee, Chairman, President and H{TEF :

Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu RERGLE 4/4 N/A 11
(appointed as Chairman of the Board (h2022F4H8HEZRT THER
and President on 8 April 2022) AEELTIRELER)

Executive Director: HTES .

Mr. Li Yilun (former President) FNREE FIESR) 11 N/A
(resigned as President and Director on (Fh2022F 4 B8 HEHT TER
8 April 2022) (Note i) BERESR) (W)

Non-executive Directors: FRTES .

Mr. Chen Sui (former Chairman of the BEEE FIEERER) 11 1/2 N/A
Board) (resigned and ceased to be the (R2022F 4 B8 HEHE THERA
Chairman of the Board and Director on =~ EEETFERES)

8 April 2022) (Note i) (Hratii)

Mr. Wang Hongxin IEMEE 4/4 2/3 3/4 4/5

Mr. Chen Xinguo BB E (7220226 2/3
(appointed on 8 April 2022) (Note iii) AR8BEZRM) (Watii)

Mr. Ren Liyong (appointed on EHELE (R20224F 2/2 11
8 April 2022 and resigned on 4A8HERERR20225
29 September 2022) (Note iv) 9B 29  BHT) (Wfitiv)

Mr. Bian Shuming (appointed on TEBEE (R2022F 11 N/A
29 September 2022) (Note v) 9B29BEEMA) (Hatv) TBA

Independent Non-executive Directors: HIFHITES !

Mr. Wang Minhao ITRERE 4/4 2/2 3/3 1/1

Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRERE 3/4 2/2 3/3 414 5/5 1/1

Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick RIELE 4/4 4/4 5/5 11

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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Note i: Mr. Li Yilun resigned as President and an executive Director on 8 April 2022. For details,

please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2022. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, no general meeting was held before his resignation took
effect.

Note i Mr. Chen Sui resigned as Chairman of the Board, a non-executive Director and the

chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 April 2022. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2022. During the year ended 31
December 2022, no general meeting was held before his resignation took effect.

Note iii:  Mr. Chen Xinguo was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022. For details,

please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2022.

Note iv: Mr. Ren Liyong was appointed and resigned as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022
and 29 September 2022, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 8 April 2022 and 29 September 2022, respectively.

Note v:  Mr. Bian Shuming was appointed as a non-executive Director on 29 September 2022.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 September
2022. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no general meeting was held after his
appointment took effect.

Corporate Governance

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code including the development of policies and
practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct applicable to the employees
of the Company and the Directors, the compliance with the CG Code of the
Company and the disclosure in this report.

Training and support for Directors

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code with regards
to continuous professional development, all Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Upon appointment to the Board, all newly appointed Directors have been
provided with necessary induction training and materials to ensure that they
have proper understanding of the operation and business of the Company and
their responsibilities under the relevant laws, regulations and rules.

To further ensure that all Directors are adequately informed about the
Company’s business and operations as well as their responsibilities under
relevant laws, rules and regulations, the Company Secretary regularly
provides all Directors with information regarding the Company’s most recent
performance as well as updates on latest amendments and developments to
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
organised training in respect of the latest updates with the Listing Rules.

Ty VAN "
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HEEE B2 RA AR HBEAR2022F488HNAE

Histiv. EHBREDHNERR2022FE488H EEZ T R20224
9H20HBIEIFITE R - ARIEIE > BE2BALQEH
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Ty VAN~
_IJ:;E'EQI/D#—E%

The Directors who held office for the year ended 31 December 2022 received
the following training during the same period according to the records

provided by the Directors:

Attendance for
trainings/seminars/
meetings in respect
of the Company’s

RIFEEFRMNEHR  HE2022F12831BLEEER
FEFREREZEINDOT :

TYPES OF TRAINING:
I

Reading of materials
in respect of updates
on the Company’s
business, duties

and responsibilities
of Directors

Visit to power
plants and
facilities and
their respective

business or duties and regulatory management
of Directors requirements personnel
FEEA AT ER
HEEBRAAFERS ESRHERBEUR BHEEREK
EEBENEN EEREEMAN BREAREBN
Mg ik BB R STEAB
Secretary of the Communist Party EREI - FIE ERBERNTES
Committee, Chairman, President
and Executive Director:
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (appointed as REREE (R2022F4880ERT

Chairman of the Board and President ~ AEE Y+ F KEH)

on 8 April 2022) v/ 4 v
Executive Director: BITESE
Mr. Li Yilun (former President) Fna it FIEH)

(resigned as President and Director (R2022F4B8HEH T RES)

on 8 April 2022) 4 4
Non-executive Directors: FEHMITES .

Mr. Chen Sui (former Chairman of the — %4 BIESEEE)

Board) (resigned and ceased (FR2022F4 A8 HEHE

to be the Chairman of the Board and EEETHEREZE)

Director on 8 April 2022) 4 4
Mr. Wang Hongxin TRMEE 4 v 4
Mr. Chen Xinguo BRETE &

(appointed on 8 April 2022) (R2022F4 B8 HEZH ) v v v/
Mr. Ren Liyong (appointed on 8 April B4 (R2022F458H EEE

2022 and resigned on 29 September K& 7$2022F 95 29H F#1T)

2022) 4 4 4
Mr. Bian Shuming TERLE

(appointed on 29 September 2022) (12202298 29HEHT) 4 4 4
Independent Non-executive BUEHRTES:

Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao TEERE v v/
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRERE 4 v
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick 2FIERE v/ v/

Directors’ insurance

During the year ended 31

December 2022, the Company has arranged

appropriate liability insurance for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising

out of corporate activities.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
securities transactions

The Company has adopted its own code for securities transactions by
Directors (the “Company Code”), which are on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”), as a code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Company Code during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), a nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and an investment and
risk management committee (the “Investment and Risk Management
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
respectively. Members of the Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.
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Investment and

Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk Management
Committee Committee Committee Committee
BEZZTES HHMZES RELES KREHEREIR
Z88
Audit Committee BZEET

As of 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr. Leung
Chi Ching Frederick (independent non-executive Director), and the members
are Mr. Wang Hongxin (non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
(independent non-executive Director).

HZE2022F 128310 BEREZEGHRFIENRE (B
FRITER) BETER REGQEIEFHLE GERETE
B) MBRESE BIUFRTES) o

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAHE

109



110

Corporate Governance Report

_I.I_Ir

TEE

B¥S

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditors

(a)

(b)

(e)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider the plan for each year’s audit submitted by the external
auditors and discuss the same at a meeting if necessary;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed.

Review of the financial information of the Company

()

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and annual
reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. In reviewing these reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee shall focus particularly
on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(ii) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in

relation to financial reporting.

Annual Report 2022
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(9) in regard to (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

(ii) the Audit Committee shall consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, internal
auditors or external auditors.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control systems

(h) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems ;

(i) to discuss the internal control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

(J) to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

(k) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(1 to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

(m) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to management about accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response;

(n) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(o) to review arrangements which employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit Committee
should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;
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(p) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

(q) to review the continuing connected transactions to ensure compliance
with the terms approved by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”);

(r) to establish whistleblowing policies and systems to allow employees
and others who have dealings with the Company (such as customers
and suppliers) to raise their concerns in secret to the Audit Committee
about any possible improper matters regarding the Company;

(s) to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(1) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Company are
in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, four Audit Committee meetings
were held, inter alia, to review the 2021 annual results, the 2022 interim
results and the internal control of the Group. The attendance records are
set out under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report. A recent meeting of the Audit Committee was held
on 14 March 2023 to consider the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022, the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity, the effectiveness of the audit process and the Group’s
internal control system, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Remuneration Committee

As of 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr.
Wang Minhao (independent non-executive Director) and the members were Mr.
Wang Hongxin (non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent
non-executive Director).
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The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(a)

(e)

(M)

0

to assess, review and make recommendations once a year or as and
when required, to the Board in respect of the remuneration packages
and overall benefits for the Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board in relation to all consultancy
agreements and service contracts or any variations, renewals or
modifications thereof, entered into between the Company and the
Directors or any associate company of any of them;

to consider what details of the remuneration/benefits of the Directors
should be reported in the Company’s annual reports and accounts
in addition to those required by law and how those details should be
presented;

to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for remuneration of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment);

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities as well as employment conditions of other
positions in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Director
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and reasonable and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, and to make disclosure and give
explanation on the appropriateness of such material matters (if any)
being reviewed and/or approved in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, three Remuneration Committee
meetings were held, inter alia, to review the remuneration structure and
packages of the Directors and senior management, and consider the
emoluments of candidates for the Directors. The attendance records are set
out under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance”
in this report. A recent meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on
14 March 2023 to consider and review, among others, the Group’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, the
current remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Nomination Committee

With effect from 8 April 2022 and as of 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee was chaired by Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (Secretary of the Communist
Party Committee, Chairman, President and executive Director) and the
members were Mr. Wang Minhao (independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director). Before 8 April 2022,
Mr. Chen Sui (former Chairman and non-executive Director) served as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company;

(b) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship, including but not limited
to assessing the balance of skills, knowledge and experience as well
as diversification of Board members, and based on the assessment
results, to prepare a description of the roles and capabilities required
for individual appointments;

(c) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
(e) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the president of the Company;

(f) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
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(9) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Bye-laws
or imposed by the Listing Rules or applicable law; and

(h) to review the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board’s diversity policy.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the Company
are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will carry out
a selection process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations, and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates for directorship.

The Board has also adopted a Board diversity policy. Below is a summary of
the policy:

“The Board recognizes that board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company and enhances
Board effectiveness and corporate governance. In determining the optimum
composition of the Board, all Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board aims to
maintain a Board which has an appropriate mix of diversity, skills, experience
and expertise, as well as a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) so that
there is also independent element on the Board.”

The Company has an unwavering commitment to talent as a prime resource
for development. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in related business areas.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held, inter alia, to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and to consider, nominate and recommend appointment
and re-appointment of Directors. The attendance records are set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.
A recent meeting of the Nomination Committee was held on 14 March 2023 to
consider and review, among others, the composition of the Board, succession
planning for the Directors and the Board’s diversity policy.

Ty VAN "
ﬂ:%é;ﬂ#ﬁ%

(9) BTHEFSTIRRENMRAHIE TR
RSB R A EFTIEINEVER ZR B R RRE
b4

EHER (WBA) ; LIRFNESE

(h) BMANEEEZTT
BEFEELEBEMSIENAFER

BRE

o

EABDMFEMNREREZETRRBENTAEEEART
BIBIRSO WD B AR B e B X T B B Ih B & o

HEFEAEETHR RLZEERSERZBREANK
BE AR BB s BENH - EA NS REE AR AR E
REEMABREEERERAETRE THESEE
BEASMIEDESSFHESE

EXgTERMERESTS
ZHE

2 TABEER o U T AR BUR

(BEEgRAEETNETILRAATATFELEEN—
BEAEBEZ TARSESTNUERMNALES S
AABEFEEESERENREHESHELUBAMES
BRATEZEANERUTEEHCBEREEZESNE
EAtHNER EFTEEERMNES T BE K
BREENEEG UHFRTESHRIFNTES (8
BEIERTES NYUELGLUEESTABEIIT
EN

ARBABREFABUMBTATREREZERNRA -
HEEFGAERR-—RIZTICHRBERELE BEE
FIRIMER S F8 XERBBEE R FELER 1TEE
B~ BAE ~ R R S AR R 1T 2RI B I 2R B R o

REZE2022F12A31HIEEE  RLEZECEETH
RgHEUBRE (HPOE ES908E AR Al
EZmb TEZRE - RAKEZZARERES -AH
HEDEHEENARE EZRENRESTHEBE R —&-
RALEGRI—NREZEN2023FE3F 140 17 UE
ERBE (Hhel) ESg0Em ESHTtEIRE
EEEL LBk

2022 FEWE | PEEEMERERERARE

115



116

Corporate Governance Report
TEEILGHRS

The Company is conscious of maintaining a Board made up with an
appropriate level of female members. Although the Board is currently of all
male members, the Company will endeavor to achieve gender diversity by
appointing at least one female Board member by no later than 31 December
2024. While conscious efforts are being taken by the Company to fulfil its
pledges, all appointments are ultimately made on a merit basis taking into
account available and suitable candidates.

The Board will use its best endeavors to appoint female Directors to the Board
(taking into consideration the management continuity and the timeline for
retirement and re-election of Directors under the Bye-laws) and the Nomination
Committee will seek to identify and recommend suitable female candidates to
the Board for its consideration on nomination of a Director, based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, industry experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service in related business areas. The Company will
also continue to ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff
at mid to senior level so that the Company will have a pipeline of female
management and potential successors to the Board in due time to ensure
gender diversity of the Board. The Group will continue to emphasize training of
female talent and provide long-term development opportunities for female staff.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had about 1,936 full-time employees,
comprising of approximately 230 females and 1,706 males (that is, a female-
to-male ratio of approximately 1:7). The Group will continue to strive for
gender diversity and increase the female-to-male ratio in the whole workforce
in order to reflect the gender equality principle generally adhered by the
Group. The Board is mindful of the objectives for the factors as set out above
for assessing the candidacy of the Board members, and will ensure that
any successors to the Board shall follow the gender diversity policy. Similar
considerations shall also be in place to assess the candidacy of the senior
management team from time to time. The Group is determined to maintain
gender diversity and equality in terms of the whole workforce, and to procure
the senior management team to achieve gender equality in terms of the gender
ratio within an approximately two-year timeframe. The Company expects the
above is achievable with suitable effort in promoting the gender diversity
culture.

The Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism (the “Mechanism”) is
designed to ensure a strong independent element on the Board and ensuring
independent views and input are available to the Board which allows the Board
to exercise independent judgment effectively and enhances the accountability
and transparency of the Board, so as to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests. An annual review on Board independence has been conducted
to assess the Directors’ contribution to the Board (including the viewpoints,
perspectives, skills and experience they bring to the Board), aims to ensure
that it remains independent in judgement, and to continue to present an
objective and constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management. The Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Mechanism and makes changes as necessary.
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The major contents of the Mechanism are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(e)

(9)

Nomination Committee is established and maintained with clear terms
of reference to identify suitable candidates, including independent non-
executive Directors, for appointment as Directors;

Procedures for Nomination of Directors and its Processes and Criteria
is in place with details of the process and criteria of identifying,
selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating new Directors;

Every independent non-executive Director is required to confirm
in writing to the Company his/her independence upon his/her
appointment as Director in accordance with the Company’s Procedures
for Nomination of Directors and its Processes and Criteria and the
Listing Rules as well as other regulatory requirements (including
but not limited to the requirements on independence, qualifications,
number of Directors and Board diversity);

Each independent non-executive Director has to declare his/her past or
present financial or other interests in the business of the Company and
its subsidiaries as soon as practicable, or his/her connection with any
of the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules),
if any;

Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in his/her own
personal particulars that may affect his/her independence;

Each independent non-executive Director is required to devote
sufficient time to the discharge of his duties as a Director and actively
participate in the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees;

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence of
all independent non-executive Directors and confirm if each of them
still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out in the Listing Rules
and is free from any relationships and circumstances which are likely
to affect, or could appear to affect, their own independent judgement.
Every Nomination Committee member is required to abstain from
assessing his/her own independence;

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it will
set out in the circular to Shareholders the reasons it believes he/
she should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to be
independent. The relevant independent non-executive Director is
required to abstain from assessing his/her own independence; and

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s
senior management independently, if necessary.
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As at the date of this report, the following table and paragraph illustrates
the composition and diversity of the Board in terms of four objective criteria,
namely (i) age group, (ii) cultural and educational background, (iii) professional
experience and (iv) industry experience, skills and knowledge.
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Age group Cultural and educational background Professional experience
FEMR XEREEFER b
Accounting,
Bachelor’s Master’s Doctoral Economics
degree degree degree and
50 to 59 60 to 69 70to 79 holder holder holder Engineering Finance Legal
LN
50E595% 60Z695% T0E795 2t Bt it I% R R
57% 29% 14% 29% 57% 14% 43% 43% 14%

In addition to the above table, each of the Directors has at least one of the
following industry experience, skills or knowledge:

(a) Experience of electric power or energy-related industries;
(b) Engineering and Mechanic;

(c) Strategic planning;

(d) Investment and risk management;

(e) Corporate management (including internal control, operations, assets
and other aspects);

(f) Legal and compliance;

(9) Financial (including accounting, finance, corporate finance, tax, etc.);
(h) Negotiation and execution of commercial contracts;

(i) Public management and venture management;

(J) Environmental protection;

(k) Experience in management of listed companies;

Q)] Familiarity with the business environment of China; and

(m) Familiarity with the business environment of Hong Kong and the

international business environment.

The Nomination Committee considers that the existing composition of the
Board is diversified, taking into account the nature and scope of the Group’s
operations, specific needs as well as the different background of our Directors.
Furthermore, the Nomination Committee recommends that the diversity of the
Board in terms of (i) cultural and educational background, (ii) professional
experience, and (iii) industry experience, skills and knowledge should be
maintained, and that the Board should adopt these criteria as the basis for
the selection and assessment of candidates for Directors by the Nomination
Committee in the future.
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

As of 31 December 2022, the Investment and Risk Management Committee
was chaired by Mr. Wang Hongxin (non-executive Director), and the members
were Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Leung
Chi Ching Frederick (independent non-executive Director).

All of the members of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
are non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Investment and Risk
Management Committee are as follows:

(a) to review major investment and strategy and objectives of project
financing of the Company;

(b) to review any major investment, financing proposal and operating
project matters of the Company that are subject to approval by the
Board in accordance with the “Board of Directors Delegation of
Authority Manual”;

(c) to review the development and objectives of the Company’s risk
management system;

(d) to supervise the soundness, reasonableness and effectiveness of
the risk management system, and instruct the comprehensive risk
management of the Company;

(e) to study the risks of significant matters in major investment and
financing activities and operation management of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board;

(f) to study the significant investigation results and feedbacks from the
management concerning the risk management of the Company; and

(9) to handle other matters in relation to investment or risk management
as delegated by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
adopted by the Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a
copy of which was posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, five Investment and Risk
Management Committee meetings were held to review the proposed
investment project of the Group, the related proposals and reports of risk
management. The attendance records are set out under the section headed
“Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report. A recent
meeting of the Investment and Risk Management Committee was held on 14
March 2023 to consider and review, among others, the Comprehensive Risk
Management Report, Comprehensive Risk Management Plan and the Risk
Management Evaluation Report of the Group.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Lee Kin, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Lee Kin
was appointed as the Company Secretary on 26 January 2015. Mr. Lee Kin
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during his term of office in the year ended 31 December
2022. The biographical details of Mr. Lee Kin is set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2022, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards amendments to standards and
the related interpretations, made adjustments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
in this report.

External auditor’s remuneration

KPMG has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor since 29 June
2020. The Audit Committee has been notified of the scope, nature and the
service charges of the audit and non-audit services performed by KPMG and
considered that these audit and non-audit services have no adverse effect
on the independence of KPMG. There was no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of KPMG.

The remuneration paid to KPMG in respect of audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:
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Amount of fees

Type of services provided by KPMG EERH M ERFIRUENRERELE ERTEE
HK$'000

FET

Audit services BEIZIRTS 5,220
Non-audit services IEBZRTS 161
Total “ast 5,381

The non-audit services provided by KPMG mainly include tax advisory
services.
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Risk management and internal control

The Board has the responsibility of evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and overseeing
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management should provide a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems on an ongoing
basis. The Board should ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems has been conducted at
least annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and the implementation and
continuous review of an internal control manual. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual reviews on the Group’s internal control system
and make recommendations for strengthening such systems. The results of
the review for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board. No material deficiencies have been identified
so far and there were no significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders.

A framework has been established for prudent and effective controls to enable
risks to be identified, evaluated and managed. Procedures have been designed
for the management of financial, strategic and operational risk management
functions. The procedures provide reasonable assurance against material
untrue statement or losses and to monitor the risks existing in the course of
arriving at the Group’s objectives.

The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

The Company is aware of its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and has put in place the proper procedure to ensure that any perceived inside
information would be announced to the investing public on a timely basis.

The Company has an internal audit function.

The Audit Committee, inter alia, reviews the financial controls, risk
management and internal controls systems of the Group and any significant
internal control issues identified by the internal audit department, external
auditors and management. The Audit Committee also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions and internal audit function and their training
programmes and budgets. In addition, the Board has reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s ESG performance and reporting.

The Investment and Risk Management Committee reviews the development
and objective of the risk management system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enable the Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company’s public
relations firm and share registrar, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company.

Shareholders or investors can contact the public relations firm of the Company,
Wonderful Sky Financial Group, to make enquiry or to provide suggestions, of
which the contact details are as follows:

Tel: (852) 3977 1881
Fax: (852) 3102 0210
Email: cgnne@wsfg.hk

In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, if they have any enquiries about their
shares of the Company and dividends.

The members of the Board and the Board Committees and KPMG are
expected to be present to answer the Shareholders’ questions at annual
general meetings of the Company (the “AGM”). Meeting circulars are
distributed to all Shareholders before AGM and special general meetings of
the Company (the “SGM”) in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid
down in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group maintains
a website where information on the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted. The Directors have reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the communication policy with
the Shareholders and investors (the “Communication Policy ”). Having
considered the multiple channels of communication in place, the Board is
satisfied that the Communication Policy has been properly implemented for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has published on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange its Bye-laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no amendments were made to the
Bye-laws.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM is one of the principal channels of communication with its
Shareholders. It provides an opportunity for Shareholders to communicate face
to face with the Directors about the Company’s performance and operations.
The 2022 AGM was held on 24 May 2022 at Boardroom 6, Mezzanine Floor,
Renaissance Harbour View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
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Resolutions passed at the 2022 AGM

Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2022 AGM on each substantive

Corporate Governance Report

==
23 —Ek

2022 FE IR RBEFEARE L@

XEOWRS

TEE

BRYR

§E$z$ﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁ%¥ﬁﬁk@tu%ﬁhﬁ

issue and the percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions is set out ZRZ > MIBEBRZEREBEZNEHLEEINOT :
below:
Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2022 AGM Votes in Favour
2022 F RRIBEFARE LIREWRE KREERBE DL

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company, the Report 99.95%
of the Directors and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2021
BAREEARARBHE2021F 12831 HIEFENRBEZ GGV BERR - ESEHRER
B ZEENRS

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 100%
EMIKEEHE2021F 12831 BIEFENRBERE

3.(a) To re-elect Mr. Zhang Zhiwu as an executive director of the Company 98.85%
BERTHATERRATHITES

3.(b) To re-elect Mr. Wang Hongxin as a non-executive director of the Company 99.07%
BETRMAERRATIFNITES

3.(c) To re-elect Mr. Chen Xinguo as a non-executive director of the Company 99.98%
BEMMBELERRNATIFNITES

3.(d) To re-elect Mr. Ren Liyong as a non-executive director of the Company 99.98%
BEANBERERRATFNTES

3.(e) To re-elect Mr. Yang Xiaosheng as an independent non-executive director of the Company 99.03%
BEGRETERNABEIUIFNTES

3.(f) To authorize the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration 100%
EHESGETESNS

4. To re-appoint KPMG as auditor of the Company and authorize the Board to fix its remuneration 100%
EMEEEERN S EBMAR R RERESEETHMS

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase Shares 100%
ETESBELORMN—RTE

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue Shares 97.79%

Accordingly, all resolutions put to the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM were

RTEFETRMN—RRE

B 1R2022F RRBERE LRRRIZEENFAERE

passed. The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the  ZEHBEEE®R » RELERBE DB TIE 4 A B K Bk 32 FRr
Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively. 4k o
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Dividend Policy” in the Report of the Directors in this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of SGM and requisition by the
Shareholders

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy on
Shareholders’ rights.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at Victoria Place,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. The written requisition
must state the purposes of the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the shareholders concerned will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested.
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Procedures for making proposals by the
Shareholders other than a proposal of a person
for election as director

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy on
Shareholders’ rights.

The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general meeting
known as a special general meeting whenever necessary. Shareholder(s)
holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the Company’s registered office at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks before the
AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than one week before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.
If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
(i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/
or circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy
on the procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director.

1. If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/
herself) for election as a Director (the “Candidate”) at that meeting,
he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

2. In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

3. A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the
Shareholder(s) for such proposal can be found from the website of the
Company.

4. A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the

Candidate can also be found from the website of the Company setting
out, amongst other things, his/her willingness to be elected together
with the information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules as follows:

(i) full name and age;

(i) positions held with the Company and/or other members of the
Company (if any);

(iii) experience including (i) other directorships held in the past
three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, and
(ii) other major appointments and professional qualifications;

(iv) length or proposed length of service with the Company;
(v) relationships with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders (as

defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, or an
appropriate negative statement;
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(vi) interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, or an appropriate negative
statement; and

(vii) a declaration made by the Candidate in respect of the
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)
(h) to (w) of the Listing Rules, or an appropriate negative
statement to that effect where there is no information to be
disclosed pursuant to any of such requirements nor there are
any other matters relating to that Candidate’s standing for
election as a Director that should be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders.

The period for lodgement of the written notice will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and end no later than seven (7) clear days prior to the date
of such general meeting. If the notice is received less than fifteen
(15) business days prior to that general meeting, the Company will
need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in order to (i)
assess the suitability of the proposed Candidate; and (ii) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the
proposal to the Shareholders at least fourteen (14) clear days and not
less than ten (10) business days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the Company Secretary at
15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
2RV U E Ty

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN New Energy
Holdings Co., Ltd.(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 134 to 266, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Independent Auditor’s Report
RV L

TS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of FRAEEZEEIZREASHAANBENE  HERES
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the BIFBBRERNBEEAEENEIE - ZFEINAEHA
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the BRZRLAAUBRERZBERHEE BEEEREE AEH
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion FAIAEHZEEIRMEBNER-

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and EERYE - BRE KRR EREST

property, plant and equipment

Refer to notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the ARSI FHER XN 148 16L R & 51 B & HTaL2(1)

accounting policies on notes 2(f) and 2(j).

The Key Audit Matter
FREZEE

The Group has significant balances of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment amounting to US$154,596,000 and
US$5,812,394,000 respectively as at 31 December 2022.
20226 12831H° BEEBERVE BERRBRES
K> D Al73154,596,0003% 75 % 5,812,394,000% 7T, ©

Management performs impairment testing of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment when indicators of potential
impairment are identified. In addition, goodwill impairment
assessment is performed by management annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
EEENERBTAESNRFETEHERNE BE KR {%
BRI o Jtt%’ﬁsﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁi%ﬁ%%’ﬁﬁﬁafﬁ
& R E s T o

In performing impairment assessments, management engaged
an external valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of
the relevant CGUs using value in use method by preparing
discounted cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial forecast approved by the management. Management
compared carrying value of each of the separately identifiable
CGUs with their respective recoverable amounts to determine if
any impairment loss should be recognized.

EETRETGHR  SEEZEIIBEEMBIEESIERE#E
NN BREARNITRBESRERN  UEHREE LG
MRS ELEMN RS EE - BEE iS85 7T # 5 R
STELFEMANEDEREZ BN WL EEEFEL L LUR
TG ERRERBEEIS-

K2(j)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFANEZNAEEMEERSEER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment included the following:

RATEEERYE -BERRBRENEZEFEEUTRS

. assessing the management’s identification of CGUs, the
allocation of assets to each CGU and the methodology
adopted by management in its impairment assessments
with reference to the requirements of prevailing accounting
standards;

. Z2ERTEAENNER FHEEEHREELEEUNR
E-ZREEEARESELBUZENDREUKRERERIET
BEFTEREEN G L ;

. evaluating the competence, experience, capability and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by management to
perform the valuation of the relevant CGUs;

. HEEEEMEZEANEMRSEEBETHENINR MG
ERNER &8 DM ZEME ;

. evaluating the assumptions adopted in the preparation
of discounted cash flow forecasts for the purpose of the
impairment assessment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment, including projected future growth rates for income
and expenses, with reference to our understanding of the
business, historical trends and available industry information
and available market data;

. SERMBEBNIER FLBBNRATEERKIRET
5 85 éﬂﬁ%?‘ﬁﬁﬂz#@ﬁ B 55 R 5% 5 R B 5T 1 T 4R B 4T
HRESMREFRAMKANRE > SIERARBEZNTES RRK
WEEX;
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VR R GETE:

The Key Audit Matter
FABEEIXEIE

As disclosed in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment and goodwill of US$66,811,000
and nil respectively during the year ended 31 December 2022.
AT E A FIRRM 14 16PTIREE » IR E E2022F 128 31
BIEFER> BEXEEMYE BRERIREREERIDRELS
£ 57%66,811,0005 T KR Z

The recoverable amounts are based on value in use
calculations using discounted cash flow model, which require
significant assumptions and estimates with respect to the
discount rates and the forecasted cash flows, in particular the
budgeted sales and gross margins, taking into account the
management expectations for the power industry.
AREEENAERAEEEAER KARERENRER
FECERREMMBEXEREARERE CHEEEEHERE
REFZE) FHEABZ MG Tt REBBHEHITEN
FEHR

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill and property, plant and equipment as a key audit
matter because the impairment assessments performed by
management involve certain critical judgments in respect of the
assumptions made which are inherently uncertain and could be
subject to management bias.

EMBTEEERYE BRERREBEN BT RES AFARSE
ZEIE AAEEBETIRET G Y RIPTELNBRHRE
HETEZHE MZERZASEBEAEEM WA EZH
REBEBNRE -

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

How the matter was addressed in our audit

TEFRNEZNAEEMEEZER

involving our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
management’s valuation methodology adopted in the
impairment assessment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards; and assess whether the
discount rates applied in the cash flow forecasts prepared
for the purpose of assessing the impairment of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment were within the range adopted
by other companies operating in the same industry;
HEREHEEX —E2RBITEFENNER - HEEER
BEFEPRANGEL AETTE  RTEATEEER
ME-BERZFEREMARNNIREREBAMEANITIER
EXEREERTEEMASMKANEERR ;

comparing the significant assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and actual results for the current year
with management’s forecast in the previous year in order to
assess the reliability of historical accuracy of management’s
forecasting process and whether there is any indication of
management bias;
RAFERERENBEBAMAZEERZAERERN
BEE F—FENBFAETLEE LEEEBREIBEN
EEEREREUEUAEEEAANREBREEEFER
8

evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by management
for each of the key assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecast and considering the possibility of error or
management bias; and
FHEEEMTRRESRAERAMKRANSEEERKZME
HNHRAEDH TEEBEIRERNEEEREATLEM. ;
4

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of impairment testing of goodwill
and property, plant and equipment with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
SRFETEHAENNER TEEERNE BEREZEHER
BRAERGEMBRERAZINE -



Independent Auditor's Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

18 17 12 BB ¥ 'S

R M RR R EZBEMER S U
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ExaEHMER - HMEERBEERMHBZMAESR
K WFRPTE 2 R 5 M B IRR AL BREDR SR o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Maggie L.T. Lee.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

:.\l
ﬁ"m B fm

Hith2mlim*x

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

Revenue

Operating expenses:
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Repair and maintenance
Staff costs
Recognition of loss allowance of
trade and other receivables and contract
assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
retirement scheme assets/obligations

ltems that are/may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized
during the year

Deferred tax credited/(charged) arising from
fair value change in hedging instruments

Reclassification adjustments for amounts
transferred to profit or loss
— release of hedging reserve
— deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes Us$’000 Us$’000
g3 FET FET
(Restated)

Ccs==p7l))
(Note)
(tat)
4 2,430,056 1,775,305
1,247,302 778,486
335,969 266,346
29,971 37,684
109,395 102,854
36(a) 2,791 20,292
5} 114,976 90,047
1,840,404 1,295,709
589,652 479,596
6 42,699 41,307
7 (69,000) 44
8 (227,105) (188,216)
(63,252) (37,551)
272,994 295,180
9 (58,573) (34,066)
10 214,421 261,114
13 980 599
(182,042) (23,927)
(8,793) 12,580
2,222 (3,044)
(110) (124)
25 30
(187,718) (13,886)
26,703 247,228




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Share
- Basic (US cents)

- Diluted (US cents)

|=| \l
‘%‘Ij-\ I

Hith2mlm*E

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

Notes

Hat

FEEFE R R
ERBERRER
R D

EEFER2E K ERE

ERBERRER
JRERE D

SREF 12
- NEF))

— 5 (=)

Note: ~ The Group has initially applied the amendments to IAS 16 at 1 January 2022. Under the Htat
amendments, the comparative information is restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 142 to 266 form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the

profit for the year are set out in note 35.

5£350

2022 EERE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)

€<= 70))

(Note)

(tat)

195,143 244,274
19,278 16,840
214,421 261,114
18,335 228,939
8,368 18,289
26,703 247,228
4.55 5.69
4.55 5.69

AEEBR2022F 1B 1HEREABER G+ 2£R5
16582 BT - IRIBAFES] LBREHNERKES 2R

fzE2(c)

F142E 266 ENMIEEMZEE
P (T 75 /2 ) 1 2 AR 3R FE (v ) B9 AR S 5% 1B B B BR BT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RO BRI R

at 31 December 2022 22022 12831H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Net defined benefit retirement scheme assets

Other non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Tax recoverable

Derivative financial instruments
Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Contract liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
— due within one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due within one year
Bank borrowings — due within one year
Lease liabilities — due within one year
Government grants
Tax payable

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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Notes

Hat

14
o]
16
17
26
19

18

13
20

21
22
23
24
2]
19
26
27
27
27

28
34
29
2]

25

30
31
32
33
19

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(Restated)

€<= 70))

(Note)

(K1 3%)

5,812,394 6,255,323
105,248 100,315
154,596 168,798
74,268 149,238

- 8,645

24,757 23,322
3,411 5,238
170 =
276,177 363,664
6,451,021 7,074,543
66,328 54,209
739,314 744,471
354,219 186,735
111,458 123,141
5,494 6,321
524 214
8,300 8,454
152,270 157,730
14,359 3,137
440,646 374,999
1,892,912 1,659,411
223,028 129,505
4,569 4,719
483,420 614,581
110,743 108,806
899 2,153
651,952 1,162,467
957,392 763,503
4,864 6,899
194 212
30,390 12,299
2,467,451 2,805,144




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RO BRI R

at 31 December 2022 f22022512H31H

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
- due after one year
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
- due after one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due after one year
Bank borrowings - due after one year
Lease liabilities — due after one year
Government grants

Net defined benefit retirement scheme obligations

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Note:  The Group has initially applied the amendments to IAS 16 at 1 January 2022. Under the Htat :

Notes
HiaE
Bk =R
HEERREBEE
ERENEE
HthENRIBRETE B
—R—FB 3 29
e — & JEEERR AR R =R I8
—R—F&3H 25
KERRZKNBARNENR
—R—F%&EH 30

RITEE-—N—F& 3 31
HEaE-—RN—F23H 32
BB & 33
REZHBARTEET

PR 13
FIERIBAE 19

FEE

R 2 Tz fi
&N
G

35(c)

RNABEm R R
WBiEm
FEEEIR

Mt

amendments, the comparative information is restated. See Note 2(c).

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

2023.

Zhang Zhiwu
RER
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 142 to 266 form part of these financial statements.

2022 EERE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(REF)
(Note)
(tat)
(574,539) (1,145,733)
5,876,482 5,928,810
3,409 3,835
1,154 1,183
876,591 856,821
3,407,088 3,482,388
32,378 28,648
7,519 9,345
- 1,683
48,484 49,696
4,376,623 4,433,599
1,499,859 1,495,211
55 55
1,362,469 1,373,635
1,362,524 1,373,690
137,335 121,521
1,499,859 1,495,211
AEBBER2022F 1A 1B EXEABE S ENE

1658 2 BT - IRFZZFE EBREMBEET 2R

MIEE2(c)

RFIE
Director

EF

| E

Leung Chi Ching Frederick
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o EmERR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRERRELN
Other non- Non-
Share Share  distributable Hedging Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity
A RE
(23 RiER HikfEE HAkE ERHE Eap-t it FERER aRz
(note 35(d)(i)) (note 35(d)(ii)) (note 35(d)(ii)
(Wztss(a)i))  (Wiztss(a)ii)) (Wia2as(d) i)
Us$000 Uss'000 Uss$000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FHEL FHT FHT FHL FEL FHT FHT FHL FHEL
At 1 January 2022 (restated) 202251518 (BE5) 55 250,406 31,098 14,962 50,287 1,025,982 1,373,690 121,521 1,495,211
Profit for the year EEERR - - - - - 195,143 195,143 19,278 214,421
Exchange difference arising on translation of BEBNEBEENERER
foreign operations - - - - (171,132) - (171,132) (10,910) (182,042)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of FREDZHRIANNEEZ
hedging instruments recognized during the year ERgHIS - - - (8,793) - - (8,793) - (8,793)
Deferred tax credited arising from HATAAAEEEBELN
fair value change in hedging instruments EERBEER - - - 2,222 - - 2,222 - 2,222
Release of hedging reserve REHHEE - - - (110) - - (110) - (110)
Deferred tax credit arising on release of BEEFREELN
hedging reserve BERERE - - - 25 - - 25 - 25
Remeasurement of net defined RERRRAGHEUERTE
benefit retirement scheme assets EEi - - - - - 980 980 - 980
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANGER - - - (6,656) (171,132) 196,123 18,335 8,368 26,703
Dividends declared and paid to equity shareholders of ~ AAABEZRES KR
the Company in respect of previous year (note 35b(i))  Tk{S LEERE (M 350i) - - - - - (36,952) (36,952) - (36,952)
Dividends declared to non-controlling shareholders EERFERRENRE - - - - - - - (4,576) (4,576)
Transfer of other non-distrioutable reserves EREMAT DGR - - 13,091 - - (13,991) - - -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FEREETE - - - - - (176) (176) 24,250 24,074
Deregistration of a subsidiary HH-FHEAT - - - - - 7,200 7,200 (12,248) (5,048)
Transfer of enterprise work safety funds ERMERREEER - - 1,289 - - - 1,289 36 1,325
Utilization of enterprise work safety funds HRCERREEER - - (862) - - - (862) (16) (878)
At 31 December 2022 120225125318 55 250,406 46,416 8,306 (120,845) 1,178,186 1,362,524 137,335 1,499,859

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 January 2021

Profit for the year (restated)

Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations (restated)

Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized during the year

Deferred tax charged arising from
fair value change in hedging instruments

Release of hedging reserve

Deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve

Remeasurement of net defined
benefit retirement scheme obligations

Total comprehensive income for the year (restated)

Dividend declared and paid to equity shareholders
of the Company in respect of previous year
(note 35b(ii))
Dividends declared and paid to non-controlling
shareholders
Transfer of other non-distributable reserves (restated)
Deregistration of a subsidiary
Acquisition of additional equity interest in a subsidiary
Capital injecton from non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2021 (restated)

The notes on pages 142 to 266 form part of these financial statements.

R2021E1818

KEEEF (EE5)
BEBHEBELNERER (5

ENBRZHATARRBEEZ
RRESE)

HHTAAREREESELN
EERERH

BEHAEE

BEHAREELN
EERELS

RERERAHBARMEIR
e

FEERENERE (K25

AFA AR AREE kR

T LEERS

(2 35b(i)
BERISEERRENRS

ﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁﬂ‘xm (&BE3)
HH-XHEAR
H&Eﬁ*%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%%‘
FEREDTE

120214128318 (EEF))

nv-.ﬁ

EL:

HBEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARRGRRELR

Other non- Non-

Share Share distributable Hedging Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity

AftAe
B RiEE Dk Wi ER G R et FERED i3
(note 35(d)i) ~ (note 35(a)i)  (note 35(a)i))
(ratssa))  (Bisssiapiy)  (Easa)i))

US$'000 Us$000 US$'000 US$000 US§000 Us$'000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
FET FET FET F£7 FET FET FET FET FET
56 250,406 22,269 5,620 75,663 869,242 1,213,185 84,226 1,297,381
- - - - - 244,274 244274 16,840 261,114
= = = = (25,376) = (25,376) 1,449 (23,927)
- - - 12,580 - - 12,580 - 12,580
- - - (3,044) - - (3,044) - (3,044)
- - - (124) - - (124) - (124)
- - - 30 - - 30 - 30
- - - - - 599 599 - 599
= = = 9,442 (25,376) 244873 228,939 18,289 247228
= = = = = (68,300) (68,300) = (68,300)
_ _ _ - - = - (6,657) (6,657)
= = 9,729 = = (9,729) = = =
a = = = a = = (1,414) (1,414)
- - - - - (104) (104) 104 -
= = = = = = = 26,973 26,973
55 250,406 31,998 14,962 50,287 1,025,982 1,373,690 121,521 1,495,211

F142E266 BB ZERFHRTN

2022 EERE

]
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nﬂ‘ Iﬁkézﬂﬂn %E

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in
respect of inventories

Interest income

Recognition of government grants

Recognition of loss allowance of trade and
other receivables and contract assets

Share of results of associates
Transfer of enterprise work safety funds
Utilization of enterprise work safety funds

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in contract assets

Increase in other receivables and prepayments

Changes in amounts due from/to
fellow subsidiaries

Decrease in amount due to non-controlling
shareholders

Increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and
accruals

Decrease in net defined benefit retirement
scheme obligations

(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

Increase in government grants

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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2022 2021
20225 20214

Notes Us$°000 US$'000
k=3 FET FET
(Restated)

(&E7))

(Note)

(Hta%)

272,994 295,180

10 335,969 266,346
10 5,008 7,161
8 227,105 188,216
7 477 (3,982)
37 67 =
7 66,811 =
7 - 4,335
(163) =

6 (3,557) (2,579)
(1,069) (995)

36(a) 2,791 20,292
63,252 37,551

1,325 =

(878) =

970,132 811,525

58,249 (75,261)

(15,030) (32,212)

(45,954) (325,777)

(194,593) (40,925)

(25,294) (30,409)

7,944 8,433

(1,621) =

100,039 65,198

(168,672) 1,726

(873) (510)

(256) 1,917

- 573

684,071 384,278

(41,690) (37,637)

642,381 346,641
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

an\ IE@I)ILE%

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes USs$’000 USs$’000
k=3 FET FET
(Restated)
(RE7)
(Note)
(Hta%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BB EE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BMELRRE
plant and equipment B9 7K B (362,776) (1,259,765)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FRERRIRITER (23,309) (162,901)
Payments for right-of-use assets ERAEEENR (13,238) (11,429)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE-—RMBATN
REMAFLE 37 14,340 =
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REBERIRIRITEM 18,317 128,121
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWEEK
plant and equipment RBFTSRRIE 944 7,118
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets LESREEERRSNIE 488 9
Dividends received from associates EWESAFRKRE - 25,568
Interest received B YA S 3,557 2,579
Placement of short-term bank deposits F AR ERITER (11,487) (3,137)
Payment for acquisition of interest in W E AT RN
a new associate g/ - (3,564)
Payment for purchase of financial assets BEETMBEENNR - (5,238)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEHFIAREFEE (373,164) (1,282,639)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES =]
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERTEES (1,090,870) (993,161)
New bank borrowings raised EEEMBTEER 1,559,431 1,619,923
Interest paid BEAFE (222,479) (188,216)
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries EERANBABMIE (1,455,844) (526,330)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the ENEAABHE@RERE
Company (36,952) (68,300)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B IEERRIRERR B (4,085) (6,657)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaRE ‘ (6,628) (4,938)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRMNE QB HNER 1,065,018 1,471,938
Loans from the ultimate holding company RERKRERABHNER - 41,878
Capital contribution from non-controlling JEERRFE
shareholders . 24,074 26,973
Cash paid to a non-controlling shareholder HiEH—KMBABE
upon deregistration of a subsidiary | —%IEER AR
SRR E (5,048) (1,414)
Repayment to the ultimate holding company EERKERRABIMIEA - (465,307)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM B EE) (FRA) FRfE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HE 388 (173,383) 906,389
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERIFEEZEWIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS GRi2b) 7358 95,834 (29,609)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURERNEEZEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 374,999 398,850
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE SNEEXREZFHTE
CHANGES (30,187) 5,758
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERRERREEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 440,646 374,999

Note:  The Group has initially applied the amendments to IAS 16 at 1 January 2022. Under the ~ A7a - AEEER2022F 15 IHEREAEREFEUSFE
amendments, the comparative information is restated. See Note 2(c). FmﬁfZ% ST RBZEBT EBRENERKES 257
J5E2(c)

$142F 266 HNI MR EM B HRERN—ED

The notes on pages 142 to 266 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

1.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

GENERAL

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in October 2014. The registered office of the
Company is at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its immediate
holding company is CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited
(“CGN Energy International”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, and its ultimate holding company is China
General Nuclear Power Corporation (“CGN”), a state-owned enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in the generation and supply of
electricity and steam, construction and operation of power stations and
other associated facilities in the PRC and Republic of Korea (“Korea”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollar (“US$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”).

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these amendments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in its associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- investments in equity securities (see note 2(g)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.

2, FET

(b)

2022 EERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
US$574,539,000 as at 31 December 2022. CGN Finance Co.,
Ltd. (“CGN Finance”) and CGN Wind Power Company, Limited
(“CGN Wind Energy”), the fellow subsidiaries of the Company,
have confirmed in writing that despite the loans from CGN
Finance of RMB700,000,000 (equivalent to US$100,508,000)
and CGN Wind Energy of RMB3,800,000,000 (equivalent
to US$545,617,000) which are due for repayment within
twelve months from 31 December 2022, they will not cancel
the existing loan facilities within twelve months from 31
December 2022 and that the loans will be extended upon
expiry. Furthermore, taking into account the financial resources
of the Group, the Group has unutilized general facilities of
US$1,398,666,000 as at 31 December 2022 for the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. In addition,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by the management of the Group.
The cash flow projections cover a period not less than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the IASB to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

. Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:

Proceeds before intended use

. Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts -
cost of fulfilling a contract

Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended IFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting the
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is
available for use from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds and the related costs
should be included in profit and loss. An entity shall apply
the amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

The Group has initially applied the amendments as from
1 January 2022. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively and has therefore restated the comparative
information to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. The following
table gives a summary of restatement adjustments recognized
for each line item in the consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated cash flow statement:

Consolidated statement of #2021F12831HH
financial position at 31 EEMBRRAE
December 2021

Property, plant and equipment BB R&RE

Total non-current assets B EEMRTE

Total assets less current BWEERRIER
liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE

Total non-current liabilities JEmE B ELAEE

Net assets FEE

Reserves B

Total equity attributable to equity 2&@7% 1 % R PR
shareholders of the Company 4B RE T

Non-controlling interests 3!5?15“

Total equity ERER

2. FEESHE @

(c)

As previously
reported

Us$’000
TET

6,195,027
7,014,247

5,868,514

49,415
4,433,318
1,435,196
1,313,497

1,313,552
121,644
1,435,196

2022 EERE

BHEGERE ()

ZNES [0 PR R X AN E ST EARE R
RBYAE IR ET RIS R2 R o IR BRI RT
ERMBREEINNZERLNT

EIFRE s HERE 1655 2185] - 77
E B E&a/ﬁ | (EHEE fHIE AT
BIFFiF Tk

ZEEIRLEBUYE BERRE
TE B 60 Ak A5 7 30 B % 54 2 7 0 B A
TE FB IR A P 4E 2 2 R 8H E PRIS RRIE < 48
[ > #55 P15 RRIE Ko AR BA AR 4 FE 5t A48
@A BREEHNERZEET AT
ERANZERERRAZSEEBITZ
MBREMEINNEFHABZ A H

ZREINRENEARENYE BB
R#&wIEE -

i

AEBMEH2022FE1B1HEEXRER
ZEBHT AEBMEEBHERZSE
5T W A LA EE R B R E A E R 20214
1B EZREZINBEIFERRE
HYE - BERKZEER - FREMLP
ﬁé%?#%ﬁ GEBEEREMEE
WRRkiEGEeREEFAERAZEED
FERRRIASE S AR

Impact on
application of
amendments to

IAS 16 As restated
FEm
B PR & 5t ZE R
F165 2
BTN E KET|
Us$’000 USs$’000
FET FET
60,296 6,255,323
60,296 7,074,543
60,296 5,928,810
281 49,696
281 4,433,599
60,015 1,495,211
60,138 1,373,635
60,138 1,373,690
(123) 121,521
60,015 1,495,211
|  HPEEZHERERERAT
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Changes in accounting policies

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

(continued)

Consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December
2021

Revenue
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests
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2. FEESHE @

(c)

As previously
reported

Us$’000
TET

1,694,658
771,190

265,029
96,680
83,869

1,274,744

419,914

235,498

(33,774)

201,724

(24,552)
(14,511)
187,213

184,762
16,962

168,801
18,412

SHEELD (4

BFR S 5T AR5

1655 21257 )

B BERXE - (FHEHEF]

HIFF1Z7%E (48)

Impact on
application of
amendments to
IAS 16

FEM

B PR & =t 2E R
F165R 2
BT E
Us$’000

FETT

80,647
7,296

1,317
6,174
6,178
20,965
59,682
59,682
(292)
59,390
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60,015

59,512
(122)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

(continued)

Consolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended

31 December 2021

Profit before taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Cash generated from operations

NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property,

plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

#HE2021F12H31H
LEFEENEERE
IIILE%

BRAR A1 i
A
ME- BB RREBITE

EEEASEHAIZKE
RERE

KEMRSRE

REZHFFSHEEFHE

BEME BB
BRI R
REZFHFARESFHE

m7.|_

2, FET

(c)

As previously
reported

Us$’000
TET

235,498

265,029

750,526
323,279

285,642
(1,198,766)

(1,221,640)

2022 EERE

stEER ()

St ERES (@)

REstEE16SR 2185 &
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Impact on
application of
amendments to
IAS 16

FEM

B PR & =t 2E R
F165R 2
BT E
Us$’000

FETT

59,682

1,317

60,999
60,999

60,999
(60,999)

(60,999)

| FREEZREE

As restated

BE7
Us$'000
TE7T

295,180

266,346

811,625
384,278

346,641

(1,259,765)

(1,282,639)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous
contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract
includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendments do not have a material impact on
these financial statements.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes
2(f) and (I)(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate (after applying the ECL model
to such other long-term interests where applicable (see note
2(1())-

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

()

Associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not measured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(l)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(1)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Equity investments

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are recognized directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 36(e).

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognized in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(b)(i).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on the remeasurement to fair value is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge of
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged (see note 2(i)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge its risk of foreign exchange forward
contracts.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective
portion of any gain or loss is recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost of the non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such as when a
forecast sale occurs or interest expense is recognized).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
(including when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated
in the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and it is recognized in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the amount that has been accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss
immediately.
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(1)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(1)(ii).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs(see note 2(x)).

ltems may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The proceeds from selling any such items and
the related costs are recognized in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognized in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows except for freehold land in Korea:

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, and 5-50 years

Buildings

Electric and steam
generating facilities

5 to 25 years, or over the
relevant operating license

period

- Office and electronic 3 - 10 years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 - 6 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group, are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalized are recognized as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease
is capitalized is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(j)
and 2(1)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and recognized the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the statement of financial position, the Group
presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognized in accordance with note

2(v)(b)(iii).

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, trade receivables and other receivables and
prepayments) and contract assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial instruments and financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof where the effect of
discounting is material.
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(N

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
based on its historical observed default rates which is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHHE (B)
(continued)

(1) Credit losses and impairment of () EEGFEREERE &
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () S=SMITERSREEESE

and contract assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of

assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss

allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the

issuer.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognized as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(if) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(N

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(if) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Contract assets and contract
liabilities

A contract asset is recognized when the Group recognizes
revenue (see note 2(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognized when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognized
the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A contract liability would
also be recognized if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognized (see note 2(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2(v)(b)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognized before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2(n)).

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i).

Annual Report 2022

2, FET

(n)

(o)

(p)

stEER ()

fif 2= & B IS AR 4% & [B) P 30 2 {9 AR AR R
5B B EF U E 2 AT REST UL A

(RMsE2(v)) » BUREST éﬂéét’mﬂ
ﬁé*ﬁ}%%&ﬁ(‘[ﬁﬁ*ﬂ (hZ B RTHTE
ﬂﬁ%gﬁﬁé’EIEHGWHYKEZ%%'JEE?%
BRGRENDEERKIE (R
2(0)) °

fifl 25 B B 7 £ [ B 50 A8 BA R A BT 32 1Y
FRREZAE AEISGEAERE (R
PiEE2(v)) o fisl 4~ 55 B HE A5 S AR 14 HEF) =)
B 7 £ [ B 52 A8 A UK A A U B R B) 3R
BB TREIDGRAAEE EXF
BRT IR EDEENERRIE (R
MizE2(0)) ©

MEZFITUNE-—SEMES UER
BEEFHEIACAEEFEES -EE

GRME THEBERANEGREERE
BaEFLUBEEERY.

HEREEEAMEL D cRGHE
EREEMNEAFENESFE (B
sE2(v)(b)(ii)) °

B 5 RHE R RIE

it 25 82 [ B WRER (R (B 2 SR AR R A R
Bl 72 5% FE U R IE o s 1418 B HB A1 A A 2
EARREER AWBRARBZENAE
16 5 o 8 IR A B 2 £ [ 78 S 1 14 A1) U
R BRI BRES ) MZREZRYAER
LE (BHtsE2(n)) °

FEWCRIE E 12 B B RA B A R #
AR MEEEEHEEE (BRI
s2(1)(1)) °

RERRAEFEY

RERRETEFEYMERRTRS  FTH
RE W7 RE MR BT R FERMN
ABERRRASENCHREAEESE
@JﬂﬂﬁTK&ﬁAﬁ%J\?ﬁ:@EW ElE

ﬁﬁmm@Jl’Hmﬁ ReEMBEEFE
%*EF%ZMM‘JEH (i) BURET L TA A
EEBE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m7.|_

ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value.
Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortized
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrow
costs (see note 2(x)).

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations

(i)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement schemes is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior
years; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations (continued)

Service cost and net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognized in profit or
loss and allocated by function as part of “staff costs”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current year. When the
benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is
curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related
to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognized as an expense in profit or
loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognized. Net
interest expense for the year is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to
the net defined benefit liability. The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement schemes are recognized in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately in
retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and any change in the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognized restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilized, are recognized. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilized.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realize the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle
simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHHE (B)
(continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities () BERIAEE

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognized for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognized for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and
recognizes revenue on a gross basis except for service
income on sales of electricity. For service income on sales
of electricity, the Group is the agent for the transactions and
recognizes revenue on a net basis. In determining whether the
Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers whether
it obtains control of the products before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the products.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes.

(i) Revenue from the sale of electricity or

steam and tariff income

Revenue from the sale of electricity or steam
and tariff income are recognized based upon
output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“IFRS 15”), revenue from
sales of electricity or steam and tariff income
is generally recognized upon transmission of
electricity and steam to the customers, which
is the point of time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of the output and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
output.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

(continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
(ii) Revenue from capacity charges,

(iii)

(iv)

connection charges and management
service

Capacity charges are payments from
independent power purchasers for maintaining
availability of some of the Group’s power
generators for dispatch of electricity,
regardless of actual dispatch. Connection
charges are one-off charges to new customers
for connecting into a heat supply network
approved by government. Management service
fee income is recognized when the service is
provided. The revenue from capacity charges,
connection charges and management service
are recognized over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation, as
the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from sales of renewable energy
certificates (“REC”)

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when
customer takes possession of the REC.

Service income on sales of electricity
Service income on sales of electricity is
recognized when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income
(continued)

(b)

Revenue from other sources and other
income

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues
under the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognized as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognized in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction dates is the date on which the Group initially
recognizes such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into US$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong,
are translated into US$ at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related party
includes a person and entity as defined below:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third entity.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(z)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

In addition, government refers to government, government
agencies and similar bodies whether local, national or
international. A government-related entity is an entity that is
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by a
government.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2, FET
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ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 16, 36(a) and 36(e) contain information about the assumptions

and their risk factors relating to impairment of goodwill,

impairment

of trade and other receivables and fair value of financial instruments.
Other key source of estimation uncertainty is as follows:

(a)

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced
to the recoverable amount.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and goodwill,
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value less costs of disposal because quoted
market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgment relating to items such as level of
electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or, except for goodwill, reversal
of impairment in future periods.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\Zl-

ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the generation and
supply of electricity and steam, construction and operation of
power stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and
Korea. Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed in note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

goods and service and by the timing of revenue recognition is
as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers ElFREAF5R &S %8I E 155

within the scope of IFRS 15 BEAKREELERN
WA
Disaggregated by types of goods RERMRBERAD
and services
- Sales of electricity —HEEBN
- Tariff income ”FW)\
- Sales of steam —HEESR
- Capacity charges —REE
- Service income on sales —EBRBEWA
of electricity
- Connection charges and others — R ERHEAM
- Management service income —EEREWA
- Sales of REC —HETBEERES
Disaggregated by the timing of WA R E A
revenue recognition
- Point in time — A —BRFRE B
— Over time —RE—BFREE&

AR D ERER

(a) WA
FEENFEEBARTFERBEHZ
’fﬁ&ﬁi\!@‘ﬁﬁ&%—%ﬁ CHEEREER
Btk EMAEBRFRE ERAAERETE
EBNE—TFIFTHMIFE4(b) IR E o
WAL 5
REFEFERANBARE & KRB U
R AEREE AT
Power Power
plants in plants Management 2022
the PRC in Korea companies Total
PENER BENER TEAT  2022F 45t
Us$ ’002 US$’00£ us$ ’002 US$’00£
FET FET FET FET
515,032 1,223,325 - 1,738,357
354,199 - - 354,199
119,982 - - 119,982
10,540 112,272 - 122,812
25,027 - - 25,027
- 8,099 - 8,099
- - 27,841 27,841
- 33,739 - 33,739
1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056
1,014,240 1,257,064 - 2,271,304
10,540 120,371 27,841 158,752
1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056

2022 EERE
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers lﬁﬂﬁﬁkiﬁf—ﬁﬁ‘— 11 551558
within the scope of IFRS 15 RREEEERMN
HW\
Disaggregated by types of goods BERMRBHEEA S
and services
- Sales of electricity —HEEB N
- Tariff income —BEWA
- Sales of steam —ﬁh’iih

WA R ERER (B

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

- Capacity charges -REE

- Connection charges and others —EREREM

- Management service income —BERBWA

- Sales of REC —SHETB4EERES

Disaggregated by the timing of LN R
revenue recognition

- Point in time — A E —BRFRE B
— Over time —RE—BFREE&

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of electricity or steam

Revenue from the sales of electricity or steam are recognized
based upon output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, revenue from the sales of electricity or
steam is generally recognized upon transmission of electricity
or steam to the customers, which is the point of time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the output and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the output.
A receivable is recognized by the Group when the output is
delivered to the customers as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90 days to its
customers.

Annual Report 2022

=
(a) WA #B)
WAL (&)
Power Power
plants in plants Management 2021
the PRC in Korea companies Total
FENER BHENER BENE  2021FE45
Us$ ’00_0 Us$ ‘00g Us$ ’00_0 US$’ 000
FET FET FE7z FET
(Restated)
(=& 5)
485,441 704,954 - 1,190,395
280,255 - - 280,255
106,829 - - 106,829
11,047 123,557 - 134,604
- 3,785 - 3,785
- - 42,411 42,411
- 17,026 - 17,026
883,572 849,322 42,411 1,775,305
872,525 721,980 - 1,594,505
11,047 127,342 42,411 180,800
883,572 849,322 42,411 1,775,305
ERERIEHNEE
HEENHFHS
HEBNHEZ [ ZBATZBER &
HERT - REERTBEREELE1S

SRIERIEEE A HEBHHERZ
BWABEREBELEHESHRE AR
BB EEERERENTEHHEZ AR
ERSHHEZLFFRER FAHEMN
R AEERHHERNERL R
BBEWSRIE RRAAEREISHHNR
BERER BAZEREZEF R
AEEEZEEME AEARERTEE
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Tariff income from government authorities for sales of
electricity

Tariff income is recognized at the same time as the relevant
revenue from the sales of electricity is recognized, that is, upon
the transmission of electricity to the customers.

Certain amounts of tariff income are subject to the approval
for the registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
List (the “List”), pursuant to Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on
the Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
of Renewable Energy (AIB4EEREBHNEHESERE
5% D) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the National
Department and Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration in January 2020 (the “2020 Notice”). Pursuant
to the 2020 Notice, the List is registered in the National
Renewable Energy Information Centre and approved by the
relevant government authorities.

A receivable is recognized at the same time except for those
which are pending the approval for the registration in the List
from the relevant government authorities, which a contract
asset is recognized. Due to the nature of receivables, there is
no credit period and the directors of the Company expect that
the receivables will be recovered within the Group’s normal
operating cycle from the time they are recognized.

Sales of REC

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when customer
takes possession of the REC. A receivable is recognized by
the Group at the same time when revenue recognized, at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due. The Group
allows a credit period of 30 days to its customers.

Capacity charges

Capacity charges are payments from independent power
purchasers for maintaining availability of some of the Group’s
power generators for dispatch of electricity, regardless of
actual dispatch. Revenue is recognized over time when the
relevant dispatch requirements are met. The credit period is
normally 30 days to the independent power purchasers.

WA R ERER (B

WA #&)
ERSRBYNEE @)

FAEHE B B BURHBEIS R EERA

BEERAREDHEEES HDAEBBARN
B B MR~ EHE DR - -

&TE Fuﬁz)\/mﬁ%,ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ\ﬂaé’f}:
N EZESY %ﬁ%ﬂ%?zozoﬁ
1EH%‘A§§%E’J<<_J§$%/ ERER G
HWYMESBEIENOE) I E[2020]558 @A
(M2020F @M ) KRERBELZNRAE

EREEMNESHEEE (TEE))
Mo RIF2020FEEH FEAEARAH
A BER(E B E B b0 5 I % A8 B B
i 2B P L 7 o

FE WS RR TE S () B 52, - 1 1 755 4 A BUART
HRBAEMABTEERIN ERZER
EREDAEEE -BARBRREN T
B UBEEHEAAREETRAMEE
RERKREERIGEAERNES
EEBH RO

HERTBLERERES

HETBERERESNRANRE R IR
SRIBAEEREERES - REEIRHE
58 U5 2 B9 () B i 0 FE WA BR R > U AR
BORERI B BB B A AR AF > TH RIS TERK
RE AR RATR B RS - AL RGBT

HEF30FMEEo
REH
REENBUENEREGUERE

EERNDEERAMENRE (FHE
BRABEKT) 2B - AR SERR
BERERREBRED - RTFEIE
NEXNEEH—RBI0K-
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Connection charges

Connection charges are charges to new customers for
connecting into an electricity supply network. The charges
are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated service life of the customers which is estimated to
be five years. The charges received in advance from customers
are classified as contract liabilities.

Management service income

Management service income is recognized overtime when the
service is provided. The credit term is normally 30 days.

Service income on sales of electricity

Service income on sales of electricity is recognized when
control over a service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled. The credit term is 30 days.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Contracts for capacity charges and management service
typically have 3 to 20 years non-cancellable terms in which
the Group bills fixed rates by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligations. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognizing revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied contracts are not
disclosed.

Contracts for sales of electricity and steam typically have
20 years non-cancellable terms. As the revenue from sales
of electricity and steam as well as the related tariff income
depends on future actual consumption, the revenue arising
from these future sales have not been included in the
transaction price for revenue recognition purposes.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on geographical location are set out below.
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(continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

The executive directors of the Company reviews the operating
results and financial information of the Group based on
individual power plant, management companies and on a
location basis. Each power plant and management company
constitutes an operating segment. For certain operating
segments that exhibit similar long-term financial performance
as they have similar economic characteristics, produce
electricity and/or steam by using similar production processes
and all of the electricity and/or steam are distributed and sold
to similar classes of customers, provide similar consulting
services to customers, their segment information is aggregated
into a single reportable operating segment.

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

(1) Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of
electricity;

(2) Power plants in Korea - Generation and supply of
electricity; and

(3) Management companies - Provision of management
services to power plants operated by CGN and its
subsidiaries.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 BP UL — SN ER

Segment revenue - external

Segment results DEBELE

Unallocated other income ROEEMUA

Unallocated operating RAPOEK ST
expenses

Unallocated finance costs KPRV BHER

Share of results of BEBEABES
associates

Profit before taxation FR7% AR F)

(b)

Power
plants in
the PRC

HERER

Us$’000
FET

1,024,780

BENEMR

WA R ERER (B

DEBUR A B 73 BB 4R

KABNTEFREHNER  EBEAA
RUBEERBALERANEEERE R
MHBEH RERAEERTER—E
EEDM-MERFEUEERME &
RENEEREFLEEB IR/ HEA
FRBEBNK/READHERHEETE
LEERIZ B UKk B R P 1R 8 O
REMBREURAMBRENET
EEDH HoMENDRES —EE
—E2REEDL-

FEBEBUT=ZET2RDE :

—HBRENME;

(1) R B9 B R

2) BENER - BB REIHEE;
Y4

(3) BENT— mq:mt&gﬁmg
NEEENERIESER
gggo

(i) AEBERER

UTRZEAI2/RDEE D
EBMBAREREDT

BEKRGER
3 B9

HE2022F128310 1L FE

Power
plants in Management
Korea companies
EEAT
Us$’000
FET

Total
st
Us$’000
FET

Us$’000
FET
1,377,435

27,841 2,430,056

287,229

85,096 1,326 373,651

2022 EERE

32

(5,796)
(31,641)

(63,252)

272,994
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Restated)

7 BB U A — 5B

Segment revenue - external

DEBER

Segment results

RO EHEMUTA
RO ERZ

Unallocated other income
Unallocated operating
expenses

Unallocated finance costs kD FC 1 #5 &

Share of results of BEHMEARES
associates

Profit before taxation B0 Al i A1)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set
out in note 2. Segment results represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of certain
other income, operating expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates. This is the measure
reported to the executive directors of the Company for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Annual Report 2022

WA R ERER (B

(b) SEBURAR D ERELE (B
() SIBEE - BERAR
(#)
HZE2021F12A31BLEE
(R=E5)
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea  companies Total
FEINER BENERK BIENT 45t
US$’000 us$’'000 us$'000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET
883,572 849,322 42,411 1,775,305
325,237 31,682 2,020 358,939
48
(5656)
(25,700)
(37,551)
295,180
P27 E N ® 5T EER AN
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(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segments:

Segment assets

Power plants in the PRC
Power plants in Korea
Management companies

Total segment assets
Interests in associates
Unallocated
- Right-of-use assets
- Others

Consolidated assets

DBAE
o 514 B8
$h1E150 B
EEAT

DESEERE

REE R TR

ROEC
—ERAREE
—HAh

nv-.ﬁ

WA R ERER (B

(b) DEUA R D EREELE (4B)
() DBEE-BEKREE
#)
UTARTERDBE DA
EEEEREBES T
2022 2021
20224 20214
US$’000 US$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(REF))
6,743,376 7,065,248
1,481,181 1,478,564
3,050 4,754
8,227,607 8,548,566
74,268 149,238
2,258 3,381
39,800 32,769
8,343,933 8,733,954
|  FEBEZMERERERAT
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Segment liabilities nEaR’
Power plants in the PRC A B B9 E R
Power plants in Korea &2 [ 1Y BB K
Management companies BIENAT
Total segment liabilities DEREEAEEE
Unallocated FAEC

- Bank borrowings —iR1TEE

— Loans from fellow subsidiaries

- Lease liabilities —AE&aE
- Others —HAth
Consolidated liabilities FeE8E

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, certain
right-of-use assets and corporate assets of
investment holding companies; and

. all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than certain bank borrowings,
loans from fellow subsidiaries, lease liabilities
and unallocated corporate liabilities.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

—RBERRWBABNER

WA R ERER (B

(b) DEUA R D EREELE (4B)
() DBEE-BEKREE
#)
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
Cc==27))
5,149,935 5,526,998
876,975 895,278
772 958
6,027,682 6,423,234
100,000 100,000
700,000 700,000
2,274 3,381
14,118 12,128
6,844,074 7,238,743

MEBEENEERRERDEE D E
BERMES :

PREBEEXNREEE
DB (R E QBRI
m AETHEREEERK
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ERRIN 5 K
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results

(continued)

(i)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment

assets and liabilities:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Net loss on disposal of

property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Interest income
Finance costs

Impairment losses recognized in
respect of property, plant and

equipment

Amounts regularly provided to

the chief operating decision maker
but not included in the measure

of segment profit or loss or

segment assets and liabilities:

Interests in associates
Share of results of associates
Income tax

SENBEDNANEER
BRERHANESE

NE BERRENE

ERREERE

HENE BER
REBERIE

HE-FNBARNEE

FBHA

YHER

AWE  BiE kR ERS
HERE

EHRTIEEEARERM
Bt A B ERE
ANHBEERAREN
Exi

N EEYNSTEY:
%ﬁ%%@?ﬁﬁ
FriSi

m7.|_

(b)

(i)
Power Power
plants in plants in
the PRC Korea
FENER BENER
Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FET
268,919 66,466
2,896 830
473 4
67 -
2,870 627
171,046 24,418
44,983 21,828
74,268 -
(63,252) -
36,213 22,357

2022 EERE

Hith 3 a8 &R
HZE2022F12831HLLEE
Management
companies Unallocated Total
EEAT KAk s
Uss’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FE7T FET
31 553 335,969
160 1,122 5,008
- - 477
- - 67
9 51 3,557
13 31,628 227,105
- - 66,811
- - 74,268
- - (63,252)
3 - 58,573
|  FPEBEZMERIZERERAT

WA R ERER (B

DEBUR A B 73 BB 4R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

(4

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e 5 R B 51

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEBMARDEBELE (&
(continued)
(ii) Other segment information (continued) (iiy HthoER %3
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Restated) HE2021F12831ALEE
(=7
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea ~ companies Unallocated Total
TENER BENSEER EEAH ROE st

Us§000  US$000  US§000  US$000  US$000
FET FET FET TET TET

Amounts included in the measure of t2NHWEERHBEER
segment profit or loss or segment B ERF T ARIEEE

assets and liabilities:

Depreciation of property, ME BERREITE

plant and equipment 196,214 69,269 34 829 266,346
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEFE 4,876 668 167 1,450 7,161
Net gain on disposal of HEME BEK

property, plant and equipment REW G R 3,970 12 = = 3,982
Interest income FIEWA 1,943 578 10 48 2,579
Finance costs MHBER 140,225 22,291 - 25,700 188,216
Impairment losses recognized i~ FLE BT Z A EERE

respect of goodwill 4,335 - - - 4,335

Amounts regularly provided to THRTEEERRERM
the chief operating decision maker BRFAFEHHIER
but not included in the measure SN BEEREBH
of segment profit or loss or i
segment assets and liabilities:

Interests in associates RE=E QB ER 149,238 = = = 149,238
Share of results of associates BEBENRER (37,551) = = = (37,551)
Income tax Fri3iR 27,344 6,722 = = 34,066

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers from segment of power plants
in Korea of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows:

Korea Electric Power Korea Electric Power
Corporation (“KEPCO”)

Korea Power Exchange

Non-current assets by geographical
location

The Group operates in three principal geographical
areas - the PRC, Korea and Hong Kong. The Group’s
information about its non-current assets (Note) by
location of assets and its associates by location of the
relevant associates’ business operations are detailed
below:

PRC FREY
Korea 52 [E
Hong Kong 5B
Note: Non-current assets excluded derivative financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

4. WAKRDEER (B

Corporation (I KEPCO )
Korea Power Exchange

(b) DEUMARDEELE (&
iy BRAFEERNEN

REMEEALEBBEHELE

AR 0% L £ BBV B R

DEELEUWAMT :

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET

(Restated)

(& E7)

427,707 269,896
949,728 579,426
(iv) #MIBAIESSRIIETRE

BE

AERE=FEFTEMBUEL

E—hE BEEES AEME

HIERBE E (M%) REEFRT

TE Hh 2 A8 B8 B A B A 3

I

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET

(Restated)

(&&E:7))

5,402,977 5,879,923
1,017,131 1,154,938
6,156 7,715
6,426,264 7,042,576
B3 ERBEEREENLS

2022 FERE | HE

AR AE

T ARIEERIEE E o

RERERAR

187



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nll-.ﬁ

=R p R e
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5. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 5. Hth&E/%
2022 2021
20224 20214
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(= E7)
Operation support expenses KELTERS 30,168 14,712
Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water WROH N E2Y)E KK E 11,656 12,350
Other maintenance cost Hfh#E g 2 16,863 10,512
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) BREEEITE (Wat15) 5,008 7,161
Transportation and entertainment expenses BoLEWNEA 8,006 7,107
Outsourcing expenses SNEEA 4,286 6,992
Tools and consumables TERHESR 3,552 5,303
Consultancy fees BB A 3,954 5,142
Insurance expenses RERE A 6,718 4,480
Other taxes, surcharges and duties HURE-NERRE 6,795 3,678
Miscellaneous operating expenses HMIEEERY 13,216 8,652
Expense relating to short-term leases BIGHATAE A RNRE S 2,085 2,216
Office expenses WAEMX 2,669 1,742
114,976 90,047
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HIkA
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
Income on sales of generating rights and HEZEERERAEW
capacity (note) WA (Bt &E) 13,664 9,277
Compensation from insurance companies 1R B EEE 1,197 985
Equipment rental income REEEWA 427 479
Government grants (note 33) BB & (#75233) 5,688 6,841
Income on sales of scrap materials THE BRI A 320 1,098
Technical service income 7 AR FE WA 2,259 7,385
Interest income A E WA 3,557 2,579
Income on sale of carbon emission quota HE BB IR - 2,306
Others Hih 15,587 10,357
42,699 41,307
Note: A subsidiary of the Group sold its power generation rights and remaining Kzt HNERB—FKHMBASNEE2022F K2021
power generation capacity to third parties during the year ended 31 December F1I2AHEFEERHEZEERRFGEER
2022 and 2021 as the power plant of the subsidiary ended its operation in BEHEFFEF=ZH HAZMNBATNEEMR
2019. 201 9F 4R IEAZ % o

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 37)

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment (note 14)

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill (note 16)

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:

Bank borrowings

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Loan from the ultimate holding company
Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

7.

HE-RKHBATREIE
(Hta£37)

TR EE - BB S R FE R
RERE Bat14)

T ERIAZ HERSIE
(Hts£16)

SNEE (B518) Wias /? b

HEYE - BE MR
(&538) /U&= ,$§E

MF&EZHE

RITIEE
REBRMBABNER
RERKEZERABHNER
HE&R
Hi (I mRIBE R st & A
FEN — R IE R R EMIA

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
(67) =
(66,811) =
- (4,335)
(1,645) 397
(477) 3,982
(69,000) 44
BT E R
2022 2021
20224 20214
US$’000 US$°000
FET FET
162,818 131,818
61,908 42,508
- 11,988
2,115 1,902
191 =
73 =
227,105 188,216
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR

m7.|_
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9.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss represents:

Current tax: BRHAFR IS :
Provision for the year FRREE
Under provision in prior years BEFERERE

RERIN-FTFE

Dividend withholding tax — current year

EIERRIE (f1a219) :
REE

Deferred tax (note 19):
Current year

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda.

Current tax provision represents provision for the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT”) and Korean Corporate
Income Tax (“KCIT”).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards, except for those subsidiaries
described below.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are under the
Western China Development Plan and a preferential tax rate of
15% is granted for an extended period from 2020 to 2030. As
a result, the tax rate of 15% is used to calculate the amount of
current taxation.

Pursuant to KCIT law, the statutory income tax of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries was calculated at a rate of 24.2% of the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Annual Report 2022

9.

n\l-F

m R HithZ2E R mR

I*.IZFFr Bm

= P
(a) #FEE@mRAZIRIES

2022 2021

20224 20214

Us$’000 USs$’000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&&E7))

54,580 34,042

770 207

55,350 34,249

4,703 4,009

(1,480) (4,192)

58,573 34,066

RABER RN ERERE

BRI R EIE P E 2SR (TFE
HERBR) RBRECEMRER (TEE
EEFRERL) B

RIEFEAREMEACEMRSRE (TR
¥EFRIBME) REEFREREIBHIK
> 52008FE1B10#E > FEME AR
MR EAH25% Iff T XFrt Ik B A7
BR4ho

AEBETALENETHBE QAR ®
BAIAMESE IZZ15%2BE
REH2020FEERE2030F c FHIE > 5+
BENHRIER R A 15% 2 o

RIERE B EMSRE B E20228 K
2021FE 1283 1HIEEE ) AEB 5
E M B AT EEFRBRILRMEE
R EFIM24. 2%t o
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ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(continued)

Pursuant to Hong Kong tax law, the statutory income tax was
calculated at a rate of 16.5% for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021. Pursuant to the tax laws in Republic of Malta
and in Mauritius, the statutory income tax was calculated at
a rate of 35% and 15%, respectively, for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. However, subsidiaries of the Group
operating in these jurisdictions have not generated taxable
income during both years and therefore, no tax provision has
been made by the Group in relation to these subsidiaries.

The Group’s subsidiaries and associates that are tax residents
in the PRC are subject to the PRC dividend withholding tax
ranging from 5% to 10% for those non-PRC tax resident
immediate holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions, when and if undistributed earnings are
declared and to be paid as dividends out of profits that arose
on or after 1 January 2008.

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax residents in Korea are
subject to a 15% Korean dividend withholding tax for the
immediate holding company incorporated in the Republic of
Malta when and if undistributed earnings are declared and to
be paid to non-PRC or non-Korea residents as dividends out of
profits.

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the profit for the current year of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries and certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

9 " \\,'R

m R Hith 2 E R m R

WZ%%&%#

(a)

2022 FER

p==4
=

EAlEERANZIRIENS
(#&)

RIFEFER L BLE2022F 202145
12B31HIEFEZEAEMBRDE
16.5%sT H o IRIEFE M LM E & E4E
BEIR L B E2022F K2021F128
1B I FEEZ AT BIE3I5% K&
15% 2 MEAE - RAM AEBEZE
AAREREZHB AN ZMEN
W EE R > A E B &R
ZEMNBABEHRIBREME

W EMBER2008FE1B1EBRZRBRESE
M EPRHNRs REHELRKRBIK
T HRETBREMBAREF MK
UNZEFFPERBEREEREERA
BME FATRERBERNFEKNE
NE RS A B BN %E10% N E R
E % SIEIMR -

il B i 73 R 0 Ik & 7 K B i #) o g 32
NFFEPENFERAERRE  ERER
ERFEEROEERNE LB ERL
FEMANESEMRINERERA
Bl 1 5% ¥ B AR B R4

FA 74 4 &2 [ BT 9 A6 B B 2 R A9 [o 8 B
B Mt ERERENRRERRERE
FEEZ B ERRNEEELEDN
FEBRRBRBENBARDRE T TEKE
AR Z B EENERERNFEM
BRI HIELER IR R

| HEEENERERERAE
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9.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense
and accounting profit at applicate tax

rates:

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the countries concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of preferential tax rates
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries

Utilization of tax losses previously not
recognized

Tax effect of tax losses not recognized

Withholding tax on distributable profits

of subsidiaries and associates
Under provision in prior years

Income tax expense for the year

FRAR Al A

BREMBERERASHRE
T8 RS B R %
MR

FAREMNMASI IR &

FNARMBANIR T2
BEBME QB EENRE
T8

ATHENEBAS
EREENENRBZRE
e SRl R HERIRIEE 1B

I SR ER B AR TR S 4R Y
ﬁ%%‘?\/ =
WEBABREEAE
B 93k e A RO TR0 AR
BEFEREETE

FAPSMRAX

Details of deferred tax movement are set out in note 19.

Annual Report 2022

|\7F

m R Hith 2 E R m R

WZFE I (8

(b) FRISMBIXBEtuFE
FEHAREFEZEHERMN
T

2022 2021

20224 20214

Us$’000 US$'000

(Restated)

(R&E7)

272,994 295,180

70,351 61,004

18,034 9.084

(3,887) (6,166)

15,813 9435

(63,641) (51,272)

(424) (759)

13,319 10,991

8,238 1,542

770 207

58,573 34,066

BRAEERIEZENE BT R HE190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n o R R R P EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at

after charging:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Recognition of loss allowance of trade and other
receivables and contract assets

(note 36(a))

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment (note 74)

Staff costs
- salaries and allowances

— contribution to retirement benefits scheme,
including directors’ emoluments

Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 42 &

Auditors’ remuneration
- audit services
- non-audit services

Total auditors’ remuneration

10.

FENRMEENR

ME BB RREITE

FRAEEETE

B 5 R H WA K
HREEBEREE
(H15£36(a))

R UEN =5 L X
ERE Bat14)

BIMAE
— e KR
—RIREF) B

BIEEEME

I SEEEME

1% B BT B <=
—E %
—IFEZ

MBIz BTN =

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
(Restated)

(& E75))

335,969 266,346
5,008 7,161
2,791 20,292
66,811 =
93,503 89,614
15,892 13,240
109,395 102,854
670 621
21 64
691 685
2022 FERE | HPEBEZMERZERERAT

FAmF
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nll'.ﬁ

11.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments

2022

Name

Secretary of the Communist Party

Committee, Chairman, President and

Executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu, President (appointed as

Chairman of the Board and President
on 8 April 2022)

Executive Director

Mr. LI Yilun, former President (resigned as
President and Director on 8 April 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sui, former Chairman of the
Board (resigned as Chairman of the
Board and Director on 8 April 2022)

Mr. WANG Hongxin

Mr. Chen Xinguo (appointed on
8 April 2022)

Mr. Ren Liyong (appointed on 8 April 2022

and resigned on 29 September 2022)

Mr. Bian Shuming (appointed on 29
September 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

i)

BRED IR MERUTES

RERLE A3 (11202254580
EZTAZESQIRBLE)
HITES

FhfakE A4 (120226
ARBHRABHARES)

FRTES

BEEE GEESLE
(R2022F4B8HMIEZEEE
$E5%)

IRMEE

BHE L (R2022F4B8AERAE)

EHELRE (R2022F4B8AERT
R2022E98 29§ D)

TEBEEE (R2022E98298
EZE)

BIFHTES
RFERE
BRERE
IRERE

| Annual Report 2022

11. EFMERES M
E5ME
20224
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total
REERA RIAER
EERE HeREM HEER EMER HE e st
us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 uss$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
18 - - - - 18
9 - - - - 9
9 - - - - 9
36 - - - - 36
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

2021

Name 4

Chairman and Non-executive Director TERFRITES

Mr. CHEN Sui, former Chairman of the BEREE HEEZTE
Board (resigned as Chairman of the (202054 8H
Board and Director on 8 April 2022) HIZEELIEHEEDR)

Executive Directors RITES

Mr. LI Yilun, former President (resigned as 7R 54 » 1487 (120225
President and Director on 8 April 2022)  4F8HBHIMEHRES)

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu, President (appointed as SREEITE > 447 (120225488
Chairman of the Board and President on ~ EZAAEZ@TEREH)
8 April 2022)

Non-executive Directors EHiTES

Mr. WANG Hongxin ITRMAE

Independent Non-executive Directors  BIEHTES

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick RIEEE
Mr. YANG Xiaosheng BRERE
Mr. WANG Minhao IRERE

1. EEMERESFHM (&

EEME (&)
20214
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total
=HERA RINER
B HERER HEER BEF SRR st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
32 - - - - 32
27 - - - - 27
27 - - - - 27
86 - - - - 86

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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11.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services as directors of the Company.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries, so the payments of their emoluments were borne by CGN
and its subsidiaries for both years.

Neither the President nor any of the directors of the Company waived
any emoluments during both years.

No emoluments were paid to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join for both years.

Individuals with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals did not include any directors of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. The
emoluments of the five individuals for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

e KRR
RARAEH 5T &I R

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
Performance related incentive payments (note)

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined by the board of
directors of the Company based on the Group’s performance.
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11.

RIRERBBER (W)

EFMERESHFM (&)

EXME @)

ERAGTEENS A RELAETRBDREER
EEEHEMZRBM A

FHIFRTEEMES M RFEEERILTDIHA
M@ QB EFAEERB M A o £l IFHA
TEEMEDHMRFREEARDEEHMRE
M3z fy o

ETEETRERPEZRENB AR HHE
IS 22w {8 6 2 B9 3 B Bl o s AR e EL B /BB R B K
}%0

BEARARBINENEETNZMEEERR
WS BRAE (AT B =

BERZMEFERRATES A FES
AR B FEH o

= # ol {E S

B E2022F K2021E 12831 B IEEE > # B
BEeAAEALAGERARERES -HE
2022FE K2021E1283 1B EEE TSRS
ATHEFMOT :

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
1,041 1,832
57 56

429 577
1,527 2,465

M. RREBMHBEANDHARDEZTIREL
EEPNRREE
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

e | — | = %
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 1. EEMERESEFHI @)
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)
Individuals with highest emoluments EaitES #&)
(continued)
No benefits in kind and compensations of loss of office were paid to BER ZWEEEBE AN EYR i B B
the individuals and no emoluments were paid to the individuals as an BEE > TEAEAZTMEERSNARRTHN
inducement to join for both years. FHA o
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HENMESN FLUTEHE
No. of employees
BEAH
2022 2021
20225 20214
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”") 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0013& 7z (F#7T1) 22,000,000 7T
(Equivalent to US$192,001 to US$255,000) (FAE 1 192,001 75 £ 255,000 7T) 1 0
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017875£2,500,000/87C
(Equivalent to US$255,001 to US$319,000) (FE 255,001 £319,000%7T) 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001775%3,000,00077T
(Equivalent to US$319,001 to US$383,000) (HHE12319,001%7c£383,000%7T) 2 3
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,0017&75%9,000,000E7T
(Equivalent to US$1,085,001 to US$1,149,000) (HE141,085,001 2755 1,149,000%7T) 0 1
Vil
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BKREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable APNBEERKREELEREARBERAT
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company is based on the RIBEU T EIRE
following data.
2022 2021
20224 20214
us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(restated)
(& E7)
Earnings: &mA
Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic ARt E SR EAR K #ER T
and diluted earnings per share (profit for the NEF A BERKRE
year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders FE{5 4 A& F)
of the Company) 195,143 244,274

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

13.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Number of shares:

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of

Ay =1

RABEERELRKR

12,

calculating basic and diluted earnings per share #EZF|ZERHE

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended

31 December 2022 and 2021,

and therefore, diluted earnings per

share are the same as basic earnings per share.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

Hong Kong

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Employees
contribute 5% of their relevant income to the MPF Scheme and
the Group contributes 10% of each employee’s monthly base
salary. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss were approximately
US$223,000 (2021: US$215,000).

The PRC

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations of the
PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the retirement fund administered by the PRC
government ranging from 10% to 22% (2021: 10% to 22%) of
the total monthly basic salaries of the current employees. In
addition, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required by law to
contribute 2% to 15% (2021: 2% to 15%) of basic salaries of
the employees for social insurance in relating to staff welfare,
housing, medical and education benefits. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the costs charged under such
arrangements for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries amounted to
approximately US$11,028,000 (2021: US$10,320,000).
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13.

sKREN (&)

2022 2021
20224 20214
000 ‘000

Fi FR
4,290,824 4,290,824

B E2022F K2021E 12831 HIEEE » i FE i
HEELER At SR#EERTFIEERER
BAER -

BEEF

(a)

RERRHTRETE
BE

rEBEERAMECEREESR
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan (continued)

Korea

The Group’s Korean subsidiaries are required by law to
contribute 0.06% to 4.5% (2021: 0.06% to 4.5%) of the
average salaries of the employees for national pension,
national health insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial
accident compensation insurance and wage claim guarantee
fund. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost
charged under such arrangements for the Group’s Korean
subsidiaries amounted to approximately US$1,315,000 (2021:
US$1,309,000).

In the PRC and Korea, the Group cannot reduce the existing
level of contributions by the forfeited contributions made by the
employers on behalf of the employees who leave the defined
contribution schemes before the vesting period. As such, no
forfeited contribution was used to reduce both years’ level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 to reduce future years’
contributions in the PRC and Korea. In Hong Kong, the Group
has utilized nil forfeited contributions to reduce the current
year’s level of contributions for the year ended 31 December
2022 (Nil for the year ended 31 December 2021). As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, no material forfeited contribution
was available to reduce the contribution payable in future years
in Hong Kong.

Defined benefit retirement scheme

Korea

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Korea,
all employees with more than one year of service are entitled
to lump-sum severance payments equal to one month’s pay of
service for each year based on their rate of latest salary and
the length of service upon termination of their employment or
retirement.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries in accordance with an independent
actuary’s recommendation based on annual actuarial
valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
scheme was at 31 December 2022 and were prepared by the
qualified staff of Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd, who are members of
the Society of Actuaries of the United States of America and
Institute of Actuaries of Korea, using the projected unit credit
method.

13. EE4EF (@)

(a)

(b)

2022 EERE

EFRH

TA n'l' §| (#5)
-4

AEFBBREWBABRRBELEZA

EHEEHEEFHFHE0.06%F4.5%
(20214 : 0.06%E4.5%) 2> 1F
7%@%&%% EXREERRERKER
B TERIIEERE KR TERRRSE
HEE -REZE2022F 12831 LEEE >
REAERRERNBADZEREZH
MR B A 497%1,315,000% 75 (2021
£ 11,309,000 7T) ©
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as
investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk. Information
about the plan is disclosed below:

(i) The amount recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position is as follows:

Present value of wholly or partly
funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Net defined benefit retirement

scheme (assets)/obligations EEF5

A portion of the above asset is expected to be
recovered after more than one year. However, it is
not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts recoverable in the next twelve months, as
future contributions will also relate to future services
rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The Group expects to pay
US$815,000 (2021: US$845,000) in contributions to
defined benefit retirement schemes during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

(ii) Plan assets consist of the following:

RERFEEEY

Cash and cash equivalents

There were no asset-liability matching strategies used
by the scheme of the Group.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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ERAMLOBREEZIRE

REZmRIKRE (BE)

BIMBRINELT -
(i) RiGEEHBERREDPREINE
EOTF :
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
12,140 14,589
(12,310) (12,906)
(170) 1,683
THBEN OB E—

FELBWE AT HZzEEE
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(ii) FEEEAEUTEIE !

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
(12,310) (12,906)
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

(iif)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations:

At beginning of the year

Remeasurements:

— Actuarial losses/(gains) from
changes in experience

- Actuarial gains from

changes in financial

assumptions

Benefits paid by the scheme

Current service cost
Interest cost
Exchange differences

At end of the year

==

BHFE
BEERE S (W)

—MHBRREER
& E Uk

st8I52 S 2 18 F)
IR AR A A
AESYa%:S
ERERR

RER

nv-.ﬁ

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

13. EEEH &)
(b) HREZmBIARE (&
AN
(iii) RESHETNIREES :
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
14,589 17,327
124 (450)
(1,590) (599)
13,123 16,278
(1,884) (2,250)
1,415 1,683
347 309
(861) (1,431)
12,140 14,589
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 13. EE@EF #&)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme

(continued)

Korea (continued) BE #3)
(iv) Movements in plan assets: (iv) TEIEENED
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year RER] (12,906) (14,535)
Group’s contributions paid to AEBE BB AR
the plan . B (1,882) (1,756)
Benefits paid by the plan 5t 8137 {3 2 8 A 1,901 2,235
Return on plan assets greater BRITRENGFTEEERL K
than discount rate ) 3 191 258
Administrative expenses paid AEEESNNITEREX
from plan assets 30 35
Interest income ) 2 WA (375) (368)
Exchange differences bE D RE 731 1,225
At end of the year RER (12,310) (12,906)
(v) Amounts recognized in the consolidated profit or loss (v) EReEnkEMEAR KRR
and other comprehensive income are as follows: SBHEERUT ¢
2022 2021
20225 20214
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Current service cost IR REAR 75 AL A 1,415 1,683
Net interest on defined benefit ’“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/,\ﬁ'ﬁﬁ'}
assets/obligations - FEFER (28) (59)
Administrative expenses paid SHEEELMNITEEX
from plan assets 30 85
Total amounts recognized in P18 o b SR AU AR 2R
profit or loss 1,417 1,659
Net actuarial gains RGP (1,466) (1,049)
Return on plan assets less than {ERITIRE M5+ F & E O 3R
discount rate 191 258
Total amounts recognized in REMEEmK EERIAEEE
other comprehensive income, BRI AT
before tax (1,275) (791)
Tax expenses MBS 295 192
Total amounts recognized in PR EAM 2 m U =S R
other comprehensive income (980) (599)

Rst8 ()
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

(vi)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

HFrIRE
RARFFE L7

Discount rate
Future salary increases

The below analysis shows how the net defined benefit
retirement scheme assets as at 31 December 2022
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 1%
change in the significant actuarial assumptions:

HIR%E
RIH & LT

Discount rate
Future salary increases

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum
of the returns on individual asset categories. The return
is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the
year, for returns net of administrative costs, over the
entire life of the related obligations.

13. BE®RH (&
(b) RERmBAEE &

#RE

(vi) 20224 2021412831 1E

BNETEREERUT
2022 2021
20224 20214

4.80%-4.84%
5.00%

3.24%-3.25%
5.00%

LR BRI 2022412831
BNRESHmRBRAGTEEEZ
EEREABERRMN1%EL
g,/ Gl :

Increase Decrease
in 1% in 1%
1% 1%
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(1,084) 944
963 (1,086)

ER SRR E D A PR R R B R 3R
B RERRKRONVEEILEARET
o AibiEE B EBEERR
ZEEAREKE -

SEEENAHRBAOEREXZE
ERBEKREASG  mIFEH
EEHANERZM - BHRD
REBEFEVN TS HAMEBEEE
HR AT HREBRNER
TR E -

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

=R p R e

COST

At 1 January 2021

Exchange differences (restated)
Additions (restated)

Disposals

Transfer

At 31 December 2021 (restated)
Exchange differences

Additions

Disposals

Transfer

At 31 December 2022

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2021

Exchange differences (restated)

Charge for the year (restated)

Disposals

At 31 December 2021 (restated)

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognized in
profit or loss (note)

Disposals

At 31 December 2022

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021 (restated)

BA
1202151818
ERERE (L&)
RE (IRE5)
RE

B

#20214128318 (KRE3)
ERER

HE

RE

=k

1#2022%128318

R E R E

20211818
EREE (E57))
FEREX (CE5))
RE

#2021E128318 (KE3)

ERER

FRRY

RERRRDHHESRE
(Hf=2)

RE

12022128318

IREE
#2022128318

#2021E128318 (K E5)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

14. Y% BB R

Electric
Freehold and steam Office and

land in generating electronic Motor Construction

Korea Buildings facilities equipment vehicles in progress Total
R ERER BARER WAER

KAKR LM ¥ EERNE EFRE RE HRIR a5t
Us$'000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$°000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
77,594 881,261 3,666,995 19,071 7,735 1,449,508 6,102,164
(6,812) (2,959) (21,272) 181 159 9,794 (20,909)
9 34,269 108,075 2,693 1,242 1,712,930 1,869,218
(6,173) (172,350) (241,490) (6,748) (560) - (427,321)
3,262 351,585 1,793,276 1,259 76 (2,149,458) -
67,880 1,091,806 5,305,584 16,456 8,652 1,022,774 7,513,152
(3,845) (155,632) (385,191) (2,719) (766) (62,641) (610,794)
- 4,160 40,232 2,965 1,407 413,360 462,124
- (44,945) (38,174) (543) (771) (756) (85,189)
- 93,853 1,099,680 157 - (1,193,690) -
64,035 989,242 6,022,131 16,316 8,522 179,047 7,279,293
- 302,135 1,038,976 10,638 3,103 - 1,354,852
- (2,247) 232 96 39 - (1,880)
- 40,247 222,210 2,853 1,036 - 266,346
- (137,951) (216,670) (6,318) (550) - (361,489)
- 202,184 1,044,748 7,269 3,628 - 1,257,829
- (35,108) (72,933) (1,915) (236) - (110,192)
- 40,113 291,684 2,927 1,245 - 335,969
- 11,848 54,963 - - - 66,811
- (44,798) (37,524) (504) (692) - (83,518)
- 174,239 1,280,938 1,777 3,945 - 1,466,899
64,035 815,003 4,741,193 8,539 4,577 179,047 5,812,394
67,880 889,622 4,260,836 9,187 5,024 1,022,774 6,255,323

At 31 December 2022, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates of certain buildings with carrying values of US$18,055,000

(2021: US$15,891,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, borrowing costs of

US$8,815,000 (2021:

US$37,412,000) were capitalized into the cost

of construction in progress. The capitalization rates used to determine
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are ranged
from 3.1% to 4.4% (2021: from 4.0% to 5.0%).

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

| Annual Report 2022
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain amounts of the property,
plant and equipment have been pledged as securities for the
borrowings. Details are set out in note 31.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognized impairment losses of
US$66,811,000 on certain property, plant and equipment in the PRC and Korea.

During the year, two wind energy power plants of the Group located in the PRC failed
to connect to the grid on time. The directors of the Company considered the chances
of receiving any tariff subsidy for these power plants according to the “Notice on
Improving the Policies for Wind Power On Grid Tariff” (B 5e= A B F4BEBIK
SRHYZEA])) issued by the National Department and Reform Commission in 2019 are
remote. As a result, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of these power plants
and the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment were written down to
their recoverable amount of US$65,785,000. Impairment losses of US$44,983,000 were
recognized in “Other gains and losses”. The estimates of the recoverable amounts were
based on value in use calculations. These calculations are based on the present value
of the cash flow projections derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management. The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rate of 7.3%.

During the year, impairment losses of US$21,828,000 were recognized to property,
plant and equipment of certain fuel cells in Korea, as a supplier of the fuel cells was
unable to replace the stack module for the fuel cells and the efficiency of the fuel cells
was significantly affected. The directors of the Company considered that without the
replacement of the stack module, the fuel cells will not able to make profits and decided
to close down the fuel cells. The Group assessed the recoverable amount of these
power plants and the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment were written
down to nil.

14.

2022 FERE | HE

ME BB KR (B

EA2022£E&2021EE12H31E1 HETMEBE
RESHEERBEREABEER FEHN
M‘JE31 °

WaE

HE2022F 12831 BIEEE  AEERIATEA KRR
ETWE BB KR %ERER1866,811,000% 7T ©

FROAERRTPENERERARERNERSE
AABEEZRBERERBLEEIN2019F 3 1 (Rl
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. [ERAEHEE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Leasehold Land and
lands buildings Total
AELH T RIEF st
Us$’000 US$’000 USs$’000
FET FETT FET
As at 1 January 2021 #2021F181H
Carrying amount R E 52,768 33,869 86,637
Exchange differences bE R ZRE 1,364 65 1,429
Additions NE 12,795 6,625 19,420
Disposals BRE - (10) (10)
Depreciation charge TER% (4,193) (2,968) (7,161)
As at 31 December 2021 and #2021F128318 K
1 January 2022 2022F1H1H

Carrying amount BRmEE 62,734 37,581 100,315
Exchange differences PE R ERE (5,794) (2,731) (8,525)
Additions wNE 13,238 6,008 19,246
Disposals RE - (488) (488)
Depreciation charge TERX (1,624) (3,384) (5,008)
Lease modification GER=R T - (292) (292)
As at 31 December 2022 #2022FE12831H
Carrying amount BREE 68,554 36,694 105,248

For both years, the Group leases land and buildings (including offices
and rooftops) for its operations. Other than the lease contracts of land
use rights which are entered into for 1.5 to 40 years, lease contracts
for other assets are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 4 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings and office
buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties have been
presented in right-of-use assets and the building components have
been presented in property, plant and equipment.

Annual Report 2022
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5
GOODWILL 16. BHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
CcoSsT s
At 1 January W1B1H 182,908 178,744
Exchange differences EEREZE (15,395) 4,164
At 31 December ’12831H 167,513 182,908
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES  E:itiEEEE
At 1 January M1B1H (14,110) (9,5083)
Impairment losses recognized in R NERIREEE
profit or loss - (4,335)
Exchange differences EEREZE 1,193 (272)
(12,917) (14,110)
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December ®12831H 154,596 168,798
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BEEENREELEEMNZH
containing goodwill =R:
Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”) BEPEREUTEHESESXABEMN (REELE
or group of cash-generating units as follows: fii)) FIREEEEAMAR -
2022 2021
20224 20214
USs$°000 US$°000
FET FET
Wind Energy Subsidiaries REHBAR
(as defined below) (note) (BER T (Hz2) 112,560 122,956
Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIGEEM B AT
(as defined below) (note) (;:F_%E"Fﬁ() (=) 40,600 44,351
Multiple units without significant goodwill WHERBEKHENZEE 1,436 1,491
154,596 168,798
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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16.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved
by management which cover operation periods ranging from 7 to 23 years (2021: 8
to 24 years). The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rates ranged
from 10.18% to 11.89% (2021: 10.00% to 11.52%). Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which
is determined based on the installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy
Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries and management’s expectations for the
market development. The estimated annual average growth rates in electricity generation
volume range from 0% to 9.4% (2021: -9.6% to 7.4%).

At 31 December 2022, since the recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries
and Solar Energy Subsidiaries are higher than their respective carrying amounts,
no impairment loss was recognized during the year (2021: impairment losses of
US$819,000 and US$3,516,000 were recognized in certain CGUs of the Group’s Wind
Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively).

An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in impairment losses of US$526,000
and nil to the CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy
Subsidiaries respectively. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume will not cause the carrying
amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries to exceed their
recoverable amounts.
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(20214 :-9.6%E7.4%) K& o

20225128318 > HX R EBH B A 5 kAR AEH B
AT WESESNESENREE RERLE
BREERE (20215 RAEERSHBAT R LK
BREMBAGNETREELEUD MR RESE
819,000% 75 % 3,516,0003 7T) ©

FREIRMO.6% R EMAERKBENB AR REAE
MEARREEL BN A ELRERE526,000%
ThZE - EEERR BHBETHFRREGEAL
Z2EB8HIEERAEWB AR R ABERBEQRNIK
EEEBBHE I UREI 58



17.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of unlisted investments in associates
Share of post-acquisition loss and exchange FE{LURBER B R ER =48

differences

N

17.

BRABNFLEFREZ A

The following list contains the particulars of associates of the Group,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price

is not available:

BB AR

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
150,569 150,569
(76,301) (1,331)
74,268 149,238

TR AEBHEQATDNEN (KELTY
BIELTRARER WILHHRETFER) :

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting right
held by the Group

sEEFMERARETE R
REELA
2022 2021
20225 20214
49% 49%
49% 49%
6.55% 6.55%
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Hzi) (&)
9.34% 9.34%
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(it (i)

et -

Place of
establishment
and principal
place of Registered and
Name of associates business Legal form paid up capital
P33 B R
BERAERE FRERME  SEpA RS- R
Hubei Huadian Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign equity joint Renminbi (“RMB”")
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Huadian”) venture 950,000,000
MEESHEUZEEERAA HE FHRERELE ARHE TARS))
(THI6EE)) 950,000,0007%
Hubei Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB945,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Xisaishan") joint venture
AAEELZBHRAT T POHAE AR AR 1945,000,0007
(G bl ES1TH))
Jiangxi United Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB76,328,972
(“Jiangxi United”) joint venture
IRMAERERAR (DIAKS] HE PHEERIELE AE¥76,328,9727%
Inner Mongolia East Electric The PRC State-owned holding RMB242,688,994
Power Trading Center Co., Ltd. enterprise
(“Inner Mongolia East Electric Power”)
REERBENRZPLERAF HE EEERE%E AR ¥242,688,9947C
(TARERBESN)
Notes:
(i) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over

Jiangxi United as they have nominated a representative on the board of
directors and participated in policy-making processes.

(ii) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over
Inner Mongolia East Electric Power as they nominated a representative on the
board of directors and participated in policy-making processes.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements.

(ii) BEEER

Principal activity

TEEH

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMEEEN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMEEEN

Generation and supply of
electricity

TERMEEEN

Operation of electricity
trading platform

(Wyst(i) #EE

BHEEEHARLRME

EXZgRRAEEARIABMSAEAXLE
N RERHERAZESTE— %ﬁ%%?i’z%éﬁi
REBEE

NBEEKR

FENDFRARACRLEFT—RAERK
SHERKIBIZ

RAIRe

2022 EERE |

FitPR A B E A B R A ER X

B B %R AE

RIREHMBHR

FIERARAE
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

17.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

(a) Hubei Xisaishan

Gross amount of the associate

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(Deficit)/Equity

Revenue

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest

in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Group’s effective interest

Group’s share of net (deficit)/
assets of the associate

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

Summarized financial information of
material associates

Summarized financial information of the above associates, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

REERRZEE
/}IL@JQE

IEREEE
nEaE
FFREBER
(Bsht) /T
WA

FABEREE
Wi ABER

FANEBEARKRIRNKRE

SRS QAR 2 Bk
HENEFEEMER
AEEBERED

AERBBEZHEAT
% (B SBE

Carrying amount in the consolidated iz & FEIRE 2 BREE (H:L)

financial statements (note)

Note: As the operation period of the associate will expire in October 2023,
financial information for the associate as at 31 December 2022 is
prepared on breakup basis. The Group’s interest in the associate is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued when
the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate.

Annual Report 2022

N
E =i
i

Eng
B RMERVERBELR) !

#ICFEEE L

(a)

A

RENEE (B

EREMBERE

BINMBENMERENT (’S?EP

SR ERERFHBARE WA

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Us$’000 USs$’000
FET FET
39,054 129,541
- 132,517
(77,903) (138,945)
- (333)
(38,849) 122,780
213,719 197,985
(154,959) (30,893)
- 7,812
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(38,849) 122,780
49% 49%
(19,036) 60,162
- 60,162
KiaE . BERBEATNEESHERR20234F
108 FIHA > d Bt 2 EEA2022E12
F31 B B B D RS B A R
8o A E B g ’M&mﬂzi
%!Eﬁéﬂx%ﬁf B8 H R
%ﬁ;ﬁ’&?ﬁﬂ% IEFERRE—
518 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n o R R R P EE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b) Hubei Huadian

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

Revenue

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Group’s effective interest

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Goodwill

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

Carrying amount in the consolidated Rix S BREZREE

financial statements

A -ll-A_L =
17. REBEQTNER &)
(b) MILESE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
REE QT 24258
MENEE 105,184 137,685
ERBEE 427,188 461,951
}aE (147,953) (311,165)
ERBEE (245,882) (119,389)
g 138,537 169,082
WA 409,802 444,811
FABEERETA
W 4858 (17,784) (46,124)
FERNEHEABWERBRE
- 17,750
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
BMAEERBEEATER ZHIR
BMEANBFEERTE
138,537 169,082
AEBZERER 49% 49%
NEFBGEZHE AR FEE
67,883 82,850
67,883 82,850
GRS 1,591 1,591
69,474 84,441
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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(c) Jiangxi United

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Non-controlling interests

Group’s effective interest
Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

REEARZHBER
MBEE

IERBMEE

JEREEE

i

L ON

FAEMN R 2B AR

FREBERATBENRE

SRR BE QAR a2 Bk

BE N FEERE

JRIER D

AEMZ BER D
FEBRBGEZHEQRFEE

Carrying amount in the consolidated R#R & FEME Z REE

financial statements

Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FETT
23,154 21,858
102,359 112,730
(19,358) (28,580)
(82,858) (89,663)
23,297 16,345
20,702 9,539
8,681 2,941

- 6

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
23,297 16,345
(630) (689)
22,667 15,656
6.55% 6.55%
1,485 1,025
1,485 1,025
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#n o R R R P EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

o A Ak L
17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. REVEATIN#ELE (B)
(d) Inner Mongolia East Electric Power (d) AREHERIPE
2022 2021
20224 20214
USs$’000 Us$’000
FET FEx
Gross amount of the associate  FEiE AT 2 48%8
Current assets MHEE 35,720 38,299
Non-current assets ERBEE 754 435
Current liabilities mEaE (1,047) (83)
Non-current liabilities EREBER - -
Equity e 35,427 38,651
Revenue WA 907 797
Profit and total comprehensive FEWNEA e EWE
income for the year 37 34
Dividends received from the FREBE AR WEBIRE
associate during the year - -
2022 2021
20225 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FE7T
Reconciled to the Group’s BMAEEMRBEATER ZHIR
interest in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of BE A B R EEARRE
the associate 35,427 38,651
Group’s effective interest REBEERER 9.34% 9.34%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBBGEZHERNBBEE
the associate 3,309 3,610
Carrying amount in the RiREMBREZREE
consolidated financial statements 3,309 3,610
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

18.

19.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 18.

FVOCI

Investments in unlisted equity securities

The unlisted equity securities are shares in 3 (2021:

FEHRERTAKE

4) companies

established in the PRC with limited liability and engaged in operating
of electricity trading platforms. The Group designated its investments in
these companies at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held
for strategic purpose. No dividends were received on the investments
during the year (2021: nil). During the year ended 31 December 2022,
investments in unlisted equity securities amounting to US$1,511,000
were derecognized with the disposal of a subsidiary (see note 37).

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position

represents:

Tax payable FESTRIE

- PRC EIT —HREhEFRER
- KCIT —EBE P ERER
Tax payable FE(T#R 18

Tax recoverable A U BRI

- PRC EIT —HREEFRER

Annual Report 2022

BEAUAAREESER
SEEtAHMEEEAY
THEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 USs$’000
FET FET
3,411 5,238

FLEHRBEFEIEAZR (2021F : OR) KRR
BRI RREBENRZFEZERAT ZRMD -
FEBMBHEHRZEAD ZRERBEABUAAE
BEtEREFT AEMEEmRE (RaT#E) »
BERAZEREFEREEN - ERIEMZ
FHREWEIRE (20214 © ) - F E20224F12
B1HILEEE BEHEWNBAR  ~AEER
IERESBRIE LR T AMKRE1,511,000E 7T
(B2 MIsE37) ©

42

AR e MR R RPBIFRSIR

AR e AR R P RIBIEA
BIALS

(a)

2022 2021
20224 20214
USs$°000 US$°000
FET FET
6,928 6,610
23,462 5,689
30,390 12,299
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
524 214
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ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

nv-.ﬁ

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19. A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#8)

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)
recognized:

(i) Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/
assets recognized and movements thereon during the

R F5 I R P BYFR 1SR

EJEE I:l'L:‘

135.
¢\'

(M)

BERASERERSAE

FRERSTHOEE

UTHEFERBEFECHE
REBRERE (BE) BE

AE)

EEREEERE

current and prior years: MR EHEE) .

Fair value

Withholding  (Accelerated)/ Revaluation adjustment

tax on decelerated of of property,

distributable tax right-of-use plant and
profits  depreciation assets equipment Others Total

ATE (B /HR g BER

AR ikt Bff  REAAEE
it nE  [EREEE g2 R @i
Us$ 000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$000 Us8000
F£7 F£7 F£1 F£7 FE£T FET
At 1 January 2021 1202151818 (42,967) (870) (6,070) 20,017 (2,230) (32,120)
Exchange differences EREE 35 (225) (2217) 2413 452 398
Credited to hedging reserve ARG - - - - 1,156 1,156
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (restated) 5T A/ (1K E) 5 (BEF)) 2467 59 569 (1,261) 2,358 4,192
At 31 December 2021 (restated) Re021%12A31R (BE5) (40,465) (1,036) (1178) 21,169 173 (26,374)
Exchange differences EREB - 1,160 1735 (2,889) (1,086) (1,080)
Credited to hedging reserve ARG - - - - 2247 2247
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (IRE) Bs (3,535) 5,119 517 (931) 310 1,480
At 31 Decemboer 2022 12022 12A318 (44,000) 5,243 (5,526) 17349 3,207 (23,721)

2022 FEWRE | HPEEZMERERBERAT
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

nll'.ﬁ

19.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognized: (continued)

(1)

(i)

Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities
(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets IRIEIRIBE E
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIBEE B

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not
recognized

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately US$145,346,000 (2021:
approximately US$104,516,000), available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
will be expired at various times within a period of five
years from the year of origination.

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to US$460,373,000 (2021: US$310,630,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of US$43,806,000 (2021:
US$35,462,000) have not been recognized in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

715‘*%%%‘%435’]}5& F1%

E',ﬁﬁwi_uﬁiﬁl,é%fi%&ﬁ

(i) IEMIRE E KRB REHE
R EB RV ES) (&)
MEBINGEMBERRRMS
BT Uﬁalﬁé‘%&é{ae%&
HH- UTAMPYBFREEN
Fr{EIRIEFR TEAS BRI D47 -
2022 2021

20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&E7))
24,757 23,322
(48,484) (49,696)
(23,727) (26,374)

(i) KREDEEREEERE

(E

R2022512831H  A&EEA
REARIEE1E49145,346,000
257 (20214 : #9104,516,000
xE7T) o AEIEEE R AEF] o B
RARKGEHRNAAEE M
BowER R IEEEERIEIL
MESE RMEGESRBEA
EEERAEHRRBATEREER
HH o

R2022F 128318 > A& H
B EAERDIKERNE M
BB B =88 4460,373,0005%
7t (20214 : 310,630,0003%
7o) cAEBMMZERZ AN D
IR FE 1 R 18 3 4 B SRR IE AR 1B
£11543,806,0003% 7T (20214 :
35,462,000%7t) * RRE AR
BEHZENBATNRER
Ko BEEBEROUBEREED
EREDIRZEGH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEFE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Value-added tax recoverable
Prepaid insurance expenditure and
usage right of electricity
transmission facilities
Prepayment for maintenance
Others

INVENTORIES

Coal and oll

Spare parts and supplies
Wood pellet

REC (note)

Goods in transit - wood pellet

Note:

REC represented renewable energy certificates
sale.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables - contracts with
customers
Less: allowance for credit losses

BEWME BERRERE

FIUR[O]E 4R
TR R K
BhHEBRMERE

RERNNE
HAth

W KA
R K HiH 5

NE R
FIBLEREE (W)
FERYE — ANEFEHL

generated by the Group and held for

ESRPIRR—F R &R
W EEEEEE

#n o R R R P EE

20. HMIERBEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
63,256 69,629
184,589 265,303
173 337
14,310 16,288
13,849 12,107
276,177 363,664
4=
21. &
2022 2021
20224 20214
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
11,191 8,455
20,247 21,565
5,817 4,355
25,792 17,007
3,281 2,827
66,328 54,209
ok
DB RS EIE A EAEERSFHENT BER
REEo
Bn £h
22. B FEWERTR
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FE7T
751,352 760,992
(12,038) (16,521)
739,314 744,471

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

22.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
91 - 180 days 91EF180H
Over 180 days 180H L &

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$317,820,000
(2021: US$209,315,000) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$421,494,000
(2021: US$535,156,000) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the 2020 Notice (see note 4). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix based on the historical settlement records, latest
aging profile of those receivables and forward looking information that
is available without undue cost and effort. As a result, during the year
ended 31 December 2022, expected credit losses of US$3,182,000
in respect of trade receivables were reversed (2021: recognition of
expected credit losses of US$15,663,000) and expected credit losses
of US$5,973,000 in respect of contract assets were recognized (2021:
US$4,666,000).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 36(a).

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

Annual Report 2022

B 5 RUWERM (8

MF&EINPREHRREREH RRA TR
HEEE) 2N EZEBBRRRESEEHE
BHERE DT

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$'000
FET FET
340,956 221,325
16,301 30,168
47,574 88,368
334,483 404,610
739,314 744,471

R2022F 128318 > AEBEMNE 5 EUWER A
FREEXRBHEE N REMRFNEREMES
317,820,000 7T (20214 : 209,315,000 75)
HEWER  FER BRI A E H LS 30%/90
KAZAT o

R2022F 128318 ZEEN E 57 FE U R
EHROEOEREEKEEBERANERAES
421,494,0003= 7% (20214 : 535,156,000 7T5)
RIFEWEBR TR - IR 52020 B A (B2 RIMIsE4)
5% 5 & IS BR 7R 23 FE IS AB B8 BT 2B P9 AY 2B 128 4a B
WA *EEE%IE?*EE@EPIBU‘*BF?%%%I
*Eﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaéml%%m“ ET
EE O REMAWRAEATEL

AEEREERE2HEHEEEENSHTE
ZEESRRERAEREENGEEE &
st B REZSEBERNBELEE LR
RERRBERINEBBSHARE NEAES
AR E R EIEEEL - 8122022512
B3 1HIEFERBAEEE S EBRRER
JEHA{= B 518 #5[0]3,182,0005% 7T (20214 © BE
RIEHAE & #54815,663,000E 75) KA RAE
ERNTEHE B E5185,973,000% 7T (20214
4,666,00057T) ©

ERAEBEEHRRKLE S BUIRMPIEELDN
EERBRBE—F T IFH I HIEE36(a)

A5 3 T B 55 R A BR TR A B R R (T4 4R

=]
R °
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ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

CONTRACT ASSETS

Tariff income from sales of HEBEEREMEEEWRA
renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses B EERBRE
(note 22) (Hizt22)

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the List by the relevant government
authorities. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the relevant right becomes unconditional, upon the registration of
the Group’s respective operating power plants in the List.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
contract assets are set out in note 36(a).

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

The balance includes value-added tax recoverable of US$77,260,000
(2021: US$104,085,000) and other miscellaneous deposits and
prepayments.

All of the balances are expected to be recovered or recognized as
expense within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all amounts are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and recoverable/(repayable) on demand, except for an
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of US$1,154,000 (2021:
US$1,183,000) which is interest bearing at 6.55% (2021: 6.55%) per
annum, repayable in 2032 and is therefore shown as non-current
liabilities.

23.

24,

25.

2022 FERE | HE

BREE

2022
20224
Us$°000
FET

2021
20214
US$°000
FET

364,333 191,453

(10,114) (4,718)

354,219 186,735

GREEEMAPENMSEXBEBEEDTH
ERERBIFEUR BB IR A > R IR 1 75 A8 R BT
T A O A B BB o 1A R WG R B A AR
R AEFEESEEBRMAFTER GF
BESEEESBIRN -

ERsEBRGEERRAEREEMEENEER
BB B9 — 2 sF B B I 5E36(a)

Hth R UWRIE R TR (R IE

ErRE R RO 1 E277,260,000 7T (2021
£F 1 104,085,000%7T) U R EMMEEIZE KA
{IFRIE o

BRI ARBGRR RN —FERRESREDRMAX -

el () AR MBAE,
FEEERR AR SR TR 1A

R2022F % 2021F12H31H B =84 &K
B At BERBREXREWE S (EBEB)  H—
ERETIEEMRIR T NIE, 154,000 7T (2021
£ 11,183,000 7T) ¥ EF)%E6.55% (20214 :
6.55%) 5t 8 > AR2032EE BT HILS R A IE
mEaEe

%A RETRIERR B IR A R
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives that are designated and effective

as hedging instruments carried at
fair value:

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Analyzed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current
Current

BE KRB BIER
BARBETERS

HATEMTETR:

SNEEIRAE

MEHREBIDFA -
JEREN
nE

The major terms of the foreign exchange forward contracts are as

follows.

Notional amounts

L&EE

At 31 December 2022
#2022F12831H8

Buy Canadian (“CAD”) 96,109,384
B A96,109,384/07¢ (MN7TJ)

At 31 December 2021
2021F12831H

Buy CAD 190,894,795

E A190,894,795/0 7

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Maturity
ZIHA R

26.

Range from 9 January 2023 to

13 December 2023
N F2023FE1BIHE
2023F 128 13H

Range from 11 February 2022 to

13 December 2023
NF20225F2B11HE
2023%F12813H

Annual Report 2022

TTE:RMTA

2022 2021
20224 20214
Assets Assets

BE BE

Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FEIT
8,300 17,099

- 8,645

8,300 8,454
8,300 17,099

SNEEAERNEZGFRUT

Exchange rate

Range from CAD1: KRW815.50 to
CAD1: KRW823.67

AFA7T : 815.5088 T E
1/07C : 823.678& 7T

Range from CAD1: KRW815.50 to
CAD1: KRW828.67

AFAI0TT : 815508 TTE
1007T : 828.6788 7T
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The amounts recognized for the foreign exchange forward contracts
do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of set-off of the
recognized amounts is only enforceable upon an event of default.

It is the policy of the Group to enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the foreign currency risk associated with certain
committed purchase transactions covering 100% of the exposure.
Basis adjustments are made to the initial carrying amounts of
inventories when the anticipated purchases take place.

For the hedges of highly probable forecast purchases, as the critical
terms (i.e. the notional amount, life and underlying) of the foreign
exchange forward contracts and their corresponding hedged items
are the same, the Group performs a qualitative assessment of
effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the forward contracts
and the value of the corresponding hedged items will systematically
change in opposite direction in response to movements in the
underlying exchange rates.

The Group has entered into contracts to purchase raw materials from
suppliers in Canada. The Group has entered into foreign exchange
forward contracts (for terms exceeding a year) to hedge the exchange
rate risk arising from these committed future purchases.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of gain under foreign
exchange forward contracts deferred in the hedging reserve relating to
these committed future purchase transactions is US$6,161,000 (2021:
US$13,127,000). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss
in fair value of hedging instrument of forecast purchases recognized
in other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax, is US$6,571,000
(2021: gain of US$9,536,000). It is committed that the purchases
will take place during the next one year (2021: two years) at which
time the amount deferred in equity will be removed from equity and
included in the carrying amount of the raw materials. It is anticipated
that the raw materials will be consumed for the generation of electricity
within 12 months after purchases.

26.

2022 EERE

TTEEMIA (@)

MINEEHERBERDN AT AN EERLER

B HBRNERABERE HHPIEHEE R
REENRAIRFEEBOEMHE S ARG
fIe

FAEBPIBEATIIERERUEEES
TRARBRZ BN ERE > UEE100%
MR O - ETAHRBHER > BEEMNE
IREEETEHAE

BB REETHNRARBZHTMES AR
SNEEHERNEZER BRE2E HRR
1289) BEMBRNEPIREEAER HEAERS
EREETEES G ERAERGEEER
AP RENEEREEMEXZHMAR
143 2 () 2 B o

REH BTG R Lm0 S A AR RS R A
HeREBMBTIUNERRAR (HRBE—
F) UH P ZERERRRBIELENERE

o

R2022FE 128310 > R B S &AHE R KFEE
REPEH R EEPRIENIINEZH SR KR
49%876,161,0005% 7T (20214 : 13,127,0003%
TT) cEE2022F 128318 EFEE - REMEE
WEERANBRRBEE T TEZ ARBERSE
(JORRIEIEFRTE) %6,571,000% 75 (20214 ©
W #59,536,000£7T) © RBXBRE IR KK —F
(20214 : M) NETT BRREEFPIELED
SEFEEDTNG Tt ARV ANEREE
ﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁﬂ%éw“ﬁWﬁﬂﬁééﬁ-@

| chEEHRAERERERA
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(a)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.5% per annum as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 0% to 1.55%). The pledged bank deposits carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.1% to 5.15% per annum
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 0% to 0.49%).

Included in the cash and cash equivalents, deposits of
US$36,828,000 (2021: US$40,811,000) are made to CGNPC
Huasheng Investment Limited (“CGNPC Huasheng”). These
deposits are unsecured, interest bearing at market rates
ranging from 0.001% to 0.15% (2021: 0.01% to 0.25%) and
recoverable on demand. As the Group can withdraw these
deposits without giving any notice and without suffering any
penalty, the directors of the Company consider that these
deposits made to CGNPC Huasheng qualified as cash and
cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalent of
US$325,547,000 (2021: US$321,856,000) are deposited in
CGN Finance, a fellow subsidiary established in the PRC with
limited liability and a non-banking financial institution subject
to the regulations of the People’s Bank of China and the China
Banking Regulatory Commission, in the PRC.

Pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31), and it cannot be
withdrawn prior to the approval of the relevant banks.

Short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranging from

1.55% to 1.65% per annum as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
1.75%) with maturity period for more than three months.

Annual Report 2022

27. WEKRIFEFEY FEHR
TR EBIRRIRITER

(a)

HERIBEEEYN20226F12831H
BEENF0.01%E2.5% (20214 : 0%
F1.55%) WHIGF E B o BIEIRE
FTERR2022F12B31BREENTF
0.1%ZE5.15% (20214 : 0%ZE0.49%) HY
MIGAE B

MABRESTERASTEEDYNER
36,828,000 7T (20214 : 40,811,000
EZ) BN FHERERLERRA
B (THEZRER]) ZEERARE
5 327 F0.001%ZE0.15% (20214 :
0.01%%0.25%) M IBHIZE BN 5B
BRI E - AAEEEMNRNZER
R (BEEHEMBEARFAEZIER
) ARBVEBRA ERINFPEZ
ERNEREEREAREREESSE
B

R2022F 12831 B RkREEE
B 325,547,000E 75 (20214 :
321,856,000 7T) EFEAREIZT
FEZMBEA—KPRPEUEREMT
ERAMINERKBAT  FBIERTT
TR BETHPEARRITRTE
RITEEBEELZERNHRG -

BIRIRITERIER FRT  LUER
RTAEEBTHEE (W:E31)  ERE
HRRITHFF IR A AT IR ER

R20225FE12831 0 BEAIRTERIZE
EFREFFA155%F1.65% (20214 :
1.75%) 5t B KRB EAEAMR 5 =18 B L
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

nv-.ﬁ

27. WEKRIFEFEY FEHR
ZE%&EMWEH@%

(b)

FREEHEENEEN

HER

TERHEAAEEKRERETHNERE
28 aFERERIFRTEFH -MED
HELEZEEARTRBARKRERES
MERRAERGERTRELRTD
BARMEATHELEZRERE-

Amounts

Loans Loans from Amounts due to non-

Bank Other payables Lease from fellow the ultimate due to fellow controlling
borrowings and accruals liabilities subsidiaries  holding company subsidiaries shareholders Total

-0 RERA

EfiRER HEAEN  RERRER EfiR% B R
BiTfE EHER HEAR Lt ARWER  WERARE REHE At
Us$000 Us$'000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us§000 Us$'000 Uss'00
F£T F£r F£T FEn &5 7 &5 &

(nofe 31) (note 32) (note 30) (note 25) (note 25)

(Hs1) (W) (z0) (Hts) (Hr3225)
At 1 January 2021 12021 £1818 3,610,844 - 30,922 1,054,750 418,397 8,738 8,450 5,132,101
Financing cash flows (nofe) BERETE () 626,762 (131,818) (6,840) 945,608 (435417) (42,508) 6,657) 949,130
New leases entered i - - 7991 - - - - 7,991
Interest expenses recognized ERSBRERR - 131,818 1902 - 11,988 42,508 - 188,216
Dividend declared BERRS - - - - - - 6,657 6,657
Offer changes Hhes - - - - - - (5:452) (5,452)
Foreign exchange translation SERE 8,285 - 1572 18930 5032 1,202 338 35,359
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 12021512831 BR20225151H 4,245,891 @ 35,547 2,019,288 @ 9,940 3,336 6,314,002
Financing cash flows (10f¢) HERERE () 468,561 (162,818) (8,743) (390,826) - (57,546) (4,085) (155,457)
New leases entered i) - - 5,716 - - - - 5716
Interest expenses recognized BRDHSRE - 163,009 2,115 - - 61,008 73 227,105
Dividend declared BERRS - - - - - - 4,576 4,576
Foreign exchange translation SNERE (349,972) 8,542 2,607 (99,919) - (2,119) (1,969) (442,830)
At 31 December 2022 1R2022512A318 4,364,480 8,733 37,242 1,528,543 - 12,183 1,931 5,953,112

Note: The cash flows from bank borrowings, lease liabilities, loans from Mz RBRETEE BESE REFRR

fellow subsidiaries and the ultimate holding company, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries, and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders make up the net amount of proceeds and repayments
in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

2022 FER

=
=] |

MEBEABRREERABDHNER
FEAS B R B B A B AR IR R FE AT JE 42
BRRRENRE REAMGSER
TREBRANMBRERERREE
B FER

HE EZAERIERARAE
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27.

28.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(C) Amounts in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases
comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows FFARERERE
Within investing cash flows FAREBERERE
Within financing cash flows FARERESRE

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 60 days 0&E60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H M

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 27 days (2021:
22 days) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are
settled within the credit period.

Annual Report 2022

27. ﬁ@&ﬁ%fﬁ%%4ﬁﬂ

28.

ﬁ?
() BoaR2REXRNHEAENRECEY
TRIF
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
2,085 2,216
12,750 11,420
8,743 6,840
23,578 20,476
=>4 £h
B 5 E(IERX
RBMER REZHHSENEZEGRE
HERE DATEAT ©
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
216,279 127,066
1,084 318
5,665 2,121
223,028 129,505

HZE2022F12831HIEFE BEERMNTEY
EEHA27H (20214F : 22H) - AEBEEFIE

M REREE
RIEEHRRRAERS -

B LURR R PR A FE (T IR ]
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Construction costs payable

Staff costs payable

Accrued interest expense on
borrowings

Value-added tax payable

Others

Analyzed for reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-current

BNEEER
FEAT 8 TR A
FESHE &R B

PRI ER
HAth

MEHREN DA

nE
IERED

m7.|_

20. HMEMRIEREER

2022 EERE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
414,486 556,297
7,239 7,366
5,324 4,675
22,251 15,387
37,529 34,691
486,829 618,416
483,420 614,581
3,409 3,835
486,829 618,416
|  FEBEZMERERERAT
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30. LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 30. REBRRMEATINER

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amounts represent: R2022F 2021 12H31H » 2 S 1A ©
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes Us$’000 Us$'000
Kzt FET FET
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRNBATRNER
- due within 1 year: — 1 ERTE
CGN Finance R EZ RS i(a) 106,335 174,340
CGN Wind Energy FREZREE i 545,617 988,127
651,952 1,162,467
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRNBARNER
- due after 1 year: — 1 EREIER
CGN Finance FRE A5 i(b) 176,591 156,821
CGNPC Huasheng FREE A EE R jii 250,000 250,000
China Clean Energy Development FELE R AR &
Limited (“China Clean Energy”) BRAF
(TR EEZRETRY) iv 450,000 450,000
876,591 856,821

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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30. LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Notes:
(i)(a) Loans from CGN Finance of RMB706,139,000 (equivalent to

(i)(b)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

US$101,390,000) (31 December 2021: RMB1,111,540,000 (equivalent to
US$174,340,000)) are unsecured, interest bearing ranged from 3.45% to
4.21% (31 December 2021: 3.45% to 4.21%) per annum and repayable within
one year; and

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB34,442,000 (equivalent to US$4,945,000) (31
December 2021: Nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate
announced by the PRC National Interbank Funding Center (“RMB Loan Prime
Rate”) minus 0.60% to 1% per annum and repayable within one year.

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB61,671,000 (equivalent to US$8,855,000)
(31 December 2021: RMB50,060,000 (equivalent to US$7,852,000)) are
unsecured, interest bearing ranged from 3.60% to 4.21% (31 December 2021:
4.21%) per annum and repayable in 2030 to 2035 (31 December 2021:
2035); and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,168,213,000 (equivalent to
US$167,736,000) (31 December 2021: RMB949,782,000 (equivalent to
US$148,969,000)) are unsecured, interest bearing at the RMB Loan Prime
Rate minus 0.6% to 1.35% (31 December 2021: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus
0.39% to 0.66%) per annum and repayable in 2031 to 2040 (31 December
2021: 2037 to 2040).

Loans from CGN Wind Energy of RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
US$156,846,000), RMB1,100,000,000 (equivalent to US$172,530,000) and
RMB4,200,000,000 (equivalent to US$658,751,000) as at 31 December
2021 were repaid during the year.

Loan from CGN Wind Energy of RMB3,800,000,000 (equivalent to
US$545,617,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3.50% per annum and
repayable in 2023.

Loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250,000,000 (31 December 2021:
US$250,000,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months London
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.30% (31 December 2021: 3 months London
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.30%) per annum and repayable in 2024.

Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450,000,000 (31 December 2021:
US$450,000,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% (31 December
2021: 4.50%) per annum and repayable in 2025.

(i)(a)

(iii)

2022 EERE

30. KRERRMBATIRNER
(%&)

REPEZHHFHNERAKRE706,139,000
7t (8 E5101,390,000%75) (2021512
B31H : AR™1,111,540,0007t (A&
174,340,000 7T)) @ A EIKIF L FFR X
3.45%%F 4.21% (20215F12H31H : 3.45%F
4.21%) sTERBR—FERHEE, &

REPEZYHFHNERARES4,442,0007T
(*EE‘ESE€4,945,000%7_5) (2021512831
) AEEA R 2ERTERERE
/L\’\WEUAEM§TAE§$'J$(rAEﬁgﬁ
MEBEFE)) H0.60%E19MEFNKFEBR
BR—EREE-

REFEZMBEHNERARKE1,671,0007T
(fHE7°8,855,000%75t) (2021F12831
H: AR%50,060,0007T (1HE57,852,000
X)) ABERFE -BREFNENTFI.60%E
4.21%st 2 (20218F12831H : 4.21%) KA
2030F E 20354 (2021128318 : 2035
F)HEE &

REPEZVHNERAR1,168,213,000
7T (#8871 167,736,000%78) (20214612
A318 : AR#949,782,0007t (&
148,969,000%7T)) * AEIEH - RARE
BREBRFERH0.6%E.I5%NEFH B
(2021F12831H : ARBERBERNX
0.39%%E0.66%) KRB 2031FE£20404F
(20214128310 : 2037EE20404) &
Bo

R2021F12831BREFEZRAENERA
FE#1,000,000,0007T (#8E 72 156,846,000
£55)  AR#®¥1,100,000,0007T (&R
172,530,0003=7T) & A R #4,200,000,0007T
(#8E12658,751,000% 7T) EREREIE -

REFEZRENERARKS,800,000,000
7T (BB E 545,617,005 7T) A E iK1« W E
FZE3.50%5t B Kk AR 2023 FH1E °

REPEZERNEMR250,000,000% 7T
(20214128310 : 250,000,000%7T) *
BEEA R=EARBBTEREREM
1.30%M FEFE 8 (2021F128318 : =
BEmBIETEBEZERSM.30%) AR
2024FHIB

KRB FREERERNER450,000,000% 7T
(20214128318 : 450,000,000 7T) * 24
EIRIR S M EF]K4.50%51 8 (2021812831
B :4.50%) RZBR2025FEE

| HEEENERERERAE
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I+ 1S
BANK BORROWINGS 31. R{TEEH
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
Secured P=Eigii 2,864,220 3,188,682
Unsecured L 1,500,260 1,057,209
4,364,480 4,245,891
The maturity profile of RTEENIHBERNOT :
bank borrowings is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 957,392 763,503
After 1 year but within 2 years —F U EERBBmE 397,449 399,027
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU EERBRAE 1,369,181 1,191,136
Over 5 years EEME 1,640,458 1,892,225
3,407,088 3,482,388
4,364,480 4,245,891
The exposure of the fixed-rate borrowings is as follows: EEEERRUWT :
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMBE
Within 1 year —FR 651,551 483,059
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEMU EEFRBIEMRF 34,032 32,968
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU EERBBERF 346,836 100,923
Over 5 years EEME 137,567 203,071
1,169,986 820,021

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the variable-rate borrowings is as follows:

Variable-rate borrowings FEEE
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEM EERBE MR
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU LEFRBREE
Over 5 years HEEMUE

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities.
The bank borrowings of the Group carry interest rates which range
from 2.50% to 7.04% (2021: 1.41% to 4.66%) per annum during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the variable-rate bank borrowings
of the Group carry interest at the PRC’s lending rate less certain
margin, South Korean Government Treasury Bond Rate, One Year
Corporate Bond Rate plus 1.3% (2021: 1.2%), or Three Year Corporate
Bond Rate plus 1.2% (2021: 1.2%). The maturities of these borrowings
range from within twelve months from the reporting period end to 2029
and 2030.

Included in the Group’s secured bank borrowings, US$21,537,000
(2021: US$31,369,000) and nil (2021: US$1,846,000) are guaranteed
by the Group’s fellow subsidiaries, CGN Wind Energy and CGN Solar
Energy Development Co., Ltd., respectively.

An amount of nil (2021: US$6,142,000) of the unsecured bank
borrowings is guaranteed by CGN Wind Energy.

31.

2022 EERE

IRTTEE (@

FEEERRNT

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FE7T
305,841 280,444
363,418 366,059
962,641 1,090,213
1,562,594 1,689,154
3,194,494 3,425,870

RIBERR FFARTEEHUIEAETEDN
WAEE st E - B F2022F 12831HIEFE >
AEFIRTEEHRNF2.50%%F7.04% (2021
F I 1.41%F4.66%) FEF]EHE o

R2022F K% 2021F12831H » AEB B ] &
ERTEBENRPEERMNXAETEE 5
EBFEGEMNE - —FHCEESMEM.3%
(20214 1 1.2%) ’EEEE,H\HJL%{%%%IJ%BD
1.2% (20216 1 1.2%) st B - ZEBEW
FEPNFHREHERES 2B A mizozgfﬁ&
2030£ ©

AEBEBIKFRITEESD»21,537,0005% 7T
(20214 : 31,369,000%75) B Z (20214 :
1,846,000%%7T) DRIHAERBE A M EA S
BiZRBRPEZANGEREERATE R

R TEE R T (20214 £ 6,142,000 7T)
HPEZESER

| chEEHRAERERERA
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31. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group pledged the following assets to banks for credit facilities
granted to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment M~ BB KRR E
Trade receivables B 5 EWEER
Contract assets EREE

Bank deposits IRITER

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

At December 2022 and 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as

follows:

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —F U EERBBmE
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU EERBEAE
Over 5 years EEMUE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

31.

32.

TEE (@)

75 B 7Tk A o BB IR 00 15 B B
UTFHEE.

& @ R 1T IR 4R

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
1,053,894 1,414,502
412,331 532,293
166,525 98,031
152,270 157,730
1,785,020 2,202,556

HERE

R2022F %2021 128  HESBREEREER

mE :

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
4,864 6,899
3,708 2,594
4,925 4,390
23,745 21,664
32,378 28,648
37,242 35,547
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33. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The government grants consist of (i) subsidies of RMB12,416,000
(equivalent to US$1,783,000) (2021: RMB15,633,000 (equivalent to
US$2,452,000)) given by the PRC government to certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC for operating cost and environmental
protection; and (ii) grants of RMB41,300,000 (equivalent to
US$5,930,000) (2021: RMB45,300,000 (equivalent to US$7,105,000))
given by the PRC government to a subsidiary of the Group in respect
of a project for the construction of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC received value-added tax refund amounted to
US$4,079,000 (2021: US$5,206,000) from the PRC government, which
are recognized as other income upon receipt.

The movement of the government grants during the year is set out
below:

As at 1 January B1B1H
Exchange differences ERER
Receipt of government grants W E| B AT Bh &
Recognition as other income (note 6) FEBAEMU A (H1:t6)
As at 31 December ®12831H
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: FLE2WMEMNDFA :
Current TREN
Non-current e

33.

2022 EERE

Bt E

BAMEE 8E)PEBF M E N A RIRE
RERTFTAERETHIENBAINEBEAR
#£12,416,0007c (FHE #31,783,000% 75) (2021
£ ANRE#15,633,0007t (HHE 12,452,000
70)) 5 R(iPEBFRERE BEKR&E
HEATAEE—XWEBARNEEDE AR
41,300,0007c (1 E 75,930,000 7%) (2021
£ ANR¥45,300,0007t (1HE 587,105,000
Jo)) °©

HZE2022F12831HIEFE ) AEBMURFE
HNETHEBAS W FEBFANIEERER

4,079,0005 7T (20214 : 5,206,000 75) » FAUX
F R RERR A EMUA o
FEABBHEMENEESEWT :
2022 2021
202245 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
9,557 9,755
(775) 224
4,619 6,419
(5,688) (6,841)
7,713 9,557
194 212
7,519 9,345
7,713 9,557
|  PEEZRERIZERERAE
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Advance payments received from AW E F I8
customers

All contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognized are as follows:

Sales of steam

The Group receives deposits from the customers before the generation
of steam activity commences, this gives rise to contract liabilities at
the start of the contract, until the goods, i.e. steam is supplied to the
customers.

The amount of advance payment received from customers for sales of
steam is expected to be recognized as income within one year.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$°000 US$°000
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

. . Ak 3L g 42y
Movements in components of equity (a) tEz=AAREER D E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEB LGS B TR S MHE D B 4 6
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BMEREFRCENERIN G ER
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BEIR o LN &Y A A B E ) B FEREE
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of 18 B 4B AR 36 0 B 2 BN EE 1
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Share Share Capital ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve profits equity
(S i EE BXGE Retid el
uS$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note(i))
(&t (i)
At 1 January 2021 R2021E181H 55 250,406 78,061 95,146 423,668
Profit for the year and total AEERFRZEBEER
comprehensive income - - - 52,242 52,242
Liquidation of a subsidiary —XMEREER - - (7,378) - (7,378)
Dividend declared and paid in =~ EERKRIK(TH EEERE
respect of previous year (Hi5#35(b)(ii)
(note 35(b)(ii) - - - (68,300) (68,300)
At 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 K
1 January 2022 20221518 55 250,406 70,683 79,088 400,232
Profit for the year and total AEERNREEWNEEE
comprehensive income - - - 54,363 54,363
Dividend declared and paidin ~ BERREMHN ELEERE
respect of previous year (Hi5#35(b)(ii))
(note 35(b)(ii)) - - - (36,952) (36,952)
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 55 250,406 70,683 96,499 417,643
Note: /o
(i) Capital reserve represented the difference between investment cost (i) BEAREBEEEIABEAERNE

35. B HEREKRR

and carrying value of certain subsidiaries arising from internal group

reorganization.

2022 FER

p==4
=

THEABREMARREEZH

BERH-

| hE

AR AE

RERERAR
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period
of 0.91 US cents per share
(2021: 0.86 US cents)

FHR0I1ESD

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognized as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

(if) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year
of 0.86 US cents per share
(2021: 1.59 US cent)

FhR0.86E D
(20214 :

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

REEHERIKT B
F—HMBEENRBRE

35. B HERKS @

(b) KRB

() BERTFENEMER
B ARRAAR S

REHRBRICRIRE
(20214 : 0.86E %)

2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
39,029 36,952
39,029 36,952

RRESHREFIROERARER
BRERRITERISER-

(i) BERL—MBEELR
2SR B HEHE R TR AT BOFE (S

1.59% %)

ztﬁj*“-#Hiﬁmﬂilu\
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’o00 USs$’000
FET FET
36,952 68,300
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 35. EX -HERRKRE &)

(continued)
. L
(c) Share capital (c) B&Z
(i) Issued share capital (i) BBITRE
Number of shares Share capital
VR = fi& s
HK$’000
FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 cent  SERMEE0.0181Lz @R
each
Authorized: ERE
At 1 January 2021, R2021FE181H~ 202145
31 December 2021 and 2022 F2022%F12831H 250,000,000,000 25,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHERE:
At 1 January 2021, R2021FE1H1H 202146
31 December 2021 and 2022 20225 12H31H 4,290,824,000 429
Us$°000
FET
Shown in the consolidated financial R4R& BB ERIITA
statements as 55
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ZREERTFE AR R UWEL T R
dividends as declared from time to time and are BRNBE THEERAAT
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the RELEER—ZEMNHNET
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard RE-RARBDNRGEEM
to the Company’s residual assets. SOFEZERHUEERSM
fiL o

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR



236

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l@ﬁ

=R p R e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Reserves

(1)

(i)

(iii)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Other non-distributable reserves

Other non-distributable reserves principally represent
statutory reserves and enterprise work safety funds.
Statutory reserves are required to be appropriated
from profit after income tax of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC, under the relevant laws and
regulations. Allocation to the statutory reserves shall
be approved by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries. The appropriation to statutory reserves
may cease if the balance of the statutory reserves
has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves may be
used to make up losses or for conversion into capital.
The relevant subsidiaries may, upon the approval
by a resolution of shareholders’ general meeting/
board of directors’ meeting, convert their statutory
reserves into capital in proportion to their then existing
shareholdings. However, when converting the statutory
reserves into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of
the registered capital. Enterprise work safety funds are
required to be appropriated from revenue for the year
of the subsidiaries established in the PRC engaged in
power generation according to Cai Zi [2022] No. 136,
Notice on Promulgation of the Administrative Measures
for the Accrual and Use of Expenses for Work Safety
by Enterprises (B4E (2022) 1365% > R ENEE (1%
ZE24EERRNMERSENIA)NBER). The
allocation to enterprise work safety funds ranged from
0.2% to 3% of revenue for the year. The appropriation
of the funds may cease if the balance of the funds has
reached to three times or more of the amount that shall
be accrued in the previous year.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 2(i).

Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in notes 2(w).

Annual Report 2022
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(d)

(4

(M)

(ii)

(iif)

HM RT3k

BEMAa D k@EEEER X
ERERGEZE2EEE R
BAEBEERER  AEHE
BARRPERINHBATZ
BREFBMEBEHEANIRR - DEEE
AEREALEHANBASZ
EEGHE - MEATRHELR
ZIERENBABEMELRZ
50% > B A {2 IE R BA FE s 8 o
EEREER RIERE BRI E
BABEXR -ERNBATIE
REARSE EESLELER
REBERER REERZHA
BEFRELABELIEHES
BRABBX R A ERES
BMABERE MAREHBR 2 HHE
ERABLOREMEARZ25%
RIERFE[2022]1365% » REFLED
B(rEZ2EEERRIM
ERHEEBEREIA)NBEMN X
Z2EEBEAEBNRPEMILRE
ERENHMBADNEARRA
R -DEEZELEZEZEES
HNEENFEFEFRBAN2%E
3% MAMBEARED F—
EERSHREN=FEIMU L
Bl IHRERERE S -

B
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CANEHPTANAAEBER
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, loans from fellow subsidiaries
and bank borrowings, as disclosed in notes 25, 30 and 31,
respectively, net of pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company, comprising issued
capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
from time to time. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, the issue of new
shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

35. B HERKS @

(e)

36.

BEFXEE

FEEBBEAREANEBERAE
THEBRBEANBRARAERNNNE
RN B E Y R KEE KRR R
BRAEC-NEEEE  ZEENEBER
BEAR A o

AEBNEAEBHER (BFE2 R
MizE25~30K&S1IEENENRRME A
BRIE EAFEERRERE -KERH
A BATINERUKLIRTEE Nk
BEFIRTESR GHEBTER R
RIBEEEY UKRKAE R ERE
L (BEEETRA Rt afl K
H A4 E) A% o

FEEEREARBINEREE R
LM —En EEEERESMAE
URhEHESHHEHNER REEEE
WEZ AERRBBRYRKRE %17
MR BOMEBZRBERREEHS
BB FHHERERGHE-

HHEERBEEREMIAN

QREE

FEERBEXEHZBREAREE RBESH
KREWERE G-
FEEMRMARNZERRRAEBERBUEEZ

FRBEHNHMHRBREEBRREF LN T -

(a)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has been largely dependent on a small number of
customers which are state-owned enterprises for a substantial
portion of its business. Most of the power plants of the Group
sell the electricity generated to their respective customers
who are the principal grid companies where the power plant
is located. The failure of these customers to make required
payments could have a substantial negative impact on the
Group’s profits. The Group has concentration of credit risk as
94% (2021: 93%) of the total trade receivables was due from
25 (2021: 26) state-owned enterprises as at 31 December
2022. In order to minimize credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

receivables.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix based on the historical
settlement records, latest aging profile of those receivables
and forward looking information that is available without
undue cost and effort. As a result, during the year ended 31
December 2022, expected credit losses of US$3,182,000 in
respect of trade receivables were reversed (2021:
of expected credit losses of US$15,663,000) and expected
credit losses of US$5,973,000 in respect of contract assets

were recognized (2021: US$4,666,000).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2021 72021FE181H

Impairment losses recognized ERARERIE

Impairment losses reversed BE# LR ESE

Exchange difference ERER

At 31 December 2021 and MR2021E12831H K
1 January 2022 2022F181H

Impairment losses recognized BRI ERE

Impairment losses reversed BEERERR

Exchange difference ERER

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12831H

The following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

At 31 December 2022 220225128 31H
Trade receivables B 5 BUERR
Contract assets EREE

At 31 December 2021 R20215F12831H
Trade receivables B 5 BUERR
Contract assets EREE

36. BIEEMEEEESHTAN
NREE #B)

(a) ;j‘%ﬂlzﬁh Cﬂﬁ

EZRBRRREREE (&)
BERBERARGREENGEER

BRI FERNEFHUNT :
Trade Contract

receivables assets Total
B 5 BUAR™T aEEE #a st
US$’000 Us$’000 us$’000
FET FETT FET
703 - 703
15,663 4,666 20,329
(37) - (37)
192 52 244
16,521 4,718 21,239
- 5,979 5,979
(3,182) (8) (3,188)
(1,301) (577) (1,878)
12,038 10,114 22,152

TRIEME T ARR20228F K%20214512
AS1HNEZRKREARERAEEZ
EERBKTEHEEBEZER -

Weighted- Gross Impairment
average carrying loss
loss rate amount allowance
IEFEEEER FREAEE BEBERE
USs$’000 us$’000

FET FET

1.6% 751,352 (12,038)

2.8% 364,333 (10,114)
1,115,685 (22,152)

2.2% 760,992 (16,521)

2.5% 191,453 (4,718)
952,445 (21,239)

2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables and amounts due from fellow

subsidiaries

For other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
a 12-month ECL unless credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The credit risk on other receivables is limited
as other receivables are mainly value-added tax receivables,
prepayments and deposits, which are expected to be deducted
from value-added tax payables or recognized as expenses
in the future. The credit risk on amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries is limited as the counterparties are operating

smoothly and with sound collection history.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and

and pledged bank deposits

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with sound credit ratings, for which the

Group considers to have low credit risk.

(b) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents as well
as undrawn banking facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilization of bank borrowings, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders and loans from the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

The Group finances its operations by short-term and long-
term bank and other borrowings and shareholders’ equity.
The Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by

US$574,539,000 as at 31 December 2022.
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A £ =
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MEAREEREMTAN
— =3
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL REE #E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBEERE B
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that CGN ARNBEBRE ARTRRKEBA
Finance and CGN Wind Energy, the fellow subsidiaries AHEZMERTEZEEEE@
of the Company, have confirmed in writing that despite BR EBEXEBPERV BRI E
the loans from CGN Finance of RMB700,000,000 ZEENERARK700,000,0007T
(equivalent to US$100,508,000), and CGN Wind Energy of (#E#7 100,508,000 7T) R AR
RMB3,800,000,000 (equivalent to US$545,617,000) are due 3,800,000,0005T (8% 545,617,000
for repayment within twelve months from 31 December 2022, E7t) AR2022812831HEsH+ 1@
they will not cancel the existing loan facilities within twelve BA é?ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁé}TQQZOQEQH
months from 31 December 2022 and that the loans will be S1HES+ @A NFIHIEE &M
extended upon expiry. Furthermore, taking into account the & AERERAPRIEE o 1o &
financial resources of the Group, the Group has unutilized St RAEBNMEEIR 1R20228F128
general facilities of US$1,398,666,000 as at 31 December 318 & E51,398,666,000F LYK
2022 for over the next twelve months from the end of the EH— Hyﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁjﬁAﬁﬁiﬁﬂ$1§+_
reporting period. In addition, the directors of the Company BANRR N RABTEEEER
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared AEBEEEMGENEAEERBRSR
by the management of the Group. The cash flow projections =TEA fﬁﬁ}ﬁii‘ﬁ}ﬁﬁuﬁgﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ;ﬁ
cover a period not less than twelve months from the end of the AR+ @B BHAR -
reporting period.
Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, Motk FilE 8% KRB EERS
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that, the KEBRKRE+ZE HQ}E?EE | 98
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its cashflow ExmEHERE /IL%EE‘ZKO
requirements in the next twelve months.
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRIINAEBIETESHRE BN R
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non- SRR TAREAR  HEaE AR
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual RRENE (BEERSRMNEXY WBZF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments FAE) RREFARERFNAXFED
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FEMAR) MAEBEEASZTHRESR
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date HEAEH&E -
the Group can be required to pay:
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1 year or but less than but less than  More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—-ERE —EME  WENL 1128318
HER BFEBmME EFBBRE REME fam IREE
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2022 12022128310
Bank borrowings RITEE 991,425 421937 1,497,810 2,075,623 4,986,795 4,364,480
Lease liabilities HE&E 6,130 5,334 9,389 31,454 52,307 37,242
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERARMBARNER 677,498 275,903 504,801 133,617 1,591,819 1,528,543
Amounts due to non-controlling N2 E TN
shareholders 899 - - 2,154 3,053 2,053
Trade payables B RMRA 223,028 - - - 223,028 223,028
Other payables and accruals Hif A TIERE B 483,707 287 861 4,332 489,187 486,829
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEftEZ M BABZE 110,743 - - - 110,743 110,743
2,493,430 703,461 2,012,861 2,247,180 7,456,932 6,752,918
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

% ¥ 2% Bt 5

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

#2021%12831H
BIEE

HEEE
RERZHBARNER
FEf IR R RN

BRRARM
HitENRERESER
ENEZNBARNE

Annual Report 2022

fogaray =
36. IFRMBEEREMT AN
)\ =
ARMENE ()
(b) REBEEREE B
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1yearor butlessthan  but less than More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—ERE —ENE WEMN £ 128318
BER BFREEmE BFBRLE EENE gk REE
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
792,610 423,118 1,365,699 2,299,716 4,881,143 4,245,891
10,790 2,893 4,341 24,170 42,194 35,547
1,206,437 16,838 865,834 97,004 2,186,113 2,019,288
2,153 - - 1,183 3,336 3,336
129,505 - - - 129,505 129,505
614,895 314 942 5,050 621,201 618,416
108,806 - - - 108,806 108,806
2,865,196 443,163 2,236,816 2,427,123 7,972,298 7,160,789




36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interest rate risk

m7.|_

ERAEEE e

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F12831HIEFE

(c)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate risk profile as monitored

by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk profile

The following table, as reported to the management of
the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

Fixed-rate borrowings:
Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings
Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Variable-rate borrowings:

Bank borrowings
Loans from follow subsidiaries

Net exposure

MBEREEREMI AR
RoEE (B

2R [ b

MERBRART SN XS ERNS R
Iﬁ%“ﬁﬁ@i%%ﬁ%w%%f
BN B o A B RYA K E R = B 2k
BREEE - LUF B R R EEF &
ENEEEAEEDIARETRE
FXEBRAABERNEXERR EEE
PREsHE R A & B A R B iR S it R
MNE ()R

()  FIREEER

TR (EnNFEREEERS)
HMRANREHRAERME

BERA E R R
Notional amount
LELHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FETT
EEMEE:
HEaE 37,242 35,547
RITEE 1,169,986 820,021
RKERRMBATNER 1,105,862 1,620,319
2,313,090 2,475,887
EEMEE:
IRITEE 3,194,494 3,425,870
KERRKBEBADNER 422,681 398,969
R B 1 75 RE 3,617,175 3,824,839
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately US$13,582,000
(2021:US$12,847,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualized impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2021.

Annual Report 2022

36.

MBEREEREMI AR
RREE (@)

(c)

FIZER (@)

(i)

BRE D

R2022F12831H » B&KFT
EEWJ“‘EFHTTE > {dy 51
g LA THE50EE R
%E&K%E@ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁéﬂ&
REBHEMNDBRD IEIA
13,582,000 75 (20214 ©
12,847,000 7T) ©

LSRR E D A B R R R
REBEHRFLELE  BNK
SHREAZEHNENE
FEEMBAERSEREER
ABEEMNXRBRNESRIA
Zk%@ﬂ’]l‘%ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬂ (KR &
fmﬂ) R fm & HE 2 B9 H A 4B B
DR EERRIREE - FA
%%ﬁﬂ’\]iﬁéﬂﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁzl
BsIRMBEREFN XA R
= HAERRREERN (K
REBIEM) KR & By E th Al
BRER D B R B TH {F 7 R IR F R
BLENEECH BRI KT
FEMMGs -ZDMHNEER
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. HERASEELRERTAEN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NREE )

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (d) EkEDpE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily US$, CAD, RMB and HK$. The Group
manages this risk as follows:

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to
manage its currency risk until the settlement date
of foreign currency receivables or payables. The
Group designates those forward exchange contracts
as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges and
does not separate the forward and spot element of a
forward exchange contract but instead designates the
forward exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item is
measured based on the forward exchange rate.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines
the existence of an economic relationship between the
forward exchange contracts and the highly probable
forecast transactions based on their currency amounts
and the timing of their respective cash flows. The
main sources of ineffectiveness in these hedging
relationships are:

(i) the effect of the counterparty’s and the Group’s
own credit risk on the fair value of the forward
exchange contracts which is not reflected in
the change in the value of the hedged cash
flows attributable to the forward rate; and

(ii) changes in the timing of the hedged
transactions.

$%@IKIM%M(W§%H%¥%

THEEE KLU E ) StENHEEKE
H(EHEREURE BOREBERRS
fEER) AR EWEAR - SINZARNE
BEERHEZT M  ARBRBT-
FEEZUTHAEBEZEAR

(i) %Fﬁ&‘%¢%%%@

M

FERFRAERIESREE
HE W REREEE SRR R
ENMNEE RN cE/R
ZEEHIECREEARE
MEFRNHE T TARITESR
DERANECENERRESR
o RMPEHHREERERE
EEEBAINESR o FIL > B
REREBEEMINEERTE -

NEBBER1ANE R TR
EINERBERRRAENTE
HARZzEEERERE
URENEREBEREERS
MBS - ZFHHRAEDRH
EUHE B EERRS

() REHFHRFERE
SEERRYERINE
BRAREBENTE
A 458 2 R 7 B R I = A
EENEHHRERE
EZFHH; &

(i) H M 3T 5 B B ) 25 A
) o

| HEEENERERERAE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B R
/-\ﬁE{E Cl'ﬁ)

SEERERTAEN

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EERE 7
(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in (i) EHHPERRZZPRIIMNER
forecast transactions (continued) b (4B)
The following table details the forward exchange TREINRESPRIEEAK
contracts that have been designated as cash flow EEIBAE T ENTERR %E’Jfﬁ
hedges of the Group’s highly probable forecast EMEHPNRIAINES
transactions at the end of the reporting period:
2022 2021
20225 20214
Foreign Local Foreign Local
currency currency currency currency
shig Py HhitE PN
CAD’000 KRW’000 CAD’000 KRW’000
Fiz Fé#ET FiT FéET
Notional amount LEEE
- Buy CAD (sell KRW) —BEAmMzT (HEET) 96,109 78,749,517 190,895 156,984,146
2022 2021
20225 20214
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount (note) IRTEE (47:E)
- Asset —BE 8,300 17,099
Note: et -

The forward exchange contracts have a maturity of within one year
from the reporting date and have an average exchange rate of
819.24 between CAD and KRW (2021: 825.29).

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. BIEEMEEEESHTAN

nEE @

S EE (B

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(d)

(ii) Recognized assets and liabilities iy EHEIREEKRERE
The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used R2022&E12831H» &x&E
by the Group as hedging instruments denominated BEHAPTAUINEFED
in foreign currencies at 31 December 2022 was EZEHIESRNEFRAALAEE
US$8,300,000 (2021: US$17,099,000), recognized as #38,300,0003 75 (20214 :
derivative financial instruments. 17,099,000k 7t) ° JHFER AT
EERTE
In respect of other trade receivables and payables IS ENEME S E W
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures RRREMERMS  AEER
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by ARBE B L B R LB A E X
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where B A& NE DU R G RR
necessary to address short-term imbalances. 18115 5 > T A% R B i O R
R A BT KF -
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (i) FREEREYE MRS
The following table details the Group’s exposure at TRFEFNAEBRRE AR

the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in United States
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date.

T B LA A8 B8 2 BS Th AE & 1 LU Ah
EEENERIABEENERE
MEENEEREK L2®E
TS > P A M@ R E R 09 & 28
Lz EE AR HERBEN
ETHRe

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in United States dollars)

FAEERR AR AR (UETFIT)

2022

2021

20226 2021%F

us$ RMB HK$ EUR CAD RMB HK$ JPY EUR CAD

7T PN B B mx ARH# BT HE B mx

Uss’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$000 Us$000 US$000

FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

Assets BE - 16,582 m 13 3,113 32,919 861 - 612 12,956

Liabilities B (29,120) - - - - - - (7,293) (572) (2,774)
Gross exposure arising from ERIEERARR

recognized assets and liabilities £ f4 @ REHO (29,120) 16,582 77 13 3,113 32,919 861 (7,293) 40 10,182

2022 FERE | PEERNERZERERARE
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MBEREEREMI AR
RoEE (B

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.
2022
20224
Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

in foreign
exchange rates

i

uss EiT

RMB AR

CAD mrc

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into United State dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2021.

Annual Report 2022

(FH)

10%
10%

10%
(10%)

10%
(10%)

after tax and
retained profits
bty y-p il
iof%

Us$’000

FET

(2,207)
2,207

1,385
(1,385)

236
(236)

S EE (B

BRE D

TRETKEERRERET (K
REBIEH) MUK AR & R B ELA
%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’&zli%lﬁf HEHR

REARBENEXNZAE
élzﬁéﬂ (RERFTA H M m] & & i
HREFAE) BBER TR
BRI Ry A & o

2021
20214

Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign after tax and
exchange rates retained profits
HirRE
EBxtr,/ HAKRE }ﬁTﬁ‘J
(FF%) i0j-2-
Us$°000
FET
10% 2,749
(10%) (2,749)
10% 772
(10%) (772)

EREBINZDMERAREE
EERERRZEUEERAE
BOBR A R et M) e R i B9 & 5T RD
R g In25 BHMmRR
SHRNERMERET-

BREDMBERESHARE
HEILSERESSHEHMAEA
EEMFAERAEETH I
BEREBENESRTE SEER
RAB UL IEE S X E S
EEMTENEARIBEREK
Mo Z DML 2021 EHFE
AT o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

36. BIEEMEEEESHTAN
NREE #B)

(e)

2022 EERE

RREEFE

0]

BRARBESENEHME
EXRERE

AREERER

TREINAEBNREAREK
REMEEESENESRITAN
ARBE THDESBERYE
BRERERFIBRAREEE
PIAEN=MARBEERERK
AnEEFEZINERDZ
ZEERMAER B ABERN
ABERMREZEEENT

. F—MREE  AREE
EERE—REAK
BoRMEREERER
REtBRBEERETS
IR THERE

. FMREE AREE
FRE ZREABES
B AR EE BN
AEHERAREEL &
ERAERTAHEHA
BB - FTIBERBAK
BRARTHEEERAA
BB A B ©

. FoMMEE: EBEX

R REARETE
NRREE

HE EZAERIERARAE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

36.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognize transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Recurring fair value
measurements

Assets

Financial assets designated
at FVOCI

Derivative financial
instruments

- Forward exchange
contracts

EENAAEBENGE

HE

BEERUARBETE
BEFH AHMEE
WaNEHEE

TEEMIA

—BHSNESR

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

Fair value at
31 December

2022
20225
12A31HK
AREE
US8°000
FET

3,411

8,300

MBEREEREMI AR
RREE (@)

(e) AREEEE (B

0]

BRARBESENEHME
ER&E @

AREEER &)

HE2022F K2021FE12H31H
FEBE F—MREFHZHE
R REEAREEE
=R AEENBEBE AR
BEERZENEBRRAESE
HARI V3R 5 HASR T AR ©

Fair Value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into

K2022F 12831 BN AR EBEFEDES

Level 1

1
Us$'000
TET

Level 2 Level 3
B B8
US$'000 US$'000
FET FET
- 3,411

8,300 -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MHEAGEEREMIAN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL REE #E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AREE:=E #E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities () BARBEFENEHME
measured at fair value (continued) ERG&E #)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RREERBR @)
Fair value at Fair Value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2021 categorised into
2021 R20215F12B31BM AR BEAEDES
K2021% Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
1283181
AREE F—8 -t E ek
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REUANBEESE
measurements
Assets BE
Financial assets designated 1EEANAABEE
at FVOCI BEEHFAHMERA
BENEMEE 5,238 - - 5,238
Derivative financial TEERIA
instruments
- Forward exchange —iZHSNESR
contracts 17,099 - 17,099 -
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 BRMBE=—RARBE=Z
and Level 3 fair value measurements {85 PR RO e (B 1 1 e i A R
The fair value of forward exchange contracts in Level REZHRPZEIINESRHN R
2 is determined by discounting the difference between AEENEATESRZHE
the contractual forward price and the current forward MEHARAEKRZBNELE
price. The discount rate used is derived from the EE-FMERENITRENDRE
relevant government yield curve as at the end of the ¥R & B >R B9 A8 B8 BT UK R 2R Eh
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit BEMTEERBENEHEES
spread. He
The fair value of financial assets designated at FVOCI RE=ZRPIEEAUAALBE
in Level 3 is determined by using the adjusted net stERBEHEFH T AEMEEK
assets method of the financial assets. THEREEZ AAEBELE
AERMEENKCRAEZRIEEL
BE-
(if) Fair value of financial assets and (i) WIEARBETIEREMNSE
liabilities carried at other than fair value BEENREENAREE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2022.

2022 EERE

7 55 [ 12 4 B AR AS 5T 2 19 < R
TENRBEEAER2021F K
2022F12H31HN A RBEL
BEARERO

HE EZAERIERARAE
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37.

38.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

2022

In June 2022, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in CGN
(Hubei) Integrated Energy Services Company Limited (&% Gi#iE)
T ERERIRFFAR/AE) to CGN Wind Energy, a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, at a consideration of RMB200,513,000 (equivalent to
US$29,898,000). Loss on disposal of US$67,000 was recognized

37. HE—XWBLE

20225

Re022F6 B  AEMHEHERPEZ (4
i) R EERREERADZEEEZTAA
BRZNBARATEZRAE  REAARK
200,513,0007¢ (18 E#229,898,000% 7T) ° 24
REMWE R EIRIE FTHRBHEEE67,0003%

under Other gains and losses during the year. parks
The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: REERHNFEEENT !
Non-current assets FEREBEE

Current assets MENE E

Current liabilities MENE (A

Non-current liabilities FERBAEME

Net assets disposed of BHEREE

Cash consideration RERE

Net assets disposed of BLEFEE

Loss on disposal HEBE

Net cash inflow from the disposal: KELENRERAZE !
Cash consideration received EERERE

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHERESRRESEEY

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for in
the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for [EHES
Authorized but not contracted for EREERTN

Annual Report 2022
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Us$000
T=E7T

1,686
43,252
(14,973)

29,965

29,898
(29,965)

(67)

29,898
(15,558)

14,340

BT
P12A31HEAREM BB IBBHENE A K
EUWT -
2022 2021
20224 20214
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
252,256 420,833
- 2,086
252,256 422919
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. ERAERS
TRANSACTIONS
The Company is ultimately controlled by CGN, which is a state-owned KABREBEPEZIZES > MAEZEFEE
enterprise under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC. BlrEEEE s @A
Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in the %ﬁé,ﬂﬂ‘“#/ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁ%zﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ EERFFIE I
consolidated statement of financial position and other details disclosed RigEMBHRENAEMTOWEZEMFS
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group also o REBRERIFAERBB AT IUTEARAR
entered into the following significant transactions with related parties R

during the year:

Name of related company Notes  Nature of transactions 2022 2021
AL NS R Y Wzt RBMEE 20224 20214
Us$°000 USs$'000
FET FET
CGN Energy International i Management service income 753 1,405
B A% AE R B FR BERBUIA
Management service expense 45 -
BERBZH
CGN Finance i Interest expense 6,158 6,445
REZ S FESZH
Interest income 2,743 2,225
B A
CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd. i Management service income 3,004 3,154
(“CGN Energy”) and its subsidiaries
REZERBEEAREEAA EERFBWA
(THREIZAETR)) R EWEBAF
CGNPC Huasheng i Interest income 51 47
REZER B A
Interest expense 7,932 3,715
HEZH
Huamei Holding Company Limited i Management service income 6,556 7,269
(“Huamei Holding”) and its subsidiaries
Huamei Holding Company Limited BIERF WA
(THuamei Holding J) K EiEAF]
China Clean Energy i Interest expense 20,531 20,531
FREDE 2R AEIR HEZH
CGN Wind Energy i Management service income 14,304 21,948
REZRE BERBUIA
Management service expense 9,660 3,963
BERBZH
Interest expense 27,287 11,817
HMEZH
CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. i Management service income 3,443 8,231
REZAXGERZERLQE BERBUIA
Management service expense 973 4,493
BERBZH
CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology i Management service expense 3,564 7,699
Co., Limited
R (b5 #ARR B ARAT EERBEZ
Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd. i Management service expense 562 927
HETEZANSEERAD EERBEZ
China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd i Construction expense 69,458 585,266
FEZIRARAR BERAR
CGN ifi Technical service income 42 41
R EZ 29l AR S U A
Interest expense - 11,988
MEZH
Hubei Xisaishan v Management service income 51 76
HMIEAEELL EERBEBA
Hubei Huadian v Management service income 56 329
MIEES EERBEBA

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(i) CGN Energy International is the immediate holding company of the Company.

(i) CGN Finance, CGN Energy and its subsidiaries, CGNPC Huasheng, Huamei
Holding and its subsidiaries, China Clean Energy, CGN Wind Energy, CGN
Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd., CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology
Co., Limited, Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd. and China Nuclear Power
Engineering Co., Ltd are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

(iii) CGN is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

(iv) Hubei Xisaishan and Hubei Huadian are associates of the Group.

The Group has entered into various transactions including deposits
placements, borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks and financial institutions which are the PRC government-
related entities in its ordinary course of business. A majority of the
cash and cash equivalents and 85.2% (2021: 82.2%) of borrowings
of the Group are with the PRC government-related entities as at 31
December 2022.

Also, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government-related
entities include sales of electricity to local power bureau and a state-
owned entity. About 36% (2021: 44%) of its sales of electricity and
capacity charges are to the other PRC government-related entities for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries and the payments of their emoluments were borne by
CGN and its subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other key management during the
year were as follows:

Short-term benefits F2HATR A
Post-employment benefits BER R @A

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by
having regard to the performance of individuals and the Group and
market trends.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

39. EAERS (&)

(M PEZERERATATDNEBERAR

(ii) FEZMB PEZERKENBAT H
Fﬁ%%@ Huameu Holding K E i & A &) ~

BE R ~ RS % BB R P B 1% A B AE B
‘Eﬁfﬁﬁﬁ’&j FERZ (JER) MERMNEAR

AT -HBEPEZEADEBERAT RHE
VIFEﬁE A A EATERMBAT

(iii) REZARNABNREERAF

(iv) MIEAEURALEERSEENBHER
o

AEBEREAEEEBRETEBPEAKFE
HAERZETROTEREMEBIIIZERS
BEER BEREM—RIBTRE - H2022
F12A3MH  ZEBZABNRERBEEE
Y F285.2% (2021 : 82.2%) fE B D B E RN HE
B ErmE s

B AEBRPEEMBGTERER XS
BREEAMEEREREE L EHEET N P
HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE > 4936% (2021 :
44%) 2 BAHERBEETL M H thoh B BT A8
RAEREAER -

REE2022F %2021F12831ALEEEST

EETRERPERZ HHMARETEZR
H A B A o

FEEE A S

FREEREMETEEEAENFMINNT :
2022 2021
20224 20214
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
1,484 1,180
102 85
1,586 1,265

EFRTETHAENFHND2EB/AKREE
EXRRUKRTHEBERE -
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THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASEEMNMEIR IR

FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investments in subsidiaries (Note (a))

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Loan from a subsidiary

Lease liabilities — due within one year

NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Bank borrowings — due after one year
Lease liabilities — due after one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FERBEE
ENN NS
ERREE

KB ABNKRE (#fat(a))

MEBEE

23

HA W R IE R TR RIE
AN PN E/SE!
RERBEEFEY

ik =R

HAFE R &St & A
FEAS R 5 B /B8 A B "R IE
FEAT IS B8 A BRI

REH B ABRER

HESE-K—

FAEH

wE (AR EERE

HWEERRBDAR

FREBEMR

REBRMERBBE™R

WETEE-—1K—
HESE-K—

FEE
MR
R

#HE

R

FREIHA
FEIH

2022 2021

20224 20214

Notes Us$’000 USs$’000
Viok=3 FET FET
138 174

2,258 3,381

1,252,738 1,186,987

1,255,134 1,190,542

350 472

3,455 4,310

36,756 40,702

40,561 45,484

6,425 6,380

5,737 4,265

10,489 21,768

53,126 =

1,133 3,381

76,910 35,794

(36,349) 9,690

1,218,785 1,200,232

700,000 700,000

100,000 100,000

1,142 =

801,142 800,000

417,643 400,232

55 55

417,588 400,177

35(a) 417,643 400,232
2022 FEHRE | HEEZMERERERAR

255



256

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR A RS ER R M 5E

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 128310 IEEE

40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#2)
Notes: HiaE
a. Investments in subsidiaries a. RHBABTMNKRE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Details of the Company’s principal operating subsidiaries at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and
i ion/ i fully paid-up
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital
I/ #MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE LAk RERR 2MEE/ BHTRBZRE
Indirect
[k
Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya The PRC 15 September 1999 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB48,000,000 and paid-up
Company Limited* joint venture capital of RMB48,000,000
ERRIXEERAT HE 1999598158 PHAERELE  ARH48,000,000EREAR
B 148,000,000 4 BB A&
Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya The PRC 15 September 1999 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB72,000,000 and paid-up
Hydropower Company Limited* joint venture capital of RMB14,400,000
BRRIZEKEERAR P 1999F9A15H PHAERELE  ARM72000,000ERERR
AR %14,400,000 T B2 R A
Guangxi Rongyuan The PRC 4 January 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB38,000,000 and paid-up
Hydropower Company Limited* enterprise with capital of RMB38,000,000
limited liability
ERRAKEERAT e 201151548 SEREN AE#38,000,0007cat B AR
BRERLE AR 138,000,000 BB A&
Haian Meiya Cogeneration. Co., Lid* The PRC 20 December 2002 Foreign investment Registered capital of US$11,920,000 and paic-up
enterprise with capital of US$11,920,000
limited liability
BRETARARAH P 2002128208 SBERERN 11,920,000% Lt R E AR 11,920,000% 78
BREALE HrRRE
Mianyang Sanjiang Meiya The PRC 25 QOctober 2002 Sino-foreign Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid-up
Hydropower Company Limited* cooperative joint capital of RMB100,000,000
venture
BRIIZSAEERAT e 2002510B258  PHAEAERE  ARHI00000000mERERR
AE 100000000741 2R A
CGN Daesan Power Co., Ltd. Korea 8 April 2009 Joint stock company  Registered capital of KRW3,430,000,000 and
paid-up capital of KRW3,430,000,000
CGN Daesan Power Co., Lid. &E 200954588 RAERAE 3,430,000,0008 L EEAEAR
3,430,000,0008 L8 B B A
CGN Yulchon Generation Co., Ltd. Korea 28 July 2009 Joint stock company  Registered capital of KRW18,044,400,000 and
paid-up capital of KRW18,044,400,000
CGN Yulchon Generation Co., Ltd. #E 2009%7A 288 RHBRAR 180444000008 LA E AR
18,044,400,0002 A 2B A
Nantong Meiya Co-generation Co,, Ltd* The PRC 13 March 1997 Foreign investment Registered capital of US$16,800,000 and paid-up
enterprise with capital of US$16,800,000
limited liability
AEXTARARAR P 199738138 SEREN 16,800,000% 7Tt fAE A2 16,800,000% 7T
BREALE HRRE

| Annual Report 2022

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
FEAMFRERE
2022 2021
20225 20215
55% 55%
80% 80%
100% 100%
100% 100%
75% 75%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

AABBENMEBR TR

HE2022F K2021FE12831H  &A
BANEBEERBATFBUNT !

Principal activity

TERE

Investment in dam and other
associated faciliies

RERKBRIAMRE

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

TERMEESD

Generation and supply of steam,
electricity and other related
products

LERHEZS -BAR
HhEBER

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERHERSD

Generation and supply of
electricity from an oifired
combined cycle power plant

B AREERLER
HEEN

Generation and supply of
electricity from a gas-fired
combined cycle power plant

RRRBABREREER
#ESH

Generation and supply of
electricity and steam and other
related products

LERHERNESR
HhEBER
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#2)

Notes: (continued) Ktz (4&)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATANKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activity
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFEERE TEER
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Nanyang General Light Electric Co., Ltd. The PRC 1 January 1997 Sino-foreign Registered capital of RMBA476,667,000 and paid-up 59.5% 59.5%  Generation and supply of
cooperative joint capital of RMB476,667,000 electricity and other related
venture services
BREXENERAF HE 199741818 THEERELE  ARB476667000EMERK EEREEENR
AR 8476667000 R R A At ARRS
Wuhan Han-Neng Power The PRC 11 October 1995 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB291,260,000 and paid-up 52.6% 56.8%  Generation and supply of
Development Co,, Ltd. joint venture capital of RMB245,769,572 electricity
HEZEENERARAR PE 1995F108118  MIAEAERE  ARM%291260000EMELR LERMERN
B 245,769 5727 8 R A
CGN New Energy (Dezhou) Co., Ltd* The PRC 29 December 2014 Foreign investment Registered capital of US$200,308,891 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of US$200,308,891 electricity
limited liability
REGAER (BN ERAR P 014F128208  SEREN 200,308,891 £t R EAR LERMERN
BERERLE 200,308,891 X THERAE
CGN (Zhejiang Xiangshan) The PRC 11 July 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB134,610,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Wind Power Co., Ltd* enterprise with capital RMB134,610,000 electricity
limited liability
TER (DISW BNEBERAT  FE 2011£78118 SEREN AEH1346100007 2 REAR TERMERSD
ARAfLE ARH1346100007c8 R R A
CGN (Zhejiang Ninghai) The PRC 19 December 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB79,600,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Wind Power Co., Ltd.* enterprise with capital RMB79,600,000 electricity
limited liability
RER (HIEE) BNEEERAF HE 2013E128198  SMEREN AE¥#79,600,0007c E AR LERHERSN
BEREALE AE 79,600,000 8 B R A&
Angiu Taipingshan Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 10 December 2008 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB187,889,991 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB187,889,991 electricity
limited liability
ZEATURRARAR PE 20085126108 SAEREN AEH187880.991 TR MERR LERMERN
ARAfLE AE187889991 T BB A
Yishui Tangwangshan Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 23 November 2009 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB71,375,034 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB71,375,034 electricity
limited liability
KEIURNEBERAR P 2009F118238  SERERN ARH71375 034 REAR LERMERN
BEREALE NEH71,375,034 8 E R A
CGN Lingu Wind Power The PRC 29 December 2009 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB75,040,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Company Limited Co., Ltd* enterprise with capital RMB75,040,000 electricity
limited liability
hER (BH) RNEEERAR e 2009128298  SBEREN ARM75,040,000EBEER LERMERD
ARAfLE AR75,040,00074 BB A&
CGN Lingu Longgang Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 28 June 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB77,074,180 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB77,074,180 electricity
limited liability
TERERREENEEERAT HE 2013F6528H SEREN AEHB77,074,180n it RE XK LERHEESN
BEREALE AEB77,074,180 BB A
CGN Yishui Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 2 April 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB91,125,100 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB91,125,100 electricity
limited liability
PEETKENERRRAT PE 2011E4H28 SEREN AR 91,125 1007 BEXR LERMERN

BREfELE AE91,125,1007 8 R R A

2022 FER

of

| HEEENERERERAE
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WEAR AR

Yishui Longshan Wind Power Co., Ltd*

MKEUBNEBERAR

CGN Gansu Mingin Wind Power Co., Ltd*

TREERROANEEERAR

CGN Gansu Mingin (II) Wind Power Co., Ltd*

TERHERDE_ANEBERAT

CGN Gansu Guazhou Wind Power Co,, Ltd*

RREERINENEEERAR

CGN Gansu Guazhou (1) Wind Power Co., Ltd*

TEEHEMNE_ANREERAT

Guazhou Tianrun Wind Power Co., Lid*

ANXBREERAT

CGN Solar Dunhuang Co., Ltd*

FEEABENIEERAR

CGN Solar Jinta Co., Lid*

PEEABEEEARAR

CGN Solar (Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd*

REEARE (KRE) BEERAR

CGN Solar Wulan Co,, Ltd*

PEEABESHARAR

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Place of

.establishm.enl’/ Dateo.f
operation incorporation
HI/#MET/ I/
EEBE XAk
The PRC 13 August 2013
hE 201385136
The PRC 4 March 2011
HE 20113548
The PRC 24 October 2013
hE 2013%10524H
The PRC 18 November 2011
HE 20115115188
The PRC 15 November 2013
hE 2013%115815H
The PRC 6 March 2009
PE 20093468
The PRC 8 September 2011
P 2011F9A8H
The PRC 6 December 2011
PE 2011412868
The PRC 15 January 2010
P 201018158
The PRC 29 August 2012
PE 201285298

Annual Report 2022

Legal form

ik

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ARERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ARERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PheEAERS

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

(%)

Hiat : (&)

a. RIBABDNRE (&)
Registered capital/
issued and Attributable
fully paid-up equity interest
share capital held by the Group
HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Registered capital of RMB88,545,800 and paid-up 100% 100%

capital RMB88,545,800

AR 88,545 800 MEER
AR188,545, 800 T A REX

Registered capital of RMB162,200,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB162,200,000

AR 1622000007 MEER
ARH162,2000007 8 RRA

Registered capital of RMB549,760,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB549,760,000

AR 5497600007 RE LK
AR 154976000078 2 RA

Registered capital of RMB191,750,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB191,750,000

ARE191,750000 - HE SR
AE191,7500007cH R R A

Registered capital of RMB627,190,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB556,500,000

AR 627190000 ME AR
R 556,500,000 B 2R A

Registered capital of RMB98,100,000 and paid-up 60%
capital RMB98,100,000

ARE98,100,000MERR
AR 98,100,000 4 B A&

Registered capital of RMB97,970,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB97,970,000

AE#97,070,000 E RE AR
AR 97,970,0007c i B B A

Registered capital of RMB36,360,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB36,360,000

AR #36,360,0007 B EAR
AE 136,360,000 4 2R A

Registered capital of RMB492,931,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB492,931,000

AR #492,931,000T 2 ALK
AR 4929310007 R B A

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB100,000,000

ARE100,0000007EMELR
AR100,0000007c4 Rk A

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

TERH

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

TERMERSD
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERHEESN
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERMERD
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERHEESN
Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#2)

Notes: (continued) Ktz (4&)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATANKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activity
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFEERE TEER
2022 2021
2022% 20215
CGN Solar (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 9 July 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB66,000,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB62,500,000 electricity
limited liability
TEEARE (B8 BRAT HE 2013%7H9H SMEREN NE 66,000,000 & & R EERHEESN
BRERLE AR 62,500,000 R B4
CGN Solar (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* The PRC 17 August 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB43,400,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB43,400,000 electricity
limited liability
RERARE (R BRAR HE 2011%E8A178 SEREN AE¥43,400,0007c 2 B E AR LERHERSD
BREfRLE AR #43,400,0007c 61 R B A
Weifang CGN Energy Co. Ltd.* The PRC 26 August 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB153,760,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB153,760,000 electricity
limited liabilities
BHERERERERAT HE 2016%8A 268 SMEREN NE#153,760,000tE MERK EERHEESN
BRERLE AR153,760,0007 4 2R A
Dezhou Anwu Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 15 November 2016 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB113,530,000 and paid-up 87% 87%  Generation and supply of
joint venture capital RMB113,530,000 electricity
BNEBERERAR PE 2016E118158  PHAELERE  ARK113530000mEMELR LERMERN
ARHE135300007c 8RR A
Jiyuan CGN New Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 21 December 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB10,830,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB10,830,000 electricity
limited liability
ERREEMERERAR P 165128218 SBREN AR10,830,0002 HERR LERMERN
BEREALE AE10830,000 TR E A&
CGN New Energy (Ledu) Co., Ltd* The PRC 15 December 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB45,000,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB45,000,000 electricity
limited liability
RERHNER (5) BRAT e 2016E128158  SBEREN AR™%45,0000007 £ BEER TERMERSD
BREELE AR 4500000078 2EA
CGN Wuhai New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 23 February 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB109,860,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB109,860,000 electricity
limited liability
HERSENERERAR HE 2017828230 SEREN NEH109,860000 i BE AR LERHEESN
BRERLE AR 109860000 RE A
Lankao CGN New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 21 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB576,980,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB576,980,000 electricity
limited liability
BEDEENERERAR e 201743A218 SEREN AR 576,980,000t BEAR LERMERD
BREELE A #576,980,0007c B IR &
CGN (Hefei) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 27 April 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB10,280,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB10,280,000 electricity
limited liability
RE (RE) MERERAR P 2017F45278 SEREN ARH10280000T i BE AR LERMERN
BRERLE NE 110,280,000t B B A
CGN New Energy (Changsha) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 27 April 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB12,300,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB12,300,000 electricity
limited liability
RERHNER (RY) BRAT e 201744A278 SEREN AR 12,300,000 EHEER LERMERSD

BRERLE AR%12,300,000 T 8RR A

2022 FER

of

| HEEENERERERAE
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Hiat : (&)

RHBARNKRE (&)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2022

a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Place of
establishment/ Date of
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR
Shanghai Tongce Yungi Distributed The PRC 5 July 2016 Foreign investment
Energy Co,, Ltd* enterprise with
limited liability
LERRERAHRNERERAT HE 2016E785H SEREN
BRERLE
CGN (Chahar Right Wing Middle Banner) The PRC 24 November 2017 Sino-foreign equity
New Energy Co., Ltd.* joint venture
hER EREAETE HERRE  E 017E118248  PHAERELE
BRAR
Chifeng New Golden Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 14 October 2016 Sino-foreign equity
joint venture
HEHESEERARAR HE 20165108148 RHRERELE
Siyang County Beichuan Power Engineering The PRC 28 July 2016 Foreign investment
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with
limited liability
MEELZENIRERAT HE 2016675280 SEREN
BRERLE
Yuzhou CGN New Energy Co., Lid* The PRC 6 March 2017 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
BNREENERARAR P 201743868 SEREN
ARERLE
Xingtai Renxian County CGN New Energy The PRC 16 May 2018 Foreign investment
Power Co., Lid* enterprise with
limited liability
BaRBTRENEREEERAT HE 2018%5A168 SEREN
BRERLE
CGN Fugou County New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 19 September 2018 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
RREHRERITERERAR P 2018598 19A SEREN
AREALE
CGN Shengiu County New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 25 September 2018 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
FEEL IR ERERAT HE 2018595250 SEREN
BRERLE
CGN (Horgin Zuoyi Zhongai) New The PRC 12 April 2018 Sino-foreign equity
Energy Co,, Ltd* joint venture
RER (RELERDE) MER e 2018547128 PHAERELE
BRAR
CGN (Qianxinan State) New Energy The PRC 25 January 2018 Foreign investment
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with
limited liability
RER (BAEBM FERERAS HE 2018%1H258 SEREN
BREELE

Registered capital/
issued and

fully paid-up

share capital

HfEs/ BRTRARRE

Registered capital of RMB50,000,000 and paid up
capital of RMB6,610,000

AR 50,000,000 MEXRK
AR 6,610,000 R A

Registered capital of RMB66,800,000 and paid up
capital of RMB54,221,560

AR 66,800,000 MERR
AR 154221560 8 R A&

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid up
capital of RMB100,000,000

AR1000000007 2 REAR
100,000,000 42 R A

Registered capital of RMB41,726,000 and paid up
capital of RMB41,726,000

AR 41,726,000 HMELRK
AR 41,726 0007 R IR A

Registered capital of RMB216,280,000 and paid up
capital of RMB216,280,000

AE216,280,0007tH ERK
AR 1216,280,0007 & B R A

Registered capital of RMB111,090,000 and paid-up
capital RMB111,090,000

ARH#111,090,0007 #HEARK
AR 111,090,000 R RA

Registered capital of RMB192,690,000 and paid up
capital of RMB192,690,000

AR%192,690,000 MEER
AR 192,690,000 8 & KA

Registered capital of RMB136,740,000 and paid up
capital of RMB136,740,000

AE#136,740,000HMERRK
AR 136,740,000 RIR &

Registered capital of RMB49,740,000 and paid-up
capial RMB32,331,000

ARE49740000T 5 ME AR
AR%32331000THRRA

Registered capital of RMB284,198,700 and paid up
capital of RMB284,198,700

AE#284,198, 700 ME LK
AE 284,198, 70078 R B A

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

FEMFEEGRE

2022
20228

100%

66.1%

4%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2021
20215

100%

66.1%

4%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

TERH

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#2)

Notes: (continued) Kzt o (48)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATANKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activity
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFEERE TEER
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Yanan CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 3 January 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB930,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB930,000 electricity
limited liability
EREELIERERAE HE 2018F173H SMEREN AE 930,000 REAR EERHEESN
BRERLE AR%930,000T A 2R A
Xiangtan CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 27 November 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB15,540,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB15,540,000 electricity
limited liability
HERRENERARAR P 0178118218 SBEREN AEH155400007 s AEAR LERMERN
ARERLE AEH15,5400007 4 R A
CGN (Zhangpu) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 23 April 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB14,420,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB14,420,000 electricity
limited liability
REY (838) MERERAT HE 2018%4A 238 SMEREN NEH#144200007ERERR EERHEESN
BRERLE AE 144200007 4 R A
Ar Horgin Qi Tinze Agricultural Co., Ltd* The PRC 22 March 2012 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB88,440,000 electricity
limited liability
HENELEXERNEERAR P 201238220 SEREN AR 200,000,000 RE AR LERMERN
BREfRLE AR 88,440,000 BB A
Yunnan CGN Energy Services Co., Ltd.* The PRC 7 April 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB101,560,000 electricity
limited liability
EEPRRERREERAT HE 2016F4A7H SMEREN AE 200,000,000t fE XK EERHEESN
BRERLE AR 101,560,007 4 A&
CGN New Energy (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 1 November 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB6,700,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB6,700,000 electricity
limited liability
RERHNER ($7) BRAR HE 2016511518 SEREN AE¥6,700,000 £ REAR LERHERSD
AREALE AR 6,700,000 BB &
CGN (Wenchang) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 1 August 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with RMB187,993,200 and paid up capital electricity
limited liability RMB187,2993,200
hER (X8) MERERAT HE 201748F1H SEREN AE#187,993 200 REAR EERHEESN
BRERLE AR 187,993 20074 B IR A
CGN (Datong) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 2 June 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB269,510,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB269,510,000 electricity
limited liability
REG (KR HERERAR P 2017F6828 SEREN AR 269,510,000 REAR LERMERN
BREMRLE AR 1269,510,000 B2 R A
Baoying County Rongbaoda Wind The PRC 21 November 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB285,124,000 and paid up 69.2% 69.2%  Generation and supply of
Power Co., Ltd.* enterprise with capital RMB266,124,000 electricity
limited liability
ARERRERNEEERAT HE 2016F118218  SMEREN AE#285,124,000 ERHEXR EERHEESN
BRERLE AR 266,124,000 6 2B A
Yanling CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 6 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB382,610,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB382,610,000 electricity
limited liability
BRERRENERARAR P 2017453868 SEREN AB 382,610,000 EREER LERMERN

BREfRLE AE 382,610,000 8 R A
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Place of
establishment/ Date of
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR
CGN Yiyang New Energy Co, Ltd.* The PRC 18 May 2017 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
hEGE R ERERAR HE 201745A 188 SEREN
BRERLE
Yongcheng City CGN New Energy The PRC 13 June 2018 Foreign investment
Co, Ltd.* enterprise with
limited liability
XETRELTERERAR HE 2018565130 SEREN
ARERLE
CGN New Energy Cenxi Co., Ltd.* The PRC 17 July 2018 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
hEEERSZERAT HE 2018%7A178 SEREN
BRERLE
CGN New Energy (Taigu) Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 22 December 2016 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
RERHER (KA BRAR HE 2016128228 SBEREN
ARERLE
CGN (Dangtu) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 15 April 2019 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
hEY (B2) MERERAT HE 2019%4A 158 SEREN
BRERLE
CGN New Energy (Dingyuan) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 6 September 2019 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
RERHNER (BE) BRAR HE 20199A68 SEREN
AREALE
Dachaidan Haorun New Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 4 December 2017 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
AREEBENERERAD HE 2017E1284H SEREN
BRERLE
CGN New Energy (Lianshui) Co., Ltd* The PRC 9 December 2016 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
RERIER (BK) BRAR HE 2016512598 SEREN
AREALE
CGN (Hengfengxian) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 2 November 2016 Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability
R (EEH) FERERAT HE 2016% 11528 SEREN
BRERLE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

(%)

Hiat : (&)

a. RHBARNKRE (&)

Registered capital/
issued and

fully paid-up

share capital

HfEs/ BRTRARRE

Registered capital of RMB182,760,000 and paid up
capital RMB182,760,000

AE#182,760,000 s ME AR
AR %182,760,0007 8 R R A

Registered capital of RMB346,070,000 and paid up
capital RMB346,070,000

AE%346,070,000m 2 ME AR
AR #346,070,0007 4 IR &

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid up
capital RMB100,000,000

AE#100,000,0007 MERK
AR100,000,0007 4 2R E

Registered capital of RMB259,330,000 and paid up
capital RMB259,330,000

NE 259,330,000 MEA R
AR 259,330,000 & R R A

Registered capital of RMB323,800,000 and paid up
capital RMB323,800,000

AR 323,800,000 MERK
AR 323,800,007 ER &

Registered capital of RMB95,900,000 and paid up
capital RMB95,900,000

NE95,900,000#MEARK
AE 195,900,000 4 B R A&

Registered capital of
RMB76,000,000 and paid up capital
RMB76,000,000

AR 76,000,000t BE AR
AR76,000,00074 B A

Registered capital of RMB131,960,000 and
paid up capital of RMB131,960,000

NE131,960,000 T MELR
AR 131,960,000 8 2B AE

Registered capital of RMB133,086,700 and
paid up capital of RMB131,750,000

AE#133,086, 700 BELK
AR 131,750,000 B R A

Attributable
equity interest

2022

20228

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

held by the Group

FEMFEEGRE

2021
20215

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

TERH

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of

electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of

electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of

electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of

electricity

LERMERN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#2)

Notes: (continued) Kzt o (48)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATANKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activity
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFEERE TEER
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Liaoning Golden Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 29 September 2014  Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB1,468,054,881
limited liability
BESBERARAT hE 2014%9A298 SEREN AE#200,000,0007 M EER LEEN
BRERLE AR 1,468,054,0007C 4 R B A&
CGN (Shengshi) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 5 July 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB1,560,000,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB1,468,054,881
limited liability
PRM (B FMiERERAR P 2017E7858 SEREN AR 1,560,000,000 EAEXR £EEN
BREfRLE A 81,468,054 881 7T 8l R B A
Zixing CGN New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 6 December 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB325,590,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB325,590,000
limited liability
BRPEEIERERAT HE 2017€1286H SEREN NE 325,590,000t ERK LEEN
BRERLE AR 325,590,000 4 2B A
CGN (Dongzhi) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 19 August 2016 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB202,265,600 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB163,060,600
limited liability
PR RE) MiERERAR P 201658519 SEREN AR 202,265,600 REAR £EEN
BREfRLE AR 163,060,600t 2 R A
Gaoyou Ruixuan New Energy Technology Co.,  The PRC 3 March 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB285,124,000 and 69.2% 70.4% Generation of electricity
Ltd* enterprise with paid up capital of RMB266,124,000
limited liability
BBRENERNRERAR hE 20174338 SEREN AE#285,124,000 EMEER LEEN
BRERLE AR 266,124,000 4 2B A
CGN New Energy Nantong Co,, Lid* The PRC 6 November 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB1,836,516,400 and 80.5% 88.1% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB1,368,204,718
limited liability
PRGN RERARAR P 2018511568 SEREN AR H1,836,516,400c EAR £EEN
BREMRLE A 1,368,204, 71878 R B A
CGN New Energy (Huaian) Co., Ltd* The PRC 14 August 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB146,710,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB146,710,000
limited liability
REEATER (%) BRAR e 2018E87 14 SEREN ARH146,710,0007 R E AR LEEN
BRERLE AR146,710,0007T 4 2B E
CGN New Energy Zhongxiang Co., Ltd.* The PRC 27 July 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB66,500,000 and paid 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with up capital of RMB66,500,000
limited liability
PREAEREARAR P 2018578278 SEREN AE66,500,0007ZREXR £EEN
AREALE AR %66,500,000c 82 R4
CGN New Energy Cogen Zhangjiakou The PRC 29 October 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB132,440,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
Zhangbei Co, Ltd.* enterprise with paid up capital of RMB132,440,000
limited liability
PEEEREBRXORIERAR e 2018%F10820H  SMEREN AEH132,440,000 EMEER LEEN

BEREALE AR %132,440,0007 8 R R A
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WEAR AR

Dezhou Shangtang New Energy Co., Ltd.*

CGN New Energy Zaoyang Co,, Ltd.*

PREAEEREARAR

CGN (Ganzhou) New Energy Co, Ltd.*

REY @) MERERA

i

Xingye CGN New Energy Co,, Ltd*

CGN New Energy Clear Water Co., Ltd.*

PEEIERAKERAT

Lengshuijiang CGN New Energy Co., Ltd*

R REAERARAS

CGN New Energy Haiyan Co., Ltd*

PEENERERERAT

CGN New Energy (Jianza) Co., Ltd*

PREAER (%) BRAR

CGN Ganxu Jiuguan Intergrated New Energy

Co,, Lid*

TERHBARGEERERAT

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Place of

.establishm.enl’/ Dateo.f

operation incorporation
HI/#MET/ I/

EEBE XAk
The PRC 6 November 2018
hE 201811568
The PRC 9 August 2019
P 2019F8A9H
The PRC 12 October 2018
hE 20185105128
The PRC 31 October 2018
HE 2018108318
The PRC 28 June 2019
hE 2019565288
The PRC 26 July 2017
P 2017£75268
The PRC 29 March 2019
hE 2019535298
The PRC 8 December 2017
HE 20175127888
The PRC 21 June 2018
hE 201868218

Annual Report 2022

Legal form

ik

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ARERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ARERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
AREALE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
AREALE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

(%)

Hiat : (&)

RHBARNKRE (&)

Registered capital/
issued and

fully paid-up

share capital

HfEs/ BRTRARRE

Registered capital of RMB435,164,400 and
paid up capital of RMB273,326,800

NE#435,164 400 HMERRK
AR 1273,326,8007 4 EIR &

Registered capital of RMB144,200,000 and
paid up capital of RMB144,200,000

NEH144,200,000THMERR
AR 144,200,000 8 2 R A&

Registered capital of RMB213,290,400 and
paid up capital of RMB213,290,400

AE#213,000 400 MERK
AR 213,000,400 RIR &

Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and
paid up capital of RMB200,000,000

NE 200,000,000 MERRK
AR 200,000,007 & BB

Registered capital of RMB249,350,000 and
paid up capital of RMB249,350,000

AR 249,350,000 ME A K
AR 1249,350,0007 8 R IR &

Registered capital of RMB56,500,000 and
paid up capital of RMB56,500,000

AE¥56,500,0007tME AR
AE 56,500,000 41 B B A&

Registered capital of RMB191,302,300 and
paid up capital of RMB191,302,300

AE#191,302,300n#MEERR
AR 191,302,300 2R A

Registered capital of RMB63,220,000 and
paid up capital of RMB63,220,000

AE¥63,220,0007tBE AR
AE163,220,00074 B R A&

Registered capital of RMB125,658,000 and
paid up capital of RMB125,658,000

NE#125,658,000tHBELK
AR %125,658,0007 4 EIR &

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
FEAMFRERE
2022 2021
2022% 20215
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activity

TERH

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation and supply of
electricity and other
related services

EEREEENR
HtEBRS
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZAFEEMNIMIEIR IR

41.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(%)

Notes: (continued) Ktz (4&)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATANKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activity
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEBE XAk AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFEERE TEER
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Zhuzhou Intellegence New Energy Service The PRC 14 January 2019 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB10,030,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with paid up capital of RMB10,030,000 electricity and other
limited liability related services
SRR EREL AT HE 2019F1514H SMEREN AE#10,030,0007c B AR EEREEENR
BRERLE AR 10,030,000 BB A& HiEBRE
Longnan District Xinchangsheng New Energy ~ The PRC 29 March 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB136,004,400 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Co, Lid* enterprise with paid up capital of RMB107,435,500
limited liability
ERRESRNERERAR HE 2017838294 SEREN ARM136,004, 4007 REAK 4£EEN
BREfRLE AR107,435, 50074 R &

English names are for identification purpose only.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

In March 2023, Meiya Electric Asia, Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, intends to dispose of all the equity interests it holds in
Nantong Meiya Co-generation Co., Ltd. For further information, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2023.

ERBIAERBDNETEMB AR AR
BEERR ZEWBRARIEREL
EENEERNEE-EERA> %Z@JE
B AR RFBER<ERBRTT

BENE AR NERETERNEEE
#o

41. REHIBREIA
R2023F 38 AATL2EME AT Meiya
Electric Asia, Ltd. ?ﬁﬂj ::,\EA@L%EEJLEEE@

NEFFERRE - E—PERFLHEEAAT
HERA2023%E3H21H E’\J’&f:.t"
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 42,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a number of amendments and a new standard, IFRS 17,
Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2022 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

#HF2022F12831HLLFE
BB R R EMBEST A
BT 2R B2 Ev s ESE
N E

BEZSEMBRREH ARG ERESES
BEEM SR & K — #1572 B B IR B 55 3R
SEE1TRFRS /A EREREE2022F
1283 1HEFREHKRERN BEXERZEYH
BRERRM - ZFHRGEUT AR AL EE
B -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BIXTBEERZERAA

B & st EA R £ 3%

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as BE G st 2R FE 158 (B5T4) » 1 January 2023
current or non-current AT 1ETE 748 25 7 B 26 FIF 7 B 2023%F181H
IFRS 17, Insurance contracts B PR B 75 ¥k 5 2E B 551 7SR AR Bk & /AT 1 January 2023
2023%181H

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, B &st#8]FE 15 REIEMEREELER 1 January 2023

wEF (BE]E) »

Disclosure of accounting policies
Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting Bl PR =
estimates
Amendments to |IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets B[
and liabilities arising from a single transaction

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022

B 5 BRI
5HERIESE (4T ) -

SEERISE 1258 (BFT &) - HE— 5
ELHEEREREMIELZRE

2023F181H
BEH 155 ES 1 January 2023
2023F181H

1 January 2023
2023%181H

ZIS%IEEEHEEE%%)E?EMB@EZ’R%%MFsﬁ
EENTE - ZS5THERDFMRFTEIT
FIREHMBRRELESTATZE-



Revenue

Operating expenses:

Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Repair and maintenance
Staff costs
Recognition/(reversal) of loss

allowance of trade and other

receivables and contract
assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Gain on deconsolidation/
disposal of a subsidiary

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share, basic and
diluted (US cents)

A

e :
B~ AR RIAR K
ANE R

ME - B KRR BT

MEE R R E
ETIMA

W, (D) B 2Kk
HiE W R IE R &

EEBEEHE

HQ &R
e %

g

HAhA
HAthsa K B4R
MHER

e UNEIE

RRIERER,HE—R
B A BRI

BRAR A )
Fifg

FR izl
G FERET, (8518)
NABEmRE

JRiERR D

REF > BARKREE
(=)

Financial Summary

A2

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224
Us$°000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FETT FZET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(= E75)

1,358,487 1,276,281 1,149,892 1,775,305 2,430,056
829,596 698,265 492,510 778,486 1,247,302
144,473 159,831 193,031 266,346 335,969
44,742 40,675 30,447 37,684 29,971

67,652 76,524 85,835 102,854 109,395
- = (99) 20,292 2,791
72,843 69,368 60,701 90,047 114,976

1,159,306 1,044,663 862,425 1,295,709 1,840,404

199,181 231,618 287,467 479,596 589,652

41,337 23,157 26,318 41,307 42,699
(22,141) (25,093) (11,089) 44 (69,000)

(110,158) (122,120) (145,005) (188,216) (227,105)

16,819 32,807 29,342 (37,551) (63,252)
= 548 18,135 = -
125,038 140,917 205,168 295,180 272,994
(33,767) (41,564) (37,533) (34,066) (58,573)
91,271 99,353 167,635 261,114 214,421
88,211 111,207 162,087 244,274 195,143
3,060 (11,854) 5,548 16,840 19,278
91,271 99,353 167,635 261,114 214,421
2.06 2.59 3.78 5.69 4.55

2022 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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Financial Summary

52

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities HmaE
NET ASSETS BEE

Total equity attributable to equity Z</A &) #E 3 i% 5= FE (5
shareholders of the Company BT
Non-controlling interests JEERE R

TOTAL EQUITY RS

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224
Us$°000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FETT FZET FET FE7T FET
(Restated)
(= E75)
4,139,068 5,379,167 6,976,532 8,733,954 8,343,933
3,184,784 4,369,720 5,679,151 7,238,743 6,844,074
954,284 1,009,447 1,297,381 1,495,211 1,499,859
865,830 930,115 1,213,155 1,373,690 1,362,524
88,454 79,332 84,226 121,521 137,335
954,284 1,009,447 1,297,381 1,495,211 1,499,859

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2022



mr#% G2 CGN

PEEZ e REZRBIRAE
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
FHRGFREETEEPOLSE

Tel B3E: (852) 2593 3222
Fax f§E : (852) 25190313

www.cgnne.com
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